FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

Aire-Master of America, Inc.
a Missouri corporation

P.O. Box 2310

Route CC and Highway 160
Nixa, Missouti 65714

(417) 725-2691
www.airemaster.com

The Franchise is an odor control, scent branding, and commercial hygiene system, including scheduled cleaning
of restrooms and servicing of deodorizing and product dispensing equipment. The general market is
commercial businesses such as hospitals, clinics, doctor’s offices, adult care, apartments and multi-family
housing, hotels and lodging, office buildings, amusement and recreation, daycares, restaurants, and retail outlets.

The total investment necessary to begin operations of an Aire-Master franchise is from $45,934 to $171,400.
This includes $34,000 to $108,000 that must be paid to Aire-Master. The initial franchise fee is not uniform for
all franchisees.

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of your franchise agreement and other information in
plain English. Read this disclosure document and all accompanying agreements carefully. You must receive this
disclosure document at least 14 calendar-days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make any payment
to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale. Note, however, that no
governmental agency has verified the information contained in this document.

You may wish to receive your disclosure document in another format that is more convenient for you.
To discuss the availability of disclosures in different formats, contact Peter Rathke at P.O. Box 2310, 1821 N.
Hwy CC, Nixa, Missouti 65714 and (651) 587-9829.

The terms of your contract will govern your franchise relationship. Don't rely on the disclosure document alone
to understand your contract. Read all of your contracts carefully. Show your contract and this disclosure
document to an advisor, like a lawyer or an accountant.

Buying a franchise is a complex investment. The information in this disclosure document can help you make
up your mind. More information on franchising, such as "A Consumer's Guide to Buying a Franchise," which
can help you understand how to use this disclosure document, is available from the Federal Trade Commission.
You can contact the FTC at 1-877-FTC-HELP or by writing to the FT'C at 600 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW,
Washington, D.C. 20580. You can also visit the FTC's home page at www.ftc.gov for additional information.
Call your state agency or visit your public library for other sources of information on franchising.

There may also be laws on franchising in your state. Ask your state agencies about them.

Issuance Date: June 30, 2024
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How to Use This Franchise Disclosure Document
Here are some questions you may be asking about buying a franchise and tips on how to find

more information:

QUESTION

WHERE TO FIND INFORMATION

How much can I earn?

Item 19 may give you information about outlet
sales, costs, profits or losses. You should also try
to obtain this information from others, like current
and former franchisees. You can find their names
and contact information in Item 20 or Exhibits B-
1 and B-2.

How much will I need to invest?

Items 5 and 6 list fees you will be paying to the
franchisor or at the franchisot’s direction. Item 7
lists the initial investment to open. Item 8
describes the suppliers you must use.

Does the franchisor have the
financial ability to provide
support to my business?

Item 21 or Exhibits C-1 and C-2 includes financial
statements. Review these statements carefully.

Is the franchise system stable,
growing, or shrinking?

Item 20 summarizes the recent history of the
number of company-owned and franchised
outlets.

Will my business be the only Aire-
Master business in my area?

Item 12 and the “territory” provisions in the
franchise agreement describe whether the
franchisor and other franchisees can compete with
you.

Does the franchisor have a
troubled legal history?

Items 3 and 4 tell you whether the franchisor or its
management have been involved in material

litigation or bankruptcy proceedings.

What’s it like to be Aire-Master
franchisee?

Ttem 20 or Exhibits B-1 and B-2 lists current and
former franchisees. You can contact them to ask
about their experiences.

What else should I know?

These questions are only a few things you should
look for. Review all 23 Items and all Exhibits in
this disclosure document to better understand this
tranchise opportunity. See the table of contents.
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What You Need To Know About Franchising Generally

Continuing responsibility to pay fees. You may have to pay royalties and other fees even if

you are losing money.

Business model can change. The franchise agreement may allow the franchisor to change

its manuals and business model without your consent. These changes may require you to make

additional investments in your franchise business or may harm your franchise business.

Supplier restrictions. You may have to buy or lease items from the franchisor or a limited

group of suppliers the franchisor designates. These items may be more expensive than similar

items you could buy on your own.

Operating restrictions. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a similar
business during the term of the franchise. There are usually other restrictions. Some examples
may include controlling your location, your access to customers, what you sell, how you

market, and your hours of operation.

Competition from franchisor. Even if the franchise agreement grants you a territory, the

tranchisor may have the right to compete with you in your territory.

Renewal. Your franchise agreement may not permit you to renew. Even if it does, you may
have to sign a new agreement with different terms and conditions in order to continue to

operate your franchise business.

When your franchise ends. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a

similar business after your franchise ends even if you still have obligations to your landlord or

other creditots.

Some States Require Registration

Your state may have a franchise law, or other law, that requires franchisors to register before
offering or selling franchises in the state. Registration does not mean that the state
recommends the franchise or has verified the information in this document. To find out if

your state has a registration requirement, or to contact your state, use the agency information
in Exhibit E.

Your state also may have laws that require special disclosures or amendments be made to your
franchise agreement. If so, you should check the State Specific Addenda. See the Table of
Contents for the Location of the State Specific Addenda, Exhibit G.
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1. THE FRANCHISOR, AND ANY PARENTS, PREDECESSORS, AND
AFFILIATES

To simplify the language in this Franchise Disclosure Document ("FDD") “Aire-Master” ot
“AM” means Aire-Master of America, Inc., the Franchisor, and “You” means the franchisee
or the person or legal entity [includes a corporation, partnership, limited liability company or
other legal entity (collectively “legal entity””) and their owners, officers and directors] who
acquires the franchise.

Aire-Master is a Missouri corporation, incorporated on August 27, 1976, doing business under
the name “Aire-Master of America” or “Aire-Master”. Aire-Mastet's corporate offices and
facilities are at 1821 N. Hwy CC, with mailing address of P.O. Box 2310, Nixa, Missouri 65714,
and acquired predecessor Jerry P. McCauley’s assets and operations on AM’s formation. Aire-
Master has no parents or subsidiaries.

Aire-Master owns and operates an odor control, scent branding, and commercial hygiene
systems business in a number of states, and manufactures products used in the business. It
offers franchises for the odor control and cleaning business. Aire-Master has operated a
business of the type you will conduct since 1977. Aire-Master first offered and granted a
franchise for odor control and commercial hygiene systems in 1977, and does not and has not
granted franchises in any other line of business. Aire-Master manufactures and markets certain
odor control and cleaning products under the trademark “EsScents” through distributors who
are not franchisees, which are similar to products utilized in the Aire-Master franchise system.
Aire-Master manufactures various products for third parties packaged under private label.
Aire-Master has no other business activities and no affiliates.

Aire-Master's registered agents authorized to receive service of process in various states are
listed in Exhibit D.

Aire-Master's predecessor was Jerry P. McCauley operating as a sole proprietorship under the
name of Aire-Master Company, with business address of 1910 S. Stewart, Springfield, Missouri
65804. Jerry was active in all phases of the business to be operated by you from 1966 through
2012. He did not offer or grant a franchise in odor control and commercial hygiene systems
or any other business, the first franchise being granted by Aire-Master.

Aire-Master franchises the odor control, scent branding, hand care, and cleaning business,
with scheduled cleaning of restrooms and servicing of deodorizing and product dispensing
equipment, including right to use the name, Marks (as defined below), operational concepts
and methods, forms, manuals and other literature, products, copyrights, trade secrets, training
procedures, advertising and marketing programs, etc., (the “Aire-Master System” or
“System”), all as limited by the Franchise Agreement (the “Franchise Agreement” or
“Agreement”).

The general market is restrooms, lobbies, offices, eating areas, and living spaces, of commercial
businesses such as hospitals, clinics, doctor’s offices, adult care, apartments and multi-family
housing, hotels and lodging, office buildings, amusement and recreation daycares, restaurants,
and retail outlets.

There are no regulations specific to the industry in which the franchise business operates.

Your Competitors include multi-state businesses, other franchisors and independent
proprietorships offering odor control and commercial hygiene services and products.
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2. BUSINESS EXPERIENCE

Chief Executive Officer, Assistant Secretary, Chairman of the Board of Directors: Douglas D.
McCauley

Doug has been employed by Aire-Master in Nixa, Missouri, since May of 1990. Doug was
elected CEO and Vice-Chairman of the Board in April 2007, and Chairman of the Board in
December, 2012.

President and Chief Operating Officer, Walter R. Heinle

Walter has been employed by Aire-Master in Nixa, Missouri, since April of 1992. Walter was
elected President and Chief Operating Officer in April 2007, and has served in those capacities
since then.

Vice President of Operations: Eric Reese

Eric Reese has been employed by Aire-Master in Nixa, Missouri, since July 1993. Eric has
been plant manager since May 2000. Eric was elected Vice President of Operations in April
2007, and has served in that capacity since then.

Franchise Director: Peter Rathke

Peter Rathke has been employed by Aire-Master in Nixa, Missouri, as Franchise Director since
March 2023. In July 2024, Peter assumed the position of Franchise Recruiter. Peter was
Regional Operations Manager for Franchisor Kitchen Tune Up from August 2022 through
March 2023, Vice President- Emerging Brands, for Premium Service Brands January 2022
through July 2022, Franchise Business Consultant for Neighbotly from July 2020 through
January 2022, not employed March to June 2020, and Director of Franchise Development, for
Rentals America from May 2017 through February 2020

Chief Financial Officer: Tom Coleman

Tom Coleman has been employed by Aire-Master as Chief Financial Officer in Nixa, Missouri,
since December 2016.

Senior Designer & Developer: Doug Burton

Doug Burton has been employed by Aire-Master in Nixa, Missouri since August 1990. He
started as the Media Director. Doug left Aire-Master in 2003 and was rehired by Aire-Master
in November 2009 as Senior Designer and Developer.

National Sales Manager: Michael Kelly

Michael Kelly has been employed by Aire-Master in Nixa, Missouri, since December 2014 as
National Sales Manager. From July 2021 through July 2024, Michael Kelly also assumed the
position of Franchise Recruiter.

Creative Director: Patty Long

Patty Long has been employed by Aire-Master in Nixa, Missouri, since August 2020.

3. LITIGATION

No litigation is required to be disclosed in this Item.
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4. BANKRUPTCY

No bankruptcies are required to be disclosed in this Item.

5. INITIAL FEES

The initial franchise fee is not uniform for all franchisees, and ranges from $30,000 to
$100,000. A required $4,000 minimum inventory purchase must be added to the initial
franchise fee as part of the initial fee. The franchise fee is $.10 per person within the territory,
with a minimum $30,000 franchise fee ($34,000 initial fee with minimum inventory) for a
population up to 300,000. The typical minimum territory population approved is 500,000
(franchise fee of $50,000, $54,000 initial fee with minimum inventory) or more, e.g., for a
territory population of 1,000,000, the franchise fee would be $100,000 (calculated as 1,000,000
times .10) ($104,000 initial fee with minimum inventory). The current minimum inventory
purchase is $4,000. The average territory requires only the minimum $4,000 inventory. In the
fiscal year ending March 31, 2024 the required inventory purchase was $4,000 for all franchises
sold. You must purchase items listed in franchise agreement Schedule A, including deodorizing
and cleaning units, hand and other liquid, solid, semi-solid, powdered, and aerosol
disinfectants, cleaning, and sanitizing, chemicals, agents, and, soaps, toilet bowl, urinal and
commode screens, shields, mats, service and identification labels, signs, vehicle graphics,
literature, stationery, business cards, forms, and uniforms. You must pay the franchise fee and
pay for the initial inventory provided by Aire-Master on execution of the agreement unless
other arrangements are made. You are required to attend the Annual Franchisee Convention
and must pay Aire-Master a $1,1800 set fee payable $425 quarterly, including attendance, hotel
room charge for the conference days and certain meals designated by Aire-Master for up to 2
persons, but not including your travel expenses. You may be required to pay Annual
Franchisee Convention fee installment before opening. Aire-Mastet’s proprietary software is
licensed to franchisees during the franchise term as part of the initial franchise fee and royalties
and without additional charge.

Aire-Master has the right reduce the fee for unusual circumstances, for example, low
population density or sustained depressed economic conditions. Aire-Master has the right
increase the fee for previous sales activity (either Aire-Master run or reacquired from a
franchisee).

Aire-Master has the right to defer payment of the Initial Franchise Fee for additional franchise
territory licensed under a separate franchise agreement to existing franchisees. Qualifications
for consideration for deferral include: 1) having been and being in full compliance with their
obligations as franchisee, 2) demonstration of: a) a high degree of motivation, b) the ability to
achieve rapid expansion, and c) development of a quality account base, 3) meeting other
criteria as determined in Aire-Master’s sole discretion. The Initial Franchise Fee may be
deferred until the earlier of: up to 2 years, or transfer of the territory for which the Initial
Franchise Fee has been deferred.

Aire-Master currently offers a 10% discount on the initial franchisee fee for qualified veterans
of the U.S. Armed Services who have been honorably discharged and who have had at least
one year of active service.

Aire-Master encourages You to obtain financial assistance through your financial sources or
other financial institutions that may be able to meet your needs. In some cases, Aire-Master
may finance a portion of the franchise license fee, but is not required to. Due to the variance
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in initial franchise fee, inventory required and financing terms it is not possible to provide an
accurate estimate of loan repayments or interest on the initial investment. Aire-Master does
not restrict your source of financing, and you may incur loan interest and repayment
obligations from unrelated third parties.

No fee or charge is refundable under any circumstances, except Aire-Master agrees to deliver
products, equipment and or supplies within a reasonable time after receipt of order, assuming
no unusual problems with delivery, strikes, inventory of supplies or otherwise. If Aire-Master
fails to deliver the product, equipment, or supplies necessary to begin substantial operation of
the business within 45 days of the delivery date stated above, Franchisee may notify Aire-
Master in writing and cancel the Franchise Agreement, and Aire-Master will refund the
Franchisee’s entire initial franchise fee.

6. OTHER FEES

OTHER FEES
Name of Fee Amount Due Date Remarks
Royalty 1 5% of monthly Gross 15th day of “Gross Service
Service Billings, minimum following Billings” defined
$250 per month 4 month as all of your sales,
throughout gross charges for
Term labor, delivery,
equipment,
products, leases,
or rental
Initial Training 4 NONE » NA
Computer Software 1 | NONE 2 Before Computer
commencing | software is
business proprietary and
accessible during
the franchise
license term
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Technology Fee Currently none, but may As billed
include one in the future.
Additional Training 1 | None other than lodging When AM reserves right
and travel if attending training for to charge
training already scheduled new
for other new franchisees. franchisees is
While not normally conducted
provided, additional on-site
training may be arranged
for AM’s actual personal
and travel expense 4 plus
25%
Visit by Franchise Travel expenses, which may | As billed
Representative | be a set per diem fee 4
Promotional Material | Typically $100-200 annually | As billed AM reserves right

1

for color copier printed
fliers at $.30/page; Full
catalogs available at
additional cost, and
typically purchased

to charge

Inventory

Current AM price. Typical
initial order $2,500-$4,000
of required $4,000
inventory; Next order
typically in 3rd month (can
use any remainder of $4,000
minimum inventory);
Monthly orders typically
range from $900 to $6,500
during 1st 3 years

2% 10/net 30

You must
purchase certain
items from AM at
current price
quotations

Service Charges on 1% per month 5 $15 late As billed

Past Due Accounts ;| | royalty report fee

Transfers $10,500 per Transferee 5 On approval

Assignments or

Sphttll‘lg 1

Renewal NONE NA

Audit Cost if under-reported 5% | At end of AM has the right

or mofte ¢ audit to audit you

Lease fees NONE As required AM does not
by third currently charge
parties any lease fees.

You may incur
lease fees with
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non-related third
parties

Advertising

AM’s advertising fee is
currently 1.0%, and can
increase to up to 4% of
monthly Gross Service
Billing in AM’s discretion.
AM may charge for sales
promotion materials.
Franchisee may decline
promotional materials in
excess of a maximum $250
annual purchase.

No
advertising
fund fees
currently. AM
may requite
You to
purchase
promotional
materials up
to $250
maximum
annually.

AM’s current
advertising fee, is
1.0%, and AM
reserves the right
to increase
advertising fees up
to a maximum of
4% of Gross
Service Billings in
the future.

National Account
processing fee

Currently 12% of invoice
billed on shared/national

Per invoice

2% processing
fee; plus 10%

including AM's internal and
overhead costs, for supplier

accounts. AM may charge a commission,
maximum 4% processing when applicable
fee or escrow fee if AM
performs centralized
invoicing and collection
services.
Annual Franchise Currently $1,700 annually $425 Includes
Conference Fee quarterly conference
attendance, hotel
charge for the
conference days,
and certain meals
designated by AM,
for up to 2
persons, but not
including travel
expenses
Attorney fees and You must pay AM’s its When
expenses costs, expenses, and incurred
attorney’s fees for enforcing
the Franchise Agreement or
defending any related action
or proceeding, whether or
not suit is filed.
Approval of alternate | AM may charge You for When
supplier AM’s cost and expense, incurred
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approval review, whether
approved or not.

No fee or charge paid to Aire-Master is refundable under any circumstances. Other fees or
charges paid to third parties may be refundable depending on those parties’ terms.

1. All fees are imposed by and payable to Aire-Master and are non-refundable. Fees imposed
by Aire-Master are uniformly imposed for all franchisees, except the initial franchise fee and
transfer fees may be reduced in Aire-Master’s discretion. Aire-Master is not required to but
has currently used its discretion under the agreement to set volume royalty discounts as
follows: 5% of monthly Gross Service Billings up to $25,000; plus 4% over $25,000 up to
$50,000; plus 3% over $50,000; and had reduced the royalty on paper products to 2.5% using
its discretion in the Agreement. Items with reduced/waived royalty amount do not count in
calculating volume royalty reduction. The $250 minimum monthly royalty in the second and
following years is not a representation or indication of your gross receipts, but is only Aire-
Mastet’s business determination of the minimum royalty necessary to cover administrative
costs and justify continuation of the franchise license.

2. Licensed to franchisees without additional charge.

3. Maximum allowed by law, if less than 1.5% per month. A §15 late royalty fee is charged if
the report is not received by the 25t of the following month, and each successive month until

paid.

4. Travel expenses include airfare, hotel, meals, and a rental car if needed. Recent expenses
have ranged from $1,300 to $1,750 for one representative, but may be more depending on
time to plan to obtain better airfare, length of stay and number of representatives sent.

5. Aire-Master has the right in its discretion may reduce this transfer fee in certain
circumstances, e.g., it has in the past reduced the fee to $2,500 for a transfer to another current
franchisee, and has charged a single fee where one territory has been divided and sold to two
different new franchisees. The transfer fee includes up to 5 days training at Aire-Master’s Nixa,
Missouri location, up to 5 days of on-site training at franchisee’s location by a corporate
salesperson, and use of the Route-Master computer software during the term of the franchise.
Any reduction in the transfer fee may result in adjustments to the initial support functions
provided by Aire-Master.

If a transfer involves splitting a territory, Aire-Master will license the transferee-franchisee to
use the Route-Master computer software during the franchise term without additional charge.

6. Aire-Master has not required any franchisee to pay the cost of audit, and therefore cannot
estimate the cost. Factors in cost include the length of the period being audited, number of
transactions to be reviewed, condition and organization of books etc., and the cost could be
substantial.

0009-03.17/Aire-Master of America FDD - 2024 DRAFT [v8].docxpage A.-11



7. ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT
YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

Type of expenditure Amount - | Amount- | Payment Method When Due To Whom
Minimum | Maximum Paid
Initial Franchise Fee 12 $30,000 $100,000 | Lump sum At signing of AM
franchise
agreement
Opening inventory 1, 12 $4,000 $8,000 | Lump sum At signing of AM
franchise
agreement
Travel and living $500 $1,500 | Some expenses are | At signing of Vendors
expenses while training paid by AM as part | franchise
of franchise fee or agreement
transfer fee for 2
persons. Franchisee
is responsible for
some meals and
local transportation.
Real estate & $50 $750 | As required by third | As required by Lessor
Improvements » parties third parties
Computer/printer, etc. $3,000 $4,500 | As required by third | As required by Vendors
3 parties third parties
Computer Software 4 $0 $0 | NA NA AM
Equipment s $500 $15,000 | (Lump sum for any | AM equipment AM or
AM which is included in vendots
included in inventory, as
inventory, above), as | required by third
required by third parties
parties
Vehicle 5 $4,000 $16,000 | As required by third | As required by Vendor
parties third parties
Vehicle graphics $100 $1,000 | As required by third | As required by Various
parties third parties
Security Deposits $0 $2,000 | As required by third | As required by Landlords,
parties third parties utility
companies
Professional fees ¢ $200 $2,000 | As required by third | As required by Attorneys,
parties third parties CPA
Government fees 7 $25 $1,000 | As required by third | As required by Various
parties third parties
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Insurance 14 $450 $9,000 | As required by third | Before operating | Vendor
parties

Miscellaneous opening $100 $1,000 | As required by third | As required by Various

Ccosts g parties third parties

Advertising - 3 months $9 $150 | As required by third | As required by Phone Co.
parties third parties, AM | &

for promotional | Advertisers
materials up to
$250 annually

Additional funds - 3 $1,500 $6,500 | As incurred, or as As required by Employees

months ¢ required by third third parties Suppliers,
parties Utilities

Attend Annual $1,500 $3,000 | Annually (normally | As invoiced by AM,

Franchisee Convention summer) - Lump AM, as required | aitlines,

10 sum to AM, as by third parties restaurants,
required by third hotels
parties

Total 11 $45,934 $171,400

No fee or charge paid to Aire-Master is refundable under any circumstances. Other fees or
charges paid to third parties may be refundable depending on those parties’ terms. Aire-Master
may, but is not obligated to, finance a portion of the initial franchise fee. Aire-Master will not
finance other opening or operating costs, and will not guarantee your note or obligation to
any third party.

1. You must purchase initial inventory of supplies and equipment from Aire-Master before
you commence business. The required minimum inventory purchase is $4,000 and may be up
to $8,000 or possibly higher if necessary to have adequate supplies to service larger territories.
The average territory will require only the $4,000 minimum inventory. On termination, Aire-
Master has the option but is not required to purchase your equipment, inventory, and
products.

2. The majority of your business operations occurs at the customet's premises and requires
minimal real property use. This use includes office operations and a moderate amount of safe,
dry, and convenient storage for inventory and equipment. You may find the garage of your
residence and a heated space for office work adequate if not prohibited by zoning and
occupancy regulations, etc., which would reduce the amount required to start business. A
typical space to store inventory and equipment ranges from a 10’x10’x2” shelfing unit to a
10°x10” storage unit, depending on the size of the franchise and services and products offered.
The typical office requires space for a desk, computer, printer, telephone, and files. Ninety
percent of franchisees use their home for office space and garage for storage if permitted.
Franchisee may have some cost to modify Franchisee’s home, and cost will be higher if
Franchisee leases a storage unit(s) or commercial space.

3. You must purchase computer hardware from third parties meeting certain minimum
requirements, see estimated cost range in Item 7 table, above. The computer industry is
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constantly advancing, and Aire-Master sets minimum requirements at an appropriate level
between state of the art and obsolete. Generally, computers purchased within one to two years
meet these requirements. MINIMUM: Internet connected desktop or laptop computer with
current operating system (Windows or Mac) and laser printer. E-mail account. Up to date web
browser (Internet Explorer, Chrome, Firefox, Safari). Up to date security software. Minimum
6 Mbps Broadband internet access, 12 Mbps or faster, and secondary internet provider
recommended. You must maintain the computer system in good working and operational
condition. There are no specific upgrade or update requirements. There are no contractual
limits on the frequency or expense of Your duty to maintain and update the computer system.
You must use Aire-Master’s web-based online software that sends information from your
computer system to Aire-Master, and Aire-Master has access to Your information stored in
the online system. Aire-Master does not have independent access to information stored on
Your computer system. There are no contractual limits imposed on Aire-Mastet’s access to
Your information stored on Your computer system or the online system.

4. Aire-Master licenses Aire-Mastet's confidential and proprietary computer software to
franchisees and You must use Aire-Mastet's proprietary computer softwate. At present, there
is no cost associated with this software, however, we may collect a fee in the future. The
software cannot be acquired from other sources. Aire-Master's proprietary computer software
is web-based, and is accessible during the franchise license term, and cannot be used or
accessed after expiration of the term, termination, or non-renewal of the franchise for any
reason. The software coordinates and facilitates route scheduling, handles invoices and
statements (including sales tax calculation), account receivable ledger and aging report, and
calculates commissions and royalty and sales tax reports. General ledger and payroll modules
are NOT included in the software. You must have software for internet access and e-mail.

5. Required equipment includes: suitable vehicle(s) to travel to and service accounts, including
transporting inventory, tools and equipment; miscellaneous small tools for installation of
equipment, e.g., ladder, drill, screwdrivers, electric extension cord, etc.; miscellaneous office
equipment such as desk, file cabinet, calculator, etc.; appropriate telephone service, equipment
and a facsimile machine; and warehouse equipment, including shelving, etc. Cellular
telephones are highly recommended. You may be able to use a currently owned vehicle if
suitable, which would reduce the minimum amount required to start business. Primary vehicle
is required to have permanent or removable Aire-Master Logos for advertising, and must meet
approved Brand guidelines.

6. You may incur expenses for professional services (e.g., accountants or attorneys) in
acquisition of the franchise and or formation of a business entity (e.g., partnership,
corporation, or limited liability company) or ongoing services.

7. There may be fees etc. charged or made by federal, state, or local government, or by
unrelated third parties, before a business may commence operation.

8. E.g., Business telephone typical installation $60.

9. As with any business, you must have adequate working capital to live on and run the
business during start up and after, for example payment of rent and employees’ salaries and
dealing with variations in cash flow.

Examples of estimated advertising expenses include purchase of promotional materials from
AM up to a $250 annual maximum (not including the advertising fund fee).
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Other examples of estimated additional expenses include business telephone monthly service
$100, storage locker if residence garage not available: $50-§100; liability insurance: $155 to
$1,400; annual auto insurance: $500 to $1,500 per vehicle; gas and miscellaneous auto
expenses: $150 to $1,500 per month (or more depending on the number of vehicles operated);
utilities for business location other than residence $200 to $400 per month, internet service
fees of $50 per month. There may be other expenses not specifically listed. Personal living
expenses etc. not included. Typically, franchises do not require employees during the initial 3
months and no employee expenses are included.

10. You must attend the annual Franchisee Conference at your expense, including
transportation, meals, lodging, cost of meeting facilities, and wages or salaries of your
employees attending. Aire-Master has the right to establish a set fee for the convention, which
may or may not include transportation, and to require you to pay an allocable portion of the
fee monthly, quarterly, or semi-annually. Aire-Master currently charges a $1,500 set fee payable
$375 quarterly, including attendance, hotel room charge for the conference days and certain
meals designated by Aire-Master for up to 2 persons, but not including your travel expenses.

11. Aire-Master has relied on its experience since 1977 in the franchised business to compile
these estimates. You should review these figures carefully with a business advisor before
making any decision to purchase the franchise. Aire-Master does not offer financing for any
item, except the initial franchisee fee in Aire-Master’s discretion.

12. Aire-Master has the right to reduce the Initial Franchise Fee for unusual circumstances.
Aire-Master also has the right to reduce the typical minimum required population base from
500,000 to 300,000 persons ot less, in turn reducing the Initial Franchise Fee as low as $30,000
or less, and minimum total investment to as low as $45,434 or less.

13. In some cases, Aire-Master may finance a portion of the initial franchise fee, but is not
obligated to. No Aire-Master affiliate offers financing. Aire-Master will not finance other
opening or operating costs, and will not guarantee your note or obligation to any third party.
Terms include: a substantial 50% to 75% down payment; monthly payments at a fixed or
variable interest rate of up to 8% over prime at a Missouri Bank as selected by Aire-Master
compounded monthly; and amortized over a short term (e.g., from 2 to 4 years). See Item 10.

14. Employee bonding, Workmen’s Compensation and Occupational Disease, Commercial
General Liability, minimum limits $500,000 (recommended $1,000,000) per occurrence,
$1,000,000 (recommended $2,000,000) aggregate); $1,000,000 products/completed operations
aggregate, Property coverage subject to direct physical damage including theft, vandalism, and
malicious mischief, and automobile (annual expense).

8. RESTRICTIONS ON SOURCES OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

You must purchase supplies and equipment specified in “Schedule A” of the Franchise
agreement from Aire-Master. Aire-Master licenses to franchisees without additional charge
and You must use Aire-Master’s proprietary computer software. Aire-Master is the sole source
of these items and thete ate no alternative sources. You ate responsible for all sales/use taxes
or equivalents. Aire-Master will derive revenue from the required purchases listed above. In
the year ending March 31, 2024, Aire-Mastet's revenues from the sales of these items to
franchisees was $5,191,250 or 34.5% of Aire-Masters total revenues of $15,006,526.
No officer or other person identified in Item 2 has any interest in a required supplier other
than Aire-Master.
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You must purchase insurance, including employee bonding, Workmen’s Compensation and
Occupational Disease, Commercial General Liability, minimum limits $500,000
(recommended $1,000,000) per occurrence, $1,000,000 (recommended $2,000,000) aggregate);
$1,000,000 products/completed operations aggregate, Property coverage subject to direct
physical damage including theft, vandalism, and malicious mischief, and automobile. This
insurance must be purchased from third parties. Neither Aire-Master nor any affiliates are a
source of insurance, nor does Aire-Master or any affiliate derive any revenue from your
insurance purchases.

The proportion of required purchases from Aire-Master in relation to all purchases and leases
will differ due to variations in territory size, population, demographics, any previous sales
activity, or other relevant factors. Required purchases from Aire-Master are estimated to range
from 20% to 50% of the costs of establishing, and 30% to 70% of the cost of operating the
Franchise.

Aire-Master may set specifications or approve suppliers in the future in written documents
available to you on request. Aire-Master currently has specifications and approved suppliers
for various products. For a list of approved suppliers or criteria for approving suppliers, please
contact Aire-Master. This may include minimum standards for delivery, performance,
warranties, design, appearance, local zoning, adequate quality control and capacity to supply
your needs promptly and reliably and other restrictions. Aire-Master may require evidence of
compliance, for example: submission of specifications, photographs, drawings, other
information and samples; testing of specimen items; and on-site inspection of manufacturing
or other facilities. Aire-Master may charge a fee for approval review, whether approved or not,
based on the costs and expenses incurred, including Aire-Master's internal and overhead costs.
Aire-Master may revoke approval based on failure to meet specifications or standards. You
may notify Aire-Master in writing if you want to purchase items or use suppliers not yet
approved. Aire-Master has not received a request to approve alternate supplies or suppliers,
and cannot provide the time period required for approval or cost. Aire-Master will notify you
if the request is granted, rejected or the status every 30 days, and charge you for AM’s actual
costs, including internal staff costs, plus an additional 30% for approval review.

There are no purchasing or distribution cooperatives.

Aire-Master negotiates purchase arrangements with suppliers, including price and terms, for
you.

Aire-Master does not provide material benefits to you based on your use of designated or
approved sources.

Aire-Master does not have any affiliates who derive revenue, rebates or other material
consideration based on the required purchases or leases.

You may not create or maintain an individual web site, newsgroup, forum or any other online
presence (except an e-mail account and the page(s) maintained for you by Aire-Master on its
web site in its discretion), or sell products or services over the internet, and Aire-Master
reserves the right to conduct all electronic commerce, including business-to-business and
business-to-consumer sales.
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9. FRANCHISEE'S OBLIGATIONS
FRANCHISEE'S OBLIGATIONS

This table lists your principal obligations under the franchise and other agreements.
It will help you find more detailed information about your obligations in these
agreements and in other items of this disclosure document.

Obligation Section in Agreement Item in FDD
(Franchise Agreement unless
stated)
a. Site selection and Not Applicable Not Applicable
acquisition/lease
b. Pre-opening purchases/leases 3.6 & 3.7 8
c. Site development and other pre- | Not Applicable 6,7, & 11
opening requirements
d. Initial and ongoing training 3.4,4.2,4.3,48 11
e. Opening Not Applicable 11
f. Fees 3.10, 4.3, 4.6, 4.10, 5.1, 5.2, 56,&7
5.7, 8.5, & 10.10
g. Compliance with standards and | 3.1-3.17 11
policies/operating manual
h. Trademarks and proprietary 3.6,3.17,4.1,7.1, & 7.0, 13 & 14
information
i Restrictions on 2.1,2.2,3.2,3.6,3.7,3.8,3.9, | 16
products/setvices offered 3.17,7.6 & Sch A
j Warranty and customer service 2.2,3.2,3.3,&3.6 11
requirements
k. Territorial development and 6.2,63&73
sales quotas
L Ongoing product/setvice 2.1,2.2,3.2,3.6,3.7,3.8,3.9, | 8
purchase 3.17,7.6 & Sch A
m. Maintenance, appearance, and 3.2,3.7,3.14 & 3.15 11
remodeling requirements
n. Insurance 3.13 6,7, &8
0. Advertising 3.6 6&11
P Indemnification 2.6 & 3.11 6
q. Owners' participation / 22&33 11& 15

management/staffing
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Records and reports 3.6,3.12,5.4,5.5,5.6,6.7& |6

9.1
Inspections and audits 3.6,4.6 & 5.7 6&11
Transfer 8 17
Renewal 6 17
Post-termination obligations 75& 7.6 17
Non-competition covenants 7.6g & h 17
Dispute resolution Not Applicable 17
Spousal Liability Initial paragraph, & 7.6.q State cover

page, 10 & 15

10. FINANCING

Aire-Master encourages you to obtain financial assistance through your financial sources or
other financial institutions that may be able to meet your needs. In some cases, Aire-Master
may finance a portion of the initial franchise fee, but is not obligated to. Aire-Master will not
finance other opening or operating costs, and will not guarantee your note or obligation to
any third party.

The terms for any financing by Aire-Master may include:

substantial down payment (e.g., 50% - 75%);

fixed or variable rate of up to 8% over prime at a Missouri Bank as selected by Aire-
Master (Promissory Note);

interest compounded monthly (interest on unpaid principal and interest calculated
monthly) (Promissory Note);

monthly payments (Promissory Note);

limited or short term (e.g., from 2 to 4 years) (Promissory Note);

security interest in your franchise, inventory, or other property (e.g., your residence)
(Security Agreement & UCC-1);

acceleration on default (the full balance is due immediately on default rather than just
1 payment to make up) (Promissory Note);

increased interest rate on default (2% over the note rate) (Promissory Note);

late payment fee (5% of the payment amount) (Promissory Note);

personal guaranty by spouse, shareholder, limited partner, or other equity owner, or
other guarantor;

balloon payments (lower payments because note amortized over a longer term (e.g.,
5 years) with full payment of the balance due prior to the end of such longer term
(e.g., in 3 years)) (Promissory Note); and or

graduated payments (Promissory Note).

If Aire-Master offers financing, the actual terms will take into consideration:

the prevailing commercial interest rate and terms;
financial institutions policy regarding lending to the type of business to be operated
by you;
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your credit standing, equity investment, business experience; and
additional security which you may have available.

The interest rate for the promissory note may not exceed the maximum allowed by state law.

No loans were made during the prior fiscal year. Commercial interest rates are constantly
changing and there is no guarantee this will be the interest rate if Aire-Master offers you
financing.

Any amount financed may be prepaid without penalty.

Your liability on default includes: you can be required to be paid the balance due in full
immediately; loss of your franchise and your investment; the interest rate may be enhanced
after default; loss of other property securing the debt (e.g. your residence and business
equipment); personal liability for any unpaid balance; inability to continue the franchised
business outside the franchise system; you may have to pay court costs and attorney fees for
collection; and you may lose all your defenses against Aire-Master as a result of the sale or
assignment of the loan.

Any financing document(s) will waive the right to a jury trial, to notice, presentment, or
dishonor on default, and notice of a collection action. The financing documents do not bar
you from asserting any defense against Aire-Master, or its assignee. A third-party assignee or
other person may be immune under the law to claims or defenses you may have against Aire-
Master.

Aire-Master has no past or present practice or plans to sell, assign, or discount to a third party,
any note, contract, or other instrument, but may do so.

Aire-Master has no arrangement with and receives no payments from any related or unrelated
third parties to provide financing.

Example financing documents are attached as follows:

A2 Promissory Note

A3 Security Agreement

A4 UCC Financing Statement [may require state specific form)]
A5 Guaranty

A6 Deed of Trust [may require state specific form)]

Actual documents used for any financing provided by Aire-Master to you may differ as to
some terms as indicated above.

11. FRANCHISOR'S ASSISTANCE, ADVERTISING, COMPUTER SYSTEMS,
AND TRAINING

Except as listed below, Aire-Master is not required to provide you with any assistance.
Before you open your business, Aire-Master will:

1. Designate your exclusive territory (Franchise Agreement, Section 2.1). Aire-Master
does not assist you in locating or negotiating the purchase or lease of the site from
which to operate Your business, conforming the premises to local ordinances and
building codes, obtaining any required permits, or constructing, remodeling, or
decorating the premises.
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Aire-Master determines availability of territory and your suitability to operate a
franchise in offering a license in any particular territory, but does not select a specific
business location for you. You may select any suitable business location in the territory
specified in “Schedule B” to the Franchise Agreement.

Provide training (Franchise Agreement Section 4). You and your managerial and
supervisory personnel who Aire-Master deems necessary must attend and complete
to Aire-Mastet's satisfaction the initial training program for up to 5 days conducted at
Aire-Master's main offices in Nixa, Missouri. Up to 5 employees may also attend.
Training is arranged with you individually in a timely fashion after signing the
agreement and must be completed within 30 days before opening. Seminars and
training lectures include introductions to the System, and marketing and sales
techniques. You will work in the field with an Aire-Master representative. An Aire-
Master representative will work with you for up to an additional 5 days in your own
territory. Instructors have at least 6 months experience in Aire-Master’s business and
operations in the area being taught. Experience of instructors: Company Background
/ Franchise Regulations: Peter Rathke, active in AM franchise relations since April
2023; Product Knowledge, Sales and Service: Melissa Cook, active with AM sales and
service functions since May 1996; Doug Burton, Media Director 1999-2003, at which
time he left for other employment. Doug returned to Aire-Master in November 2009
as Senior Designer and Developer actively involved in the development of the
franchise intranet and the newest version of AM Route-Master software; Franchise
Account: Tom Coleman, Comptroller from 2006, AM Chief Financial Officer from
December 2016; Product Ordering/Shipping: Marty Wotley, in AM manufacturing
and product fulfillment since June 2019, and Christy Martin, in AM manufacturing
and product fulfillment since October 1996; Media/Image; Patty Long, media and in
charge of AM media functions since August 2020. Training materials include lectures,
literature, and videotape presentation; Michael Kelly, in sales training at franchisee’s
location since 2014. Aire-Master has no additional charge for initial training or
instructional materials. You must pay your travel to and personal living expenses for
attending training other than for initial training, and some meals and local
transportation at initial training. Aire-Master is not obligated to assist You in hiring
or training other employees. Training is as follows:

TRAINING PROGRAM
Subject Hours of Class- Hours of on the | Location
room Training Job Training

Company Background 2 0 AM headquarters
Franchise Regulations 1 0 AM headquarters
Product Knowledge 6 0 AM headquarters
Service 4 8 AM headquarters
Sales 6 8 AM headquarters
Computer 2 0 AM headquarters
Franchise Account 1 0 AM headquarters
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Product Ordering/Shipping 1 0 AM headquarters
Media/Image 1 0 AM headquarters
Service & Sales 0 40 Franchisee location

Training is held at Aire-Master headquarters in Nixa, Missouri as new franchisees sign
franchise agreements, typically arranged within several weeks of signing the franchise
agreement. Aire-Master will pay the franchisee’s cost of initial training for 2 persons
in accordance with Section 3.6(a) of the Franchise Agreement. Additional training
programs or refresher courses may be required if it appears necessary.

During the operation of your business, Aire-Master will: (1) allow you or your
employees’ access to training sessions given other new franchisees as given if space is
available. Aire-Master reserves the right to charge for the additional training; and (ii)
continue to furnish sales promotional aids to you, for example, as price and data
books, sales plans, circular, advertising suggestions, cuts, and printed commercial and
technical information in regard to the products covered by the agreement as Aire-
Master has available (Franchise Agreement Section 4).

The typical length of time between signing of the Franchise Agreement and the
opening of the business is 30 days. Factors affecting this time include availability of
instructors and scheduling of training, and your availability.

Provide opening inventory directly which You must buy from Aire-Master. Aire-
Master does not assist You with providing for necessary equipment, signs, fixtures,
or supplies.

Furnish sales promotional aids to you, for example, as price and data books, sales
plans, circular, advertising suggestions, cuts, and printed commercial and technical
information in regard to the products covered by the agreement as Aire-Master has
available (Franchise Agreement Section 4);

Provide access to operations information through online training courses containing
mandatory and suggested specifications, standards, and procedures. These courses are
confidential. Aire-Master will modify course from time to time. Modification will not
alter your status and rights under the Franchise Agreement (Franchise Agreement,
Section 4).

License to you Aire-Master's proprietary computer software, implemented and in
continuous use since 1990. Aire-Master’s current software cannot be acquired from
other sources. Aire-Master's proprietary computer software is web-based, and is
accessible during the franchise license term, and cannot be used or accessed after
expiration of the term, termination, or non-renewal of the franchise for any reason.
The software coordinates and facilitates route scheduling, handles invoices and
statements (including sales tax calculation), account receivable ledger and aging
report, and calculates commissions and royalty and sales tax reports. General Ledger
and payroll are currently not included in the software. You must use the software.
The software is confidential and remains Aire-Master's property. Aire-Master may
modify this software from time to time (Franchise Agreement, Section 4).
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Aire-Master is currently evaluating new software vendors to replace the current
system. You will be required to use the new software provided by the software vendor
when Aire-Master makes its final determination and selection.

7. Assist you in the preparation of publicity programs (Franchise Agreement Section 4).

You must contribute to Aire-Master’s advertising fund. AM’s current advertising fees, is 1.0%,
and AM reserves the right to implement increase advertising fees up to a maximum of 4% of
Gross Service Billings in the future Aire-Master is not required to have an advertising program
for the product or service to be offered by you, or to spend any specific amount for advertising
generally or in any region or your Territory. Aire-Master has various product and service
brochures available for your use, which are generally prepared in-house. Aire-Master may allow
you to use your own advertising material if approved by Aire-Master as accurate and not
detrimental to the System, and you must advertise products under the designated marks. There
is no advertising council. You are not required to participate in a local or regional advertising
cooperative, but are encouraged to work with other area franchisees to stage several day
intensive sales campaigns.

You may not create or maintain an individual web site, newsgroup, forum or any other online
presence (except an e-mail account and the page(s) maintained for you by Aire-Master on its
web site in its discretion) (Franchise Agreement Section 3.10).

You must purchase a computer system from a third-party vendor meeting required
specifications, and license proprietary computer software from Aire-Master, see estimated
$3,000 to $4,500 cost range in Item 7 table. The computer industry is constantly advancing,
and Aire-Master sets minimum requirements at an appropriate level between state of the art
and obsolete. MINIMUM: Internet connected desktop or laptop computer with current
operating system (Windows or Mac) and laser printer. E-mail account. Up to date web browser
(Internet Explorer, Chrome, Firefox, Safari). Up to date security software. Minimum 6 Mbps
Broadband internet access, 12 Mbps or faster, and secondary internet provider recommended.
You must maintain the computer system in good working and operational condition. There
are no specific upgrade or update requirements. There are no contractual limits on the
frequency or expense of Your duty to maintain and update the computer system. You must
send information from your computer system to Aire-Master. Aire-Master does not have
independent access to information stored on Your computer system. Aire-Master has
transitioned to an online version of the software, and Aire-Master has access to Your
information stored in the online system. There are no contractual limits imposed on Aire-
Master’s access to Your information stored on Your computer system or the online system.

Aire-Master licenses its proprietary computer software to You, but the software remains Aire-
Mastet's property (see above). The software uses account name, address, and service history
information. Aire-Master has the right to receive and may have independent access to the
information and there is no contractual or other limitation or restriction on Aire-Mastet's right
to access the information (Franchise agreement, Sections 3.6, 4.5, 5.2 and 5.6). Aire-Master
has not approved any compatible equivalent program, and there is no other source for the
software. Aire-Master is not required to maintain, repair, upgrade or update the software. Aire-
Master maintains, repairs, upgrades, or updates its proprietary software without additional
charge to You, and requires You to use the software during the franchise license term. Aire-
Mastet's proptietary computer software is web-based, is accessible during the franchise license
term, and cannot be used or accessed after expiration of the term, termination, or non-renewal
of the franchise for any reason.
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12. TERRITORY

Aire-Master will grant you an exclusive area or territory described in and for the products
designated in the Franchise Agreement. You will receive a map of the exclusive territory. The
typical minimum population within an area is 500,000. There is no minimum area and size will
vary, dependent on population, projected markets, and other pertinent business
considerations. Population is determined based on the United States Census Bureau website
database. Your business office may be located anywhere within the territory.

Aire-Master will not establish a company owned business or another franchised outlet using
the Aire-Master or another trade name or trademark for the same or similar products or
services, but may for other products, including similar products or services and or products
ot services within the same market and may market certain products and services on a national
or regional basis, directly or through certain franchisees, without your consent, without
offering you those rights, and without compensation to you, using either the Aire-Master or
other trademark or trade name. Aire-Master sells similar products to those specified for the
franchised system under the trade name “EsScents” or under private label to others, including
distributors, who use and or resell these products to others, some of whom may be
competitors of franchises, and may use and or sell those products within the Territory. If you
service Shared Accounts in your Territory for which the customer pays Aire-Master, Aire-
Master will pay you the revenue from servicing those Shared Accounts using the Marks, less
Aire-Mastet’s commission (see Item 6). Otherwise, Aire-Master may arrange service for Shared
Accounts in your Territory without paying you any of the revenue from Shared Accounts in
your Territory. Aire-Master is not required to pay any compensation to you for soliciting or
accepting orders inside your franchise territory other than under the Marks. Aire-Master will
transfer to you any accounts for the Aire-Master franchise business it has from prior operation
of a company or franchise operation within the Territory. Aire-Master makes no covenants
regarding market competition.

Aire-Master has the right to negotiate on your behalf with Shared Accounts having locations
in your territory, including centralized billing, and you and all franchisees must service the
accounts on the agreed terms. You have exclusive rights to service shared accounts, and
receive the revenue from servicing those accounts less Aire-Master’s commission (see Item 06).
If you fail to service a Shared account, Aire-Master may service or arrange for service of the
Shared account, and you shall receive no part of the payment for such service or any other
compensation. Participation or failure to participate in the Shared Accounts program can also
affect renewal or territory licensing.

You may not sell, market, or transact business outside your specified territory, without Aire-
Mastet's prior consent. Aire-Master has the right to withhold consent for any reason or no
reason. You may not resell any article, product, or part of the Aire-Master System or any other
items bearing Aire-Master's marks, except sales for use with the Aire-Master System by you ot
a person holding a franchise from Aire-Master, either inside or outside of the territory
(Franchise Agreement Section 3.9). You do not require Aire-Master’s consent to relocate your
office or headquarters. You may not create or maintain an individual web site, newsgroup,
forum or any other online presence (except an e-mail account and the page(s) maintained for
you by Aire-Master on its web site in its discretion), or sell products or services over the
internet, and Aire-Master reserves the right to conduct all electronic commerce, including
business-to-business and business-to-consumer sales, including the internet and alternative
distribution using the Marks or other marks (Franchise Agreement Section 3.10). If you service

0009-03.17/Aire-Master of America FDD - 2024 DRAFT [v8].docxPage A. - 23



Shared Accounts for which the customer pays Aire-Master, Aire-Master will pay you the
revenue from servicing Shared Accounts using the Marks, less Aire-Master’s commission (see
above and Item 6), but otherwise is not required to pay you for those sales or services.

You have no option, right of first refusal, or similar rights, to purchase or acquire additional
territory or franchises (however, Aire-Master reserves the right in its sole discretion to grant
such rights).

The continuation of your territorial exclusivity and the franchise itself are dependent on
achievement of certain sales volume, market penetration or other requirements, and Aire-
Master has the right to alter or cancel your territory or franchise (Franchise Agreement,
Sections 3, 6 and 7). The minimum sales volume is determined by the Territory population
times $.10 per person. The initial minimum sales volume is '3 of the formula amount during
the 1st year and % of formula amount during the 2nd year of the initial 3-year period. At
renewal of the franchise agreement every 3 years, the minimum sales volume is adjusted for
changes in population, inflation by CPI and for changes in Aire-Master’s then current formula.

Aire-Master may reduce the minimum sales volume for unusual circumstances, for example,
low population density or sustained depressed economic conditions. Aire-Master may increase
the minimum sales volume for previous sales activity (either Aire-Master run or reacquired
from a franchisee), for example, if greater, current gross sales plus 2% growth annually.

13. TRADEMARKS

Aire-Master has registered its principal mark (as shown on the cover page of this FDD) with
the United States Patent and Trademark Office (“USPTO”) which registration is on the
principal register:

“Aire-Master” with perfume cloud as dot over '1'
Skunk with spray can surrounded by perfume cloud
Reg. No. 1,170,645
Reg. Date: September 22, 1981
Renewed: July 18, 2022.

Aire-Master has separately registered the “Aire-Master” word, and the skunk graphic portions
of its principal mark with the USPTO, which registrations are on the principal register:

Skunk with spray can surrounded by perfume cloud
Reg. No. 2,073,146
Reg. Date: June 24, 1997
Affidavits accepted: August 23, 2002
Renewed: July 29, 2017

“Aire-Master”
Reg. No. 2,108,159
Reg. Date: October 28, 1997
Renewed: October 28, 2017
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Skunk with spray bottle
Reg. No. 3,485,020
Reg. Date: August 12, 2008
Renewed October 28, 2017

“Aire-Master”
Reg. No. 3,862,868
Reg. Date: October 19, 2010
Renewed: January 12, 2021

Other registrations:

“Blue Lagoon”
Reg. No. 2,144,208
Reg. Date: March 17, 1998
Renewed: February 27, 2018

“You're N Control”
Reg. No. 1,945,636
Reg. Date: January 2, 1996
Renewed: March 10, 2016

“Paw Wash”
Reg. No. 1,921,420
Reg. Date: September 26, 1995
Affidavits accepted: May 29, 2001
Renewed: October 7, 2015

“Clean Streak™ 1.
Reg. No. 3,152,670
Reg. Date: October 10, 2006
Renewed: December 21, 2016

“go-gel” design plus words 1.
Reg. No. 3,074,631
Reg. Date: March 28, 2006
Affidavits accepted: April 18, 2012
Renewed: December 6, 2016

“AIRE MASTER" with four circles of increasing size forming the dot of the "I" and a
tornado funnel design appearing between the terms "AIRE" and "MASTER" »
Reg. No. 3,862,862
Reg. Date: October 19, 2010
Renewed: January 10, 2021

“Scentscapes” »
Reg. No. 85153944
Reg. Date December 18, 2012
Renewed June 6, 2023
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“Nuvera” »
Reg No. 4,859,928
Reg. Date November 24, 2015
Affidavits accepted: April 19, 2021

“McCauley’s” 2
Reg. No. 4,896,631
Reg. Date February 2, 2016
Affidavits accepted: June 28, 2022

1. These marks are not exclusive to the Aire-Master System and Aire-Master may sell products
under these marks to non-franchisees, including in your territory.

2. Mark not used in the Aire-Master System.

Aire-Master has separately registered a revised skunk graphic portion of its principal mark (as
shown on the cover page) with the USPTO:

Aire-Master has filed all required affidavits and renewals.

There is no currently effective material determination of the USPTO, Trademark Trial and
Appeal Board, Trademark Administrator of this state or any court, or pending infringement,
opposition, cancellation, or pending material litigation involving the principal trademarks,
except as disclosed in Item 3 (none).

No agreements currently in effect limit Aire-Master right to use or license the use of Aire-
Master's trademarks, service marks, trade names, logotypes, or other commercial symbols
material to the franchise.

Aire-Master knows of no infringing use of trademarks, service marks, trade names, logotypes,
or other commercial symbols materially affecting your use of the marks.

Aire-Master licenses you to operate your business using the Aire-Master trade name and
trademarks on a regulated and controlled basis while you continue to be a franchisee. You
must follow our rules when you use the marks. You cannot use the name or marks as a part
of a corporate name, alone or with modifying words, designs, or symbols, except as permitted
by Aire-Master in writing. You may not use Aire-Mastet's name or marks in connection with
the sale of an unauthorized products or services, or in any manner not authorized in writing
by Aire-Master. You must notify Aire-Master immediately when you learn about infringement
of or a challenge to your use of our marks. The franchise agreement does not require Aire-
Master to take affirmative action when notified of these uses or claims. The franchise
agreement does not require Aire-Master to participate in Your defense, and does not require
Aire-Master to indemnify You for expenses or damages if You are a party to an administrative
or judicial proceeding involving a trademark that Aire-Master licenses to You, or if the
proceeding is resolved unfavorably to You.
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Aire-Master retains all proprietary rights, goodwill and ownership of the marks, and any
permitted use by you does not grant you any ownership or proprietary rights in the marks.
You must modify or discontinue use of a mark if Aire-Master modifies or discontinues it or
notifies you to do so. Aire-Master is not required to reimburse you for your costs in doing so.

Aire-Master will take the action it believes necessary and appropriate to defend it rights in the
marks and against any infringement, but is not obligated to defend the marks or you against
claims of infringement or unfair competition from your use of the marks, or to reimburse you
for costs incurred in regard to a claim. Aire-Master has the right to control administrative
proceedings or litigation involving trademarks that Aire-Master licenses to You.

14. PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS, AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION
No patents or pending patent applications are material to the franchise.

Although Aire-Master has not filed an application for registration for copyright of its online
training (see Item 11), instructional material and other written information, it claims a
copyright and the information is proprietary. Aire-Master also claims certain information is
proprietary and a trade secret. You do not receive any rights in copyrighted items or trade
secrets, but can use the proprietary information subject to restrictions and limitations imposed
by Aire-Master, and must cease use if instructed to do so by Aire-Master. Item 11 describes
limitation on the use of the online training by You and your employees.

You must also tell us immediately when you learn about unauthorized use of this proprietary
information, or if you learn about an infringement or challenge to your or our use of these
copyrights or trade secrets. Aire-Master is not obligated to take any action, but will respond to
this information as it thinks appropriate, and has the right to control litigation. Aire-Master
will not indemnify you for losses brought by a third-party concerning your use of this
information or litigation about them. You must agree not to contest Aire-Master's interest in
the copyrighted items or trade secrets.

If Aire-Master decides to add, modity, or discontinue the use of an item or process covered
by copyright or trade secret, you must also do so. Aire-Master is not obligated to reimburse
you for the tangible costs of complying with this obligation.

Aire-Master reserves all rights to use and publish information about Aire-Master, the Aire-
Master System and franchisees on the internet and you may not maintain an individual web
site, newsgroup, forum or any other online presence except an e-mail account which Aire-
Master maintains for you on its web site.

There is no currently effective material determination of the USPTO, the United States
Copyright Office, or any court, or pending infringement, opposition, cancellation, or pending
material litigation involving any copyright, except as disclosed in Item 3 (none).

Aire-Master will take the action it believes necessary and appropriate to defend it rights in the
copyrights and against any infringement, but is not obligated to defend the copyrights or you
against claims of infringement from your use of the copyrights, or to reimburse you for costs
incurred in regard to a claim. Aire-Master has the right to control litigation.

Aire-Master claims proprietary rights in other confidential information and trade secrets,
including product formulas and composition, business operations and processes and methods,
which proprietary information may be communicated to the franchisee for use solely in
operation of the franchised business.
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15. OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE ACTUAL OPERATION OF THE
FRANCHISE BUSINESS

Unless otherwise approved in writing by Aire-Master, all individual sole proptietors/spouses,
designated managers, and if you are a corporation, partnership, limited liability company or
other entity besides a sole proprietorship, persons owning at least 66% equity interest, must
attend training and devote full time and be personally involved with the day-to-day franchise
operation.

Each individual who owns a 5% or greater interest in the franchisee legal entity (e.g.,
corporation, partnership, limited liability company or other entity besides a sole
proprietorship) must sign the Franchise Agreement guarantying all obligations of the
“Franchisee”, and agreeing to be bound by certain non-competition and non-disclosure
provisions.

Managers and employees must agree in writing to maintain trade secrets, and agree to
covenants not to compete.

16. RESTRICTIONS ON WHAT THE FRANCHISEE MAY SELL

You must offer for sale all approved products and services making up the Aire-Master System.
You can only purchase and or use products, materials, goods, or services for the Aire-Master
System supplied and or approved by Aire-Master. You cannot sell items making up the Aire-
Master System apart from your use in marketing the System except to another franchisee. You
may not sell goods or services comprising the System outside of your designated territory
without Aire-Mastet's express written permission. You are not restricted from soliciting any
customer located within your territory except Aire-Master has the right to negotiate on your
behalf with Shared accounts having locations in your territory, including centralized billing,
and you and all franchisees must service the accounts on the agreed terms.

Aire-Master has the right to add additional authorized products and or services that you must
offer. There are no limits on Aire-Mastet's right to do so.

Subject to Aire-Master’s revocation of consent, which Aire-Master may exercise in Aire-
Master’s sole discretion, You may sell or market goods and services unrelated to, or not
specifically identified as part of, the Aire-Master System. But, You may not sell or market
goods or services unrelated to the Aire-Master System using Aire-Master's Marks. For
example, use of Aire-Master’s Marks includes using vehicles bearing Aire-Master Marks, or
through service persons wearing clothing bearing Aire-Master Marks. You must cease sales
and marketing of goods or services unrelated to the Aire-Master System immediately on
receipt of notice from Aire-Master. You must report in Gross Income and pay royalties on all
sales of goods or services of goods or services either: (i) for odor control, scent marketing,
hygiene or cleaning, or similar, goods or services; or (i) to customers of the Aire-Master
System. You may not offer goods or services for odor control, scent marketing, hygiene or
cleaning, or similar goods or services except as part of the Aire-Master System and that are
reported in Gross Receipts subject to royalties.

You may not maintain a web site, newsgroup, forum or any other online presence, or sell
products or services over the internet, except an e-mail account and individual web page(s),
which Aire-Master maintains for you on its web site. Aire-Master reserves all rights to conduct
electronic commerce, including business to business and business to consumer sales.
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17. RENEWAL, TERMINATION, TRANSFER AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION
THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP

This table lists certain important provisions of the franchise and related agreements.
You should read these provisions in the agreements attached to this disclosure
document.

Provision

Section in
Franchise
Agreement

Summary

Length of the term of
the franchise

3&6.2d

3 years (AM can adjust (typically lengthen,
but including shorten) to coincide with
renewal cycle of other franchisees in
Franchisee’s region, but the total 20-year
maximum Term including renewals will
not be reduced)

Renewal or extension
of the term

7&8

"Renew" or "extend" means adding time
to the current period, typically 3 years, you
can operate the licensed business under
your franchise agreement, up to a
maximum of 20 years. Unless You notify
AM in writing, the franchise agreement
automatically renews using the then
current franchise agreement.

Requirements for you
to renew or extend

6.2,63, &
7.3

Mutual agreement with Franchisor; be
current and in compliance with the
Franchise Agreement, including meeting
sales quota, filing reports and paying
amounts due AM, participate in the
Shared Accounts program, and sign new
agreement which may contain materially
different terms and conditions from your
original agreement.

Termination by you

4.11

AM files Bankruptcy or is insolvent, fails
to perform its obligations after
opportunity to cure or to deliver product
within 45 days of opening

Termination by AM
without cause

Not
Applicable

Termination by AM
with “cause”

-

AM can only terminate for cause

g.

“Cause” defined -
curable defaults

30 days to cure on your financial
problems or failure to: meet quota; file
reports or pay amounts due AM; pay debt
to AM within 30 days of due date; meet
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standards; obtain required consent;
transfer on death

covenants during the
term of the franchise

h. | “Cause” defined - 7 Repeated defaults; conviction of crime;
defaults which cannot misuse or impairment of Marks or AM
be cured reputation; unacceptable change in your

control or management; unauthorized
transfer; unauthorized disclosure of
proprietary information or conduct of
business

i. | Your obligation on 7 Complete de-identification, payment of
termination/non- amounts due, return documents, manuals,
renewal route books etc. to AM, AM option to

purchase products & equipment (see t.
below), payment of royalties on any
similar or competing business

j. | Assignment of contract | 8.1 On notice, to assignee AM believes is
by AM willing and able to assume obligations

k. | “Transfer” by you - 8.7 Transfer of any actual or beneficial
defined interest in franchise or more than 34% of

other than sole proprietorship franchisee

L. | AM approval of 8.5 Transferee must meet qualifications for
transfer by you new franchisees & be approved by AM

m. | Conditions for AM 8.5 You must be current in all obligations &
approval of transfer pay all debt to AM, pay $10,500 fee,

execute release, transferee signs new
current form agreement, completes
training. A franchise (new or transferred)
must be operated for 3 years before it may
be transferred

n. | AM’s right of first 7.6.k, 7.6./, AM has 30 days to accept offer made to
refusal to acquire your | & 8.5 3rd party on same terms
business

o. | AM’s option to 75k &1 AM has the option to purchase equipment
purchase your business and supplies or expiration of term, non-

renewal, or termination

p- | Your death or disability | 7.1,j. Heirs can inherit if qualified or must

transfer to approved transferee, including
death of principal officer of other than
sole proprietorship franchisee

q. | Non-competition 4.8 Prohibits: ownership or affiliation in

competing business; hiring AM
employees; operation outside of Territory
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r. | Non-competition 8.5.h.,1.,j. Prohibits competition in Territory or

covenants after the (7.6.q) diversion of AM or its franchisees
franchise is terminated customers. 7.6.q requires payment of
or expires royalties on continuation of any similar or

competing business

s. | Modification of the 6.6 & 10.5 | You must sign new franchise agreement
agreement on renewal using AM then current form

t. | Integration/merger 10.5 Only the terms of the franchise agreement
clause are binding (subject to state law). Any

other promises may not be enforceable.
Nothing in the Agreement or in any
related agreement is intended to disclaim
the representations Aire-Master made in
the franchise disclosure document
furnished to You.

u. | Dispute resolution by | Not

arbitration or Applicable
mediation
v. | Choice of forum 10.14 You submit to litigation in Missouri,
subject to applicable state law
w. | Choice of law 10.1 Missouri law applies, subject to applicable

state law

18. PUBLIC FIGURES

Aire-Master does not use any public figures to promote its franchise.

19. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS

The FTC's Franchise Rule permits a franchisor to provide information about the actual or
potential Financial performance of its franchised and/or franchisor-owned outlets, if thete is
a reasonable basis for the information, and if the information is included in the disclosure
document. Financial performance information that differs from that included in Item 19 may
be given only if: (1) a franchisor provides the actual records of an existing outlet you are
considering buying; or (2) a franchisor supplements the information provided in this Item 19,
for example, by providing information about possible performance at a particular location or
under particular circumstances.

The earnings claims figure(s) does (do) not reflect the costs of sales, operating
expenses, or other costs or expenses that must be deducted from the gross revenue or
gross sales figures to obtain your net income or profit. You should conduct an
independent investigation of the costs and expenses you will incur in operating your
(franchised business). Franchisees or former franchisees, listed in the offering circular,
may be one source of this information.

The following financial performance representation is historic.
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At the end of calendar year 2023, Aire-Master had 115 franchises and 4 franchisor-operated
locations. 106 US franchises reported sales for the entire 2023 calendar year. Some of the 113
franchises had less than 12 months reporting, because they started mid-year, sold, retired, or
were terminated. The figures in this report include only the 103 full year US franchises, to keep
the numbers consistent. The 103 full-year franchisees had been in operation from 1 year to 45
years by the end of 2023. The one Canadian franchise is excluded, so as not to introduce the
exchange rate variable. No franchisor location data is included.

The sales figures presented on the following page are taken from the Adjusted Gross Sales on
monthly royalty reports the franchises submitted. Adjusted Gross Sales is gross sales minus
write offs and returns. These numbers do not reflect sales tax, the costs of sales, operating
expenses, or other costs or expenses that must be deducted to obtain net income or profit.
The figures do not include royalty fees and other franchise related expenses. You should
conduct an independent investigation of the costs and expenses you will incur in operating
your franchise business. Franchisees or former franchisees, listed in the franchise disclosure
document, may be one source of this information.

Some franchises have sold this amount. Your individual results may differ. There is no
assurance that you’ll sell as much.

Written substantiation for the financial performance representation will be made available to
the prospective franchisee upon reasonable request.

Monthly Sales, All Reporting Franchises

High $181,674.67
Average $27,690.60
Median $18,424.01
Low $1,698.25

Of all 106 reporting franchises, 38 exceeded the average.

Monthly Sales, Top 25%

High $181,674.67
Average $64,441.03
Median $52,205.94
Low $38,715.63

Of the 26 franchises representing this 25%, 7 exceeded the average.
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Monthly Sales, 2nd 25%

High $37,396.81
Average $27,385.47
Median $27,219.16
Low $18,700.55

Of the 26 franchises representing this 25%, 13 exceeded the average.

Monthly Sales, 3rd 25%

High $18,621.54
Average $13,937.73
Median $13,097.29
Low $10,654.33

Of the 27 franchises representing this 25%, 11 exceeded the average.

Monthly Sales, Bottom 25%

High $10,463.50
Average $6,346.99
Median $5,518.52
Low $1,698.25

Of the 27 franchises representing this 25%, 13 exceeded the average.

Aire-Master Customers

The following data comes from Aire-Master’s cloud-based customer database. The franchisees
enter their own customer data and specify which business sector each customer belongs to.
The sectors are based on the North American Industrial Classification System (NAICS) codes.
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Primary Markets

These customer types represent the largest segments of Aire-Master’s customer base,
accounting for 88% of the reported customers and 90% of reported Adjusted Gross Sales.

Real Estate Retail Trade Health Care
Apartment Buildings Other Real Car Dealersiskel Hospitals Doctors Offices Clinics
Estate Auto Parts Stores Tire Stores
Grocery Stores Convenience Stores
Food Service General Merchandise Other Retail Hotels
Trade

Full-Service Restaurants Fast Food
Restaurants Drinking Places

Hotels, Motels Campgrounds

Senior / Adult Care Recreation & Fitness Services
Nursing Homes Residential Care Casinosistp) Automotive Maintenance Personal
Facilities Adult Day Cares and Other | Golf Courses Country Clubs Fitness | Services Churchesiste!
Eldetly Setvices Centers Recreational Sports Arts & Other Services
Entertainment
Secondary Markets

These are important, but typically smaller, markets for Aire-Master. Some of these customer
types (Airports, Universities) are relatively few in number but are high profile accounts that
may help bring in other business. In some cases (Banks, Veterinary Services), these are markets
that are largely untapped and represent areas of potential future sales efforts. These customer
types account for 6% of the reported customers and 6% of reported Adjusted Gross Sales.

Social Assistance Rental & Leasing Services
Child Day Care Setvices Consumer Goods Rental

Other Social Assistance Other Rental & Leasing Services
Education Miscellaneous

Elementary & Secondary Schools Airport Operations

Colleges & Universities Banks & Credit Unions
Professional Schools Veterinary Services

Less Common Markets

Aire-Master provides services to customers in these segments, but they are less common than
the primary and secondary markets. Combined, however, these markets represent a significant
percentage of Aire-Master’s customers. These customer types account for 4% of reported
Adjusted Gross Sales.

Construction Professional and Technical Services

Manufacturing Management of Companies and Enterprises
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Wholesale Trade

Transportation and Warehousing

Finance and Insurance

Administrative and Support t Services

Public Administration

Customers by Market

Percentages derived from active customers of the reporting franchises
calendar year 2023. Customer counts were totaled and grouped by market.

as of the end of

Market %
Real Estate 26.41%
Food Setvice 18.31%
Retail Trade 12.37%
Health Care 9.88%
Hotels 8.26%
Services 6.69%
Senior / Adult Care 4.47%
Arts, Entertainment, and Recteation 3.86%
Daycare and Social Assistance 2.26%
Rental and Leasing Services 1.06%
Education 1.07%
Other Markets* 5.35%
Total 100.00

* Other Markets (approximate): Education 1%, Rental and Leasing 1%, and Daycate / Social

3%
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Education 1%

Rental and Leasing 1%

Daycare / Social 2%

Recreation

Adult Care Real Estate

Services

Hotels

Food Service
Health Care

Retail Trade
Sales by Market

Sales percentages derived from total gross sales of the reporting franchises. All posted invoices
in the year were totaled and grouped by market.

Market %
Real Estate 31.77%
Health Care 13.36%
Food Service 10.81%
Hotels 10.67%
Retail Trade 9.27%
Arts, Entertainment, and Recteation 5.92%
Senior / Adult Care 5.55%
Services 3.43%
Daycare and Social Assistance 2.29%
Education 1.37%
Rental and Leasing Services 0.89%
Other Markets 4.66%
Total 100.00%
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Rental and Leasing 1%

Education 1%
Daycare / Social 2%

Services 3%

Real Estate
Adult Care

Recreation

Retail Trade

Health Care
Hotels

Food Service

Other than the preceding financial performance representation, Aire-Master does not make
any financial performance representations. We also do not authorize our employees or
representatives to make any such representations either orally or in writing. If you are
purchasing an existing outlet, however, we may provide you with the actual records of that
outlet. If you receive any other financial performance information or projections of your future
income, you should report it to the franchisor's management by contacting Peter Rathke, P.O.
Box 2310, Route CC and Highway 160, Nixa, Missouri 65714, 417-427-6195, the Federal
Trade Commission, and the appropriate state regulatory agencies.

20. OUTLETS AND FRANCHISEE INFORMATION

Table No. 1
SYSTEMWIDE OUTLET SUMMARY FOR FISCAL YEARS ENDING MARCH
31, 2021/2022/2023
Outlet Type Year Outlets at the Outlets at the Net Change
Start of the End of the
Year Year
2021 111 109 -2
Franchised 2022 109 116 +7
2023 116 115 -1
2021 7 7 0
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Company 2022 7 7 0
Owned
2023 7 7 0
2021 118 116 -2
Total Outlets 2022 116 123 +7
2023 123 122 -1
Table No. 2

TRANSFERS OF FRANCHISES FROM FRANCHISEES TO NEW OWNERS
(OTHER THAN AIRE-MASTER) FOR YEARS 2021, 2022, AND 2023

State

Year

Number of Transfers

Alabama 10

2021

2022

2023

Alberta, Canada

2021

2022

2023

Arizona

2021

2022

2023

Arkansas 3

2021

2022

2023

British Columbia Canada

2021

2022

2023

California

2021

2022

2023

Colorado

2021

2022

2023

Delaware 11

2021

2022

2023

Florida 10

2021

2022

2023

Georgia 10

2021

2022

2023

Hawaii

2021

2022

2023

2021

(=) feol) fev) [} fev) fan)l fev) fen) fan)l fav) feu) fan) fav) o) fav) el Bl lev) i) o) fen) ferl El el Ll e} o) fer) vl fer) far) ev) Kan]
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Idaho 4

2022

2023

Ilinois 512

2021

2022

2023

Indiana

2021

2022

2023

Towa 5, 6,15

2021

2022

2023

Kansas s 7

2021

2022

2023

Kentucky

2021

2022

2023

Louisiana 3

2021

2022

2023

Massachusetts

2021

2022

2023

Maryland 1

2021

2022

2023

Michigan

2021

2022

2023

Minnesota g

2021

2022

2023

Mississippi

2021

2022

2023

Missouri 5,6, 7

2021

2022

2023

Montana

2021

2022

2023

Nebraska 13

2021

2022

2023

2021

(=) feo) few) fev) feo) fan) fav) fen) fan)l fen) o] fav) fer) o] far) fer) (o] fe) o) o] fev) o) o) el fer) o) fev) o) o) vl fev) o) fen) fen) o) fav) fen) o) fav) fa) fen) fan) fan) ol Kaw)
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Nevada 4

2022

2023

New Jersey 2

2021

2022

2023

New Mexico

2021

2022

2023

New York »

2021

2022

2023

North Carolina

2021

2022

2023

North Dakota g

2021

2022

2023

Oth 15

2021

2022

2023

Oklahoma

2021

2022

2023

Ontario, Canada

2021

2022

2023

Oregon

2021

2022

2023

Pennsylvania »

2021

2022

2023

Rhode Island

2021

2022

2023

South Carolina

2021

2022

2023

South Dakota 13

2021

2022

2023

Tennessee 19

2021

2022

2023

2021

(=) feo) fenl) vl fau) Lol ev) feo) fanl) fev) [ev] far) far) o) far) fer) el ol fe) [o] je) o) o) o) o) o) fev) o) o) vl fer) o) fen) fen) o) fav) fan) o) fav) fa) fen) fan) fan) Jan) Fan)
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Texas 3 2022 0
2023 1
2021 1
Utah 2022 0
2023 1
2021 0
Vermont 2022 0
2023 0
2021 1
Virginia 2022 0
2023 0
2021 0
Washington 2022 1
2023 0
2021 0
Wisconsin 12 2022 0
2023 0
2021 0
Wyoming ¢ 2022 0
2023 0
2021 2
Total 2022 4
2023 6
Table No. 3
STATUS OF FRANCHISED UNITS FOR YEARS 2021, 2022, AND 2023
State Year Outlets Outlets Termina | Non- Re- Ceased Outlets
at Start | Opened | -tions Re- acquired | Operations | at End
of Year newals | by AM | — Other of Year
Reasons
2021 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
Alabama 19 2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
2023 1 1 0 0 0 0 2
2021 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
Alberta, Canada 2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
2021 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
Arizona 2022 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
2023 3 0 1 0 0 0 2
2021 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
Arkansas 3 2022 1 1 0 0 0 0 2
2023 2 0 1 0 0 0 1
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Louisiana 3

2021

2022
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Virginia
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Washington
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Table No. 4

STATUS OF AIRE-MASTER OWNED OUTLETS

FOR FISCAL YEARS ENDING MARCH 31, 2021/2022/2023

State

Year

Outlets at
Start of
Year

Outlets
Opened

Outlets Re-
acquired from
Franchisee

Outlets
Closed

Outlets
sold to
Franchisee

Outlets
at End
of Year
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2021

—_

o

o

2022
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Tllinois
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2022

2023

Missouri

2021

2022

2023

Mississippi

2021

2022

2023

Oklahoma

2021

2022

2023

Oregon

2021

2022

2023

Totals

2021

2022
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| 2023 | 7 [ 0 | 0 [ 0 I0 K

Table No. 5
PROJECTED OPENINGS AS OF MARCH 31, 2023

States Franchise Projected New Projected Company
Agreements Signed | Franchises In The Owned Openings In
But Franchise Not | Next Fiscal Year The Next Fiscal Year
Open (2024) (2024)

Alabama 0 1 0

Delaware 0 1 0

Mississippi 0 1 0

Tennessee 0 1 0

Total 0 4 0

1. All numbers for each year are as of Aire-Master's March 31 fiscal year end. No franchisees
have failed to communicate within 10 weeks of the filing date.

2. New Jersey and New York franchises contain portions of Pennsylvania.
3. Texas Franchise contains portions of Arkansas and Louisiana.
4. Idaho franchise contains portions of Nevada.

5. Iowa franchise contains portions of Illinois. Missouri franchise contains a portion of
Kansas.

6. See Iowa and Missouri.

7. Missouri franchise contains portions of Kansas.

8. Aire-Master services some accounts from Missouri.

9. Idaho franchise contains portions of Wyoming.

10. Georgia franchise contains a portion of Tennessee, Florida, and Alabama.
11. Delaware franchise contains portions of Maryland.

12. Wisconsin franchise contains portions of Illinois.

13. South Dakota Franchise contains portions of Nebraska and Iowa.
14. New York franchise contains portions of Pennsylvania.

15. Ohio franchise contains portions of Pennsylvania.

16. Idaho franchise contains portions of Oregon.

Names, addresses and telephone numbers of current franchises are attached as “Exhibit B1".
The name and last known home address of franchisees (i) who have been terminated,
cancelled, not renewed, or otherwise voluntarily or involuntarily ceased to do business under
the franchise agreement during the most recent fiscal year, or (ii) who have not communicated
with Aire-Master within 10 weeks of the application date, is attached as Exhibit B2. There are
no Franchises or similar businesses owned by persons listed in Item 2 and their immediate
families.

0009-03.17/Aire-Master of America FDD - 2024 DRAFT [v8].docxPage A. - 46



In some instances, current and former franchisees sign provisions restricting their ability to
speak openly about their experience with Aire-Master. You may wish to speak with current
and former franchisees, but be aware that not all such franchisees will be able to communicate
with you. Franchisees have signed confidentiality clauses during the last three years.

If you buy this franchise, your contact information may be disclosed to other buyers while you
are a franchisee and when you leave the franchise system.

Aire-Master is not aware of any trademark-specific franchisee organization associated with the
Aire-Master franchise system being offered.

Aire-Master sponsors a franchisee advisory council as a communication link and to improve
relations between franchisees and Aire-Master. The council is advisory only without control
or veto over decisions. The council includes 4 Aire-Master personnel and 1 representative
from each of franchise region, currently 6. Aire-Master appoints franchisee members for 2
years terms, and they may serve consecutive terms. Aire-Master or the council may remove
members who do not fulfill their obligations. The council reviews and discusses new sales
methods and / ot products, time and money saving ideas, issues affecting the System and
possible solutions. Occasionally, the council calls on other employees, franchisees, or outside
experts for information or input.

21. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Attached as “Exhibit C” are the following financial statements for each of the three prior fiscal
years ending March 31, including audited profit and loss statements to Aire-Mastet's last fiscal
year end:

A. Audited "Independent Auditors’ Report" as of March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022, and
March 31, 2021 (reports covering two years each);
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22. CONTRACTS

The following contracts are attached:

Exhibit Al: Aire-Master of America Franchise Agreement (and Illinois, Maryland,
and North Dakota state specific addendums);

Exhibit A2: Promissory Note;

Exhibit A3: Security Agreement;

Exhibit A4: UCC Financing Statement;

Exhibit A5: Guaranty by Individual.

Exhibit A6: Deed of Trust;

Exhibit A7: Release and Consent to Transfer Agreement; and

Exhibit A8: Designated Persons / Patriot Act Affidavit.

Exhibit A9: Franchise Fee Deposit Agreement

Exhibit A10 Franchise Agreement Amendment for Qualifying Existing Franchises
Developing Additional Territory — Deferred Franchisee Fee Payment

Exhibit A.11 Franchise Agreement Amendment for Qualifying Existing Franchises
Developing Additional Territory — Option to Continue after Initial Two-Year
Term

Exhibit A.12 Franchise Agreement Amendment — Miscellaneous (add/remove
franchisee / revise Tettitory)

23. RECEIPTS

Two receipts acknowledging your receipt of this disclosure document are attached at the end
of this disclosure document as the last pages. Please return one receipt to us and retain the
other for your records.
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EXHIBIT A TO AIRE-MASTER OF AMERICA INC
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

AIRE-MASTER OF AMERICA INC FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

Franchise Owner:

Date:

Franchise Location:
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EXHIBIT A.1
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
OF
AIRE-MASTER OF AMERICA, INC.

THIS AGREEMENT, made this day of 202__, by and between Aire-
Master of America, Inc. (“Aire-Master”), a Missouri corporation, having its principal place of
business at 1821 N. Hwy CC, Nixa, Missouri, with mailing address of P.O. Box 2310, Nixa,
Missouri 65714 (hereinafter referred to as “Aire-Master”) and , a
(sole proptietorship/corporation/ partnership), dba Aire-Master of
(address)
(“Franchisee”), and and ,
(address) (individually “Guarantor” or collectively “Guarantors”), who ate
individually guarantying performance by Franchisee.

The registered agent for service of process against Aire-Master in the state of

is
and the address of
said registered agent is

WHEREAS, Aire-Master is the manufacturer, owner and operator of an odor control, scent
marketing, and commercial hygiene service system and products utilized therein; and

WHEREAS, Franchisee desires to be appointed as the exclusive sales representative for the
Aire-Master System (see below) for the Tertitory (see below).

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements herein
contained, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties hereby
agree as follows:

1. DEFINITIONS The following terms shall have the meaning set forth below in this
Agreement.

1.1 “Aire-Master System” or “System” means operational concepts and methods,
forms, manuals, and other literature, products, patents, copyrights, trade secrets, the
identification schemes, standards, specifications, training procedures, advertising and
marketing programs, methods, formats, operating procedures and other concepts etc.;

1.2 “Anniversary Date” means the first day of the initial term of this Agreement
specified in Section 0;

1.3 “Anniversary Day” means the calendar month and day for the first day of the
initial term of this Agreement specified in Section 0;

1.4 “Authorized Name” means “Aire-Master of e

1.5 “Computer Software” means Aire-Master’s proprietary computer software,

which may be provided by Aire-Master or a third party software vendor;

1.6 “Computer Equipment” means the computer and peripherals required to be
purchased by Franchisee listed and meeting certain specifications in Schedule A;
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1.7 “CPI” means the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers-All Ttems, as
published by the United States Government Printing Office, and prepared for the Joint
Economic Committee by the Council of Economic Advisors, or if unavailable, by its
equivalent to be selected by Aire-Master;

1.8 “Designated Shareholder” means that person or persons who are required in the
individually or in aggregate to maintain minimum ownership and controlling interest in
any entity granted an Aire-Master Franchise if other than a sole proprietorship, including
partner in a partnership, member in a limited liability company or otherwise. Those
person(s) and  the  percentage  interest requited of  each  is/are

5

1.9 “Designated Principal Executive Officer” means the person or persons each of
who must remain in office and effective control of Franchisee’s operation if Franchisee is
other than a sole proprietorship, and includes the comparable positions if there are no
officers, for example, only the managing member of a limited liability company, or trustee
of a trust. Those petson(s) is/are

5

1.10  “Franchise Agreement” or “Agreement” means this agreement;
1.11  “GAAP” means generally accepted accounting principles;

112 “Gross Service Billings” means all sales and receipts by Franchisee, including
gross charges for labor, equipment, products, leases, or rental agreements from the Aire-
Master System;

1.13  “Licensed Franchise Operation” means the franchise operated by Franchise
according to the System under the license granted by this agreement;

1.14 “Proprietary Mark” or “Mark” means trade names, trademarks, service marks,
trade dress, copyrights, logos, commercial symbols, insignia, decals, Aire-Master’s
signature, or monogram etc., collectively “Proprietary Marks” or “Marks”;

1.15  “Principal Shareholder” means that person or persons (including aggregate
interest of spouses) who directly or indirectly have 5% or more legal, beneficial or
controlling interest, in any entity granted an Aire-Master Franchise, and if any such entity
is other than a sole proprietorship, including partner in a partnership, member in a limited
liability company or otherwise;

1.16  “Royalty” means the recurring percentage of Gross Services Billings fee paid by
Franchisee to Aire-Master;

1.17 “Term” means the initial term of this Agreement, and any renewal term, if
applicable, as provided in Sections 0 and 0, except as specifically stated;

1.18  “Termination” means the termination of this Agreement and the rights granted
by expiration of the Term, termination or non-renewal, by Aire-Master or Franchisee,
voluntarily or involuntarily, regardless of cause, except as specifically stated;

1.19  “Territory” means the geographic area specified in Schedule B, attached to the
Agreement and incorporated herein by reference. Schedule B shall include a map of the
exclusive territory.
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1.20  “Training Courses” means the online training courses containing mandatory and
suggested specifications, methods, standards and procedures for the System.

2. APPOINTMENT

2.1 Franchisee shall be the sole and exclusive authorized independent contractor for
the sale of the Aire-Master products specified in Schedule A and services according to the
System in the Territory. See provisions for Aire-Master to service National accounts if
Franchisee fails to do so at Section 0. Franchisee has no option, right of first refusal, or
similar rights, to purchase or acquire additional territory. Franchisee shall purchase the
items specified in Schedule A required for operation of the Licensed Franchise Operation
from Aire-Master or third parties as required by this Agreement.

2.2 Franchisee accepts such appointment and agrees to use its best efforts to sell the
specified products and services as required by this Agreement;

2.3 The initial term of this Agreement begins 202__, and

continues through _, 202__, with successive Franchisee options to

renew for additional successive three (3) year terms through a final termination date of
, 20 as limited by this Agreement;

2.4 This Agreement does not create a fiduciary relationship between Aire-Master and
Franchisee;
2.5 Franchisee shall be an independent contractor:

a. Neither Franchisee or any of its employees shall be deemed or construed to be
an employee, servant, agent, legal representative, subsidiary, joint venturer or partner
of Aire-Master. Franchisor is not responsible for franchisee’s employment decisions,
and Franchisee will make all decisions on hiring, firing, promoting and disciplining
employees. All of Franchisee’s employee forms shall name franchisee as the employer.

b. Neither Franchisee nor its employees shall be entitled to the benefits as an Aire-
Master employee, for example only, workmen’s compensation, group insurance,
vacation, pension plan, or unemployment insurance.

c.  During the Term Franchisee shall hold itself out to the public as an independent
contractor operating the Licensed Franchise Operation pursuant to this Agreement.
Franchisee agrees to take any affirmative action necessary to do so, as Aire-Master
may specify in writing.

2.6 Franchisee is not authorized to and shall not make any contract, agreement,
warranty or representation on Aire-Master’s behalf, or incur any debt or other obligation
in Aire-Master’s name. Aire-Master shall not assume liability for, or be deemed liable as a
result of any action, act or omission of Franchisee or any claim or judgment against
Franchisee from its conduct of the Licensed Franchise Operation. Franchisee agrees to
indemnify and hold Aire-Master harmless against all liabilities, claims etc. from
Franchisee’s operation of the Licensed Franchise Operation, together with all costs of
defending against them, including attorney’s fees. However, Franchisee shall not be
required to indemnify for any claims from a breach of this Agreement by or other civil
wrongs of Aire-Master.
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2.7 Aire-Master may develop and market new products or services directly or
indirectly without offering Franchisee the marketing opportunity, or grant general and
limited marketing rights to third parties or certain franchisees without offering identical
ot similar rights to Franchisee and/or other franchisees.

2.8 Aire-Master represents that to its knowledge it is the exclusive owner of all right,
title and interest in and to the Marks and the System.

2.9 Franchisee acknowledges Aire-Mastet’s ownership and validity of the Marks and
the System and expressly covenants that during the Term and after Termination it shall
not directly or indirectly contest or aid in contesting the ownership or validity of the Marks
or the System, or take any other action in derogation of the Marks or the System.

3. RIGHTS AND DUTIES OF FRANCHISEE

3.1 Unless otherwise specified, the term “Franchisee” as used in this Section 3 shall
include, collectively and individually, all officers, directors, general partners, limited
partners, members and other holders of five (5%) percent or more of the legal or beneficial
interest of Franchisee. “Franchisee” shall also include any of the above parties relative to
any corporation or other entity directly or indirectly controlling Franchisee.

3.2 During the Term Franchisee shall maintain the sales and service facilities,
equipment and supplies needed to adequately sell Aire-Master’s products and provide the
services covered by this Agreement in conformity with uniform methods, standards and
specifications required by Aire-Master. Aire-Master may issue or revise methods,
standards and specifications from time to time in writing to insure that the highest degree
of quality and service is uniformly maintained. Franchisee shall devote its best efforts to
develop the business, promote sales and obtain orders for Aire-Master products and
services under the System throughout the Territory.

3.3 Except as otherwise approved in writing by Aire-Master, during the Term
Franchisee shall (and shall require its Designated Principal Executive Officers(s) and
designated managers to) devote full time, energy and best efforts, to the management and
operation of the Licensed Franchise Operation.

3.4 Franchisee shall pay all of its own expenses to operate its business, for example
only, rent, telephone, wages and/or commissions, and be exclusively liable for the
payment of all taxes, contributions, or other sums payable for unemployment
compensation or insurance, old age retirement benefits, and all other Federal, State, and
local payroll taxes payable by reason of employment of any person by it.

3.5 Franchisee shall employ and compensate persons on conditions it deems proper
to operate the Licensed Franchise Operation.

a. All persons employed by Franchisee in connection with the Licensed Franchise
Operation shall be Franchisee’s employees and not Aire-Master employees.
Franchisee will make all decisions on hiring, firing, promoting and disciplining
Franchisee’s employees. Aire-Master is not responsible for Franchisee’s employment
decisions Franchisee shall pay and be solely liable for any taxes or contributions levied
by any State or Federal law on payrolls of or employment by Franchisee, and Aire-
Master shall not be liable for such charges.
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b. Franchisee shall have a written contract with such persons containing a provision
that they are the employees of Franchisee, are to be paid by him alone, and that
Franchisee is acting individually and not as an agent or attorney for Aire-Master.

c. Franchisee shall require its employees and or independent contractors to execute
a non-compete and non-disclosure agreement complying with applicable law.
Franchisee must provide a copy of non-compete agreements to Aire-Master. The
agreement will at a minimum prohibit competition for one (1) year from an
employee’s termination for any reason within the geographic area the employee served
on behalf of Franchisee. The agreement will also prohibit disclosure of Aire-Master
proprietary information with no limit on time or geographic area.

3.6 Franchisee shall:

a. Make itself, its managerial and supervisory staff and employees available for such
training as Aire-Master deems necessary, including a minimum of five (5) days at Aire-
Master’s main office. Franchisor training of Franchisee’s non-manager employees is
not required. Aire-Master does not require Franchisee’s non-manager and non-
supervisory employees to attend Aire-Master provided training. Franchisee shall pay
all expenses incurred in training other than initial training, for example only, the cost
of travel, room, board, and wages;

b. Make itself, its managerial and supervisory staff, and its employees available for
additional training or other assistance on a routine basis or as requested by Aire-
Master. Aire-Master will pay the representative’s salary, but Franchisee shall pay the
representative’s travel, meal and lodging expenses, which Aire-Master has the right to
set as a per diem fee;

c. Sell or offer for sale all approved products and services;

d. Advertise the products and services under the trade name and or Marks, as
authorized by Aire-Master and use all such sales forms, records, advertising, and
printed matter as may be furnished by Aire-Master;

e. Permit Aire-Master or its agents to enter Franchisee’s business premises at any
reasonable time to conduct inspections;

f.  Permit Aire-Master to remove without payment samples of any inventory items
in amounts reasonably necessary for testing by Aire-Master or an independent,
certified laboratory, to determine whether said samples meet Aire-Master’s then
current standards and specifications;

g. Maintain a clean and safe place of business in compliance with all applicable laws,
and with Occupational Safety and Health Act standards and conduct Franchisee’s
operation on sound business principles;

h. Be solely responsible for the services and results of such services performed by
Franchisee, with such responsibility remaining a continuing obligation beyond
Termination;

i.  Give Aire-Master and those acting under its authority the right to reasonably and
fairly use Franchisee’s name, photograph or biographical material in any publication,
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circular or advertisement related to the Aire-Master’s business or Franchisee, in any
place for an unlimited period, without compensation;

j. Purchase the Computer Equipment, and install and use the Computer Equipment
and Computer Software in the Licensed Franchise Operation;

k. Maintain internet access, including an e-mail account, which may be through a
local internet service provider (“ISP”) or online service, and an internet e-mail
account.

L. Comply with all other requirements in this Agreement, and as otherwise by Aire-
Master in writing.

3.7 Franchisee shall only use products or materials or perform services approved by
Aire-Master with the System, and shall not use specified products or materials except in
operation of the Licensed Franchise Operation.

a. Franchisee shall purchase adequate quantities of items specified on Schedule A
or otherwise specified by Aire-Master in writing for use with the System to
satisfactorily supply the demands of customers within the Territory. Franchisee shall
purchase the items only from Aire-Master, another Aire-Master franchisee, or a
person licensed or approved by Aire-Master to manufacture and sell the items to its
franchisees. Aire-Master may amend or supplement the list of specified products or
services and Franchisee is required to offer such products and services.

b. Franchisee may purchase equipment, supplies and other products and materials
not listed on Schedule A and required for the operation of the franchised business
from Aire-Master or suppliers who demonstrate to Aire-Master’s continuing
reasonable satisfaction the ability to meet standards and specifications established by
Aire-Master from time to time, and who possess adequate quality controls and
capacity to supply Franchisee’s needs promptly and reliably. Aire-Master agrees to
furnish to any prospective supplier the manufacturing specifications for these
products and supplies.

c. Franchisee shall not resell any article, product, or part of the System, or any other
items bearing Aire-Master’s Marks except sales for use in connection with the System
by Franchisee or a person holding an Aire-Master franchise. Subject to Aire-Master’s
revocation of consent, which Aire-Master may exercise in Aire-Mastet’s sole
discretion, You may sell or market goods and services unrelated to, or not specifically
identified as part of, the Aire-Master System. But, You may not sell or market goods
or services unrelated to the Aire-Master System using Aire-Master's Marks. For
example, use of Aire-Master’s Marks includes using vehicles bearing Aire-Master
Marks, or through service persons wearing clothing bearing Aire-Master Marks. You
must cease sales and marketing of goods or services unrelated to the Aire-Master
System “immediately on receipt of notice from Aire-Master. You must report in Gross
Income and pay royalties on all sales of goods or services of goods or services either:
(i) for odor control, scent marketing, hygiene or cleaning, or similar, goods or services;
or (i) to customers of the Aire-Master System. You may not offer goods or services
for odor control, scent marketing, hygiene or cleaning, or similar goods or services
except as part of the Aire-Master System and that are reported in Gross Receipts
subject to royalties.
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d. Franchisee shall accept and pay for all shipments of products on terms and at
prices as from time to time specified by Aire-Master. Each shipment shall constitute
a separate sale.

e. Aire-Master is not liable for delay in manufacturing or delivering any products
referred to in this Agreement if due to fires, strikes, disputes with workmen, delays in
transportation, governmental demands or requirements, or any causes beyond Aire-
Master’s control. The existence of any such cause or causes of delays shall extend the
time of Aire-Master’s performance by the time or times measured by the cause or
causes of delay.

3.8 During the Term Franchisee shall not:

a.  Own, maintain, engage in, be affiliated with, assist, or have any interest in any
odor control or service business similar to, or competing in any manner with the
System. Aire-Master shall have the right in determining whether competition or
similarity exist;

b. Divert or attempt to divert directly or indirectly any business or customer of the
Licensed Franchise Operation to any competitor, or do or perform directly or
indirectly any other act injurious or prejudicial to the goodwill associated with the
Marks and System;

c.  Solicit for employment by Franchisee any person who is at that time employed
by Aire-Master or otherwise directly or indirectly to induce such person to leave Aire-
Master’s employ. This limitation does not prevent Franchisee from employing such
persons who initiate or request Franchisee to employ them.

3.9 During the Term or after Termination Franchisee shall not distribute, sell, solicit
or accept orders, or in other ways make commercial or noncommercial use of the products
or services offered for sale by Aire-Master or making up a part of System beyond the
Territory, including through the Internet, catalog sales, telemarketing, direct marketing, or
any other channels of distribution, without Aire-Mastet’s express written permission.
Aire-Master has the right to grant such permission in Aire-Master’s sole and exclusive
discretion and any violation of this paragraph shall be grounds for termination as provided
in this Agreement.

3.10 During the Term, and after termination of the franchise agreement during any
non-competition or non-solicitation or similar period as provided herein, Franchisee shall
not directly or indirectly create or maintain an individual web site, newsgroup, forum or
any other online presence (except e-mail), or sell products or services over the internet, or
engage in electronic commerce, including business-to-business and business-to-consumer
sales, which are part of or similar or competing with the Aire-Master System. Aire-Master
shall have right to determine whether competition or similarity exist. Aire-Master reserves
the right for itself to use or publish information regarding Aire-Master or the Aire-Master
System in any medium, including electronically through the internet or otherwise, and to
conduct all electronic commerce, including business-to-business and business-to-
consumer sales.

3.11  Franchisee is licensed to use Aire-Master’s intranet and publicly accessible web
site, each accessed through the internet, if such is maintained by Aire-Master, on the terms
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and conditions as provided herein and as are incorporated in the Operations Manual or a
separate Internet Agreement or Manual, which terms Aire-Master has the right to modify
from time to time in Aire-Master’s sole discretion. Use of the Aire-Master intranet is a
privilege and Aire-Master has the right to limit, suspend or terminate Franchisee’s license
to use the intranet in Aire-Master’s sole discretion. Terms of use may include access
procedures and authorized users, downloading and submission procedures, decorum,
rules regarding communication with third parties such as responsiveness and courtesy,
prohibition against spamming (sending unsolicited e-mail), defamatory statements,
copyright infringement, linking permissions and privacy policies regarding the collection
and use of information, and circumstances under which a Franchisee’s privilege of use of
the intranet and web sites may be limited, suspended or terminated, and such other matters
as Aire-Master in its sole discretion deems advisable and or appropriate. Aire-Master is
the owner of all intellectual property (domain name, “look and feel”, object and source
code, graphics, images, trade dress, trademarks and copyrights) and information collected
or gathered vis-a-vis the web site, including customer information. Information submitted
by Franchisees for inclusion on the intranet or publicly accessible web site shall become
the property of Aire-Master, and Franchisee by such submission grants to Aire-Master a
perpetual license to use any property in which Franchisee has any protectable interest.
Aire-Master may monitor e-mail or communications on any chat board, bulletin board,
etc., and no such communications are private. Franchisee shall not copy, print, quote,
extract, e-mail, store, save on a local computer or otherwise except incidental copies which
are required for the technological performance of the intranet provided Franchisee does
not store or otherwise store or copy such data (i.e., data back-ups), or reverse engineer
any portion of the intranet or Aire-Master’s publicly accessible web site, nor upload any
virus, Trojan horse, mole, worm or other harmful element, and Franchisee agrees to
indemnify and hold Aire-Master harmless therefrom. Aire-Master disclaims any
representation or warranty, including implied or fitness for a particular purpose, as to the
functionality, including hours of operation and accessibility or minimum downtime, of the
intranet or web site or the content thereof or links to or from third parties or their web
sites, shall not be liable to Franchisee or any other person for their use or any other
persons use of the intranet or web site. Aire-Master disclaims any representations or
warranties as to the functionality of the intranet and or the content thereof. Maintenance
of secrecy of the Franchisee’s password is Franchisee’s responsibility and Franchisee
acknowledges that maintaining such secrecy is of particular importance to the System and
trade secrets of Aire-Master. Use of the intranet constitutes acceptance of the terms and
conditions.

3.12 Franchisee shall attend the annual Franchisee Convention and pay the
associated expenses, for example, transportation, meals and lodging, cost of meeting
facilities and wages or salary for any of Franchisee’s employees who attend. Aire-Master
may establish a set fee for the cost of the conference, including those expenses Aire-
Master deems advisable, and may require Franchisee to pay an allocable portion of such
costs monthly, quarterly, or semi-annually. Aire-Master may charge a set fee payable
monthly or quarterly (currently, $1,1800 annually, $425 quarterly), including attendance,
hotel room charge for the conference days and certain meals designated by Aire-Master,
for up to two persons, but not including your travel expenses.
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Franchisee shall obtain prior to providing the licensed services, maintain in full force and
effect continuously during the Term; and pay all expenses for insurance coverage as
specified below (“Required Insurance”). Aire-Master reserves the right to supplement the
specifications below for all franchisees from time to time in writing, and Franchisee shall
be required to revise its coverage or obtain additional coverage.

a. Required Insurance:

i.  Bonding of Franchisee’s employees for a minimum of Ten Thousand Dollars
($10,000.00) for theft of franchisee’s property and/or money (Coverage is also
available to bond for theft of customer’s property).

ii. Workmen’s Compensation and Occupational Disease insurance required by
statute or rule for the state(s) where Franchisee operates the Licensed Franchise
Operation;

ili. Commercial General Liability insurance covering Franchisee for any loss,
liability, personal injury, death or property damage or expense from or in
connection with the Licensed Franchise Operation. Minimum limits are $500,000
pet occutrence; $1,000,000 products/completed operations aggregate; $1,000,000
general aggregate. Limits recommended are One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00)
pet occutrence; Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) products/completed
operations aggregate; Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) general aggregate.

iv. Property coverage subject to direct physical damage including theft,
vandalism, and malicious mischief.

v. Automobile liability coverage for owned, hired and non-owned vehicles, with
a minimum limit of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) combined single limit.

b. Policies shall be written by an insurer satisfactory to Aire-Master or an Aire-
Master agent. The company must have an A.M. Best’s rating of at least A VII.

c. Franchisee shall name Aire-Master, its officers, directors, employees and agents
as an additional insured under the Required Insurance on a primary basis.

d. The Required Insurance shall contain a provision requiring Thirty (30) days
advance written notice to Aire-Master prior to cancellation.

e. Franchisee shall furnish Aire-Master with a certificate of insurance as proof of
coverage.

. Franchisee’s obligation to obtain and maintain insurance is not limited or reduced
by any insurance maintained by Aire-Master, and Franchisee’s performance of the
obligation to obtain and maintain insurance does not relieve it of liability under the
indemnity provisions in Section 0 of this Agreement.

g. If Franchisee fails to procure or maintain the insurance for any reason, or to
provide proof of coverage to Aire-Master, Aire-Master has the right at its option but
not the obligation to procure insurance. If Aire-Master obtains insurance Franchisee
shall pay Aire-Master immediately upon notice for the cost of insurance and a
reasonable fee for Aire-Mastet’s expenses in procuring the insurance.
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3.14  Franchisee’s organization and operation as a corporation (including incorporation
of Franchisee’s existing Licensed Franchise Operation) shall be conditioned on the
following requirements:

a. The Designated Shareholder shall remain the legal and beneficial owner(s) of not
less than sixty-six (66%) percent of the total voting capital stock (or other manner or
evidence of ownership and control, as applicable), during the Term, with the effective
unencumbered right to vote said stock and or otherwise exercise control. The loss or
surrender of said ownership, effective unencumbered right to vote said stock, or
otherwise control the corporation by any means whatever, shall constitute a breach
of the terms of this Agreement.

b. The Designated Principal Executive Officer shall remain the principal executive
officer(s) in charge of corporation’s operations during the Term.

c. Franchisee’s directors, principal executive officers, and shareholders
(shareholders with 5% or greater interest) shall at all times be personally bound by the
terms of this Agreement, and Franchisee shall not transfer an interest in Franchisee
to or employ any person or entity until they have agreed in writing to be personally

bound;

d. Each stock certificate of Franchisee shall be conspicuously endorsed upon its face
with a statement satisfactory to Aire-Master that the stock is held subject to, and that
any assignment or transfer of the stock is subject to, all restrictions imposed upon
transfers or assignments by this Agreement. Franchisee shall maintain stop transfer
instructions against the transfer on its records of any securities with voting rights or
evidencing ownership interest and shall not issue securities unless they bear
substantially the following legend conspicuously and legibly on the face thereof:

“The transfer of this stock is subject to the terms and conditions of a
Franchise Agreement with Aire-Master of America, Inc. Reference is
made to the provisions of the Franchise Agreement and the Articles and
By-Laws of this Corporation”;

e. Certitied copies of Corporate Franchisee’s Articles of Incorporation, By-laws,
other governing documents, and Board of Directors resolutions authorizing the
corporation to enter into this Agreement, shall be promptly furnished to Aire-Master;

f. If Franchisee is an individual or a partnership and wishes to incorporate,
Franchisee shall obtain Aire-Master’s prior written approval for transfer of the rights
and duties hereunder to the new corporation, and otherwise comply with the
requirements of this Agreement to operate as corporation. Aire-Master shall transfer
the franchise for no additional charge for the remainder of the term in accordance
with the provisions of Sections 0 to 0, provided that the entity assumes all duties of
Franchisee and be bound.

3.15  Franchisee’s organization and operation as any entity other than a sole
proprietorship, for example, a partnership, limited partnership, limited liability company,
trust etc. (including change of form of organization of Franchisee’s existing Licensed
Franchise Operation) shall be conditioned on requirements comparable to those
applicable to corporations at Section 0 above.

0009-03.17/Aire-Master of America FDD - 2024 DRAFT [v8].docxPage A. - 60



3.16  Franchisee shall promptly pay when due all taxes levied or assessed, for example
only, unemployment and sales taxes, and all accounts and other indebtedness of every
kind incurred by Franchisee in the conduct of the Licensed Franchise Operation. If
Franchisee has a bona fide dispute as to liability for taxes assessed or other indebtedness,
it may contest the validity or the amount of the tax or indebtedness in accordance with
procedures of the taxing authority or applicable law. However, in no event shall
Franchisee permit a tax sale, seizure by levy of execution or similar writ or warrant, or
attachment by a creditor to occur against the assets and or premises of the Licensed
Franchise Operation or any improvements thereon.

3.17 Franchisee shall comply with all federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations,
and timely obtain all permits, certificates or licenses necessary for the full and proper
conduct of the Licensed Franchise Operation, for example only, licenses to do business,
fictitious name registration, sales tax permits, and fire clearances.

3.18  Franchisee may freely set prices and discounts on Franchisee’s services or
products, except as provided in this Agreement for national accounts negotiated for by
Aire-Master on franchisee’s behalf, and Franchisee agrees to pay Aire-Master’s
National/Shared Account current rates for the processing fee (currently 2%) and
commission (currently 10%), currently totaling 12% (see Section 0).

3.19  Franchisee understands and acknowledges that all details of the System are
important to Franchisee and Aire-Master in order to develop and maintain high and
uniform standards of quality and service and protect and enhance Aire-Master’s reputation
and goodwill. Franchisee shall comply with any quality standards that Aire-Master from
time to time sets with regard to the appearance and use of the Marks and licensed products
and services, and warrants that all licensed products and services bearing the Marks shall
be of a nature consistent with the high standards of quality and excellence established over
the years with respect to the Marks. Franchisee’s right and authorization to use the Marks
is non-exclusive and limited as provided in this Agreement. Franchisee’s rights and duties
regarding Marks shall be as follows:

A. Franchisee may use only those Marks designated by Aire-Master in Schedule C
or otherwise in writing, and only in connection with operation of the System.
Franchisee agrees to provide and advertise the System only under the Marks
designated by Aire-Master. No other Marks now existing or yet to be developed or
acquired by Aire-Master may be used by Franchisee unless authorized in writing by
Aire-Master. Franchisee’s right to use any designated Mark may be terminated by
Aire-Master upon written notice. Aire-Master shall not be liable for any expense of
Franchisee in terminating use of any Mark;

b. Franchisee’s use of the Marks pursuant to this Agreement does not give
Franchisee any ownership interest or other interest, except the non-exclusive and
limited right of use herein granted, in and to the Marks;

c. Aire-Master has and retains the rights among others:

i.  To grant other licenses for the Marks in addition to those licenses already
granted to existing franchisees;
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ii. To use the Marks in connection with the sale of goods and products
manufactured or distributed by Aire-Master at wholesale or retail;

iii. To participate in, develop and establish other Systems for the same Marks or
similar or any other marks, and to grant licenses thereto without providing
Franchisee any rights;

d. All goodwill associated with the Marks, and the System inures exclusively to Aire-
Mastet’s benefit;

e. Franchisee shall:
i.  Adopt and use the Marks solely in the manner required by Aire-Master;

ii. Observe all requirements for the service mark, trademark and copyright
notices, fictitious name registrations, and the display of the legal name or other
identification of Franchisee as Aire-Master may direct in writing from time to
time;

iii. Use, promote and offer for sale under the Marks only those goods and
services which meet Aire-Master’s required standards and specifications, as they
may be revised and amended by Aire-Master from time to time in writing;

iv. Execute all documents requested by Aire-Master or its counsel that are
necessary to obtain protection for the Marks or to maintain their continued
validity or enforceability.

v. Refrain from using any Mark alone or together with any other word or
symbol, or in any way in connection with the Licensed Franchise Operation,
except in the manner and to the extent Aire-Master specifically directs, approves
or consents to in writing;

f.  Any unauthorized use of the Marks, including use of the Marks in connection
with any program other than the System, shall constitute an infringement of the Marks
and Aire-Master’s rights therein. Accordingly, Franchisee expressly agrees:

i.  not to use the Marks for any program except as expressly authorized in
writing;

iil. notto commit or aid in committing any act of infringement or misuse or aid
in committing any act of infringement or misuse of the Marks, either during the
Term after Termination;

ili. to report any such infringement to Aire-Master; and
iv. assist Aire-Master in protecting the Marks;

g.  Franchisee shall not use, hold out or otherwise employ the Marks to perform any
activity or to incur any obligation or indebtedness in a manner as could reasonably
result in making Aire-Master liable therefor without Aire-Master’s prior written
consent;

h. Franchisee shall not use, directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, Marks now or
hereafter owned by Aire-Master, as part of Franchisee’s corporate, legal or business
name without Aire-Master’s prior written consent.
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i.  Franchisee shall operate its Licensed Franchise Operation using the Authorized
Name or such other designation as shall be approved by Aire-Master in writing.
Franchisee shall prominently display the Authorized Name on all forms, stationery,
and other materials used in connection with the Licensed Franchise Operation, and
shall obtain such fictitious name registration as may be required by applicable laws in
the Territory. Franchisee agrees that all forms and stationery shall prominently include
the phrase, “An independent Franchisee of Aire-Master of America, Inc.”

j- On Termination or upon Aire-Master’s written request during the Term, whether
or not Aire-Master had previously consented approved or directed such use,
Franchisee shall delete and discontinue all use of any Marks in connection with the
Licensed Franchise Operation or any other business. Franchisee shall not use the
wotds “Air”, “Aire” or “Master” alone or in combination with other wotds, or any
name or mark so neatly resembling any Aire-Master name, Mark, or part thereof,
which in Aire-Master’s sole judgment may be likely to confusion or lead to uncertainty
on the part of the public, during the Term or after Termination.

k. On Termination no monetary amount shall be assigned as attributable to any
goodwill associated with Franchisee’s use of the System or Marks, and Franchisee
shall bear all expense in disassociating itself from the Marks.

4. AIRE-MASTER’S RIGHTS AND DUTIES

4.1 Aire-Master shall not establish a company owned business or another franchisee
using the Marks or another trade name or trademark for the specified products or services
within the Territory, but may do so for other products or services, including similar
products or services and or products or services within the same market. Aire-Master may
sell similar products to those specified for the franchised system under the trade name
“EsScents” or under private label to others, including distributors, who use and or resell
these products to others, some of whom may be competitors of franchises, and may use
and or sell those products within the Territory. Aire-Master may market certain products
and services on a national or regional basis, directly or through certain franchisees, without
your consent, without offering you those rights, and without compensation to you, using
either the Marks or other trade mark or trade name. Aire-Master will transfer to Franchisee
any accounts for the Licensed Franchise Operation it has from prior operation of a
company or franchise operation within the Territory. Aire-Master makes no covenants
regarding market competition. See provisions for Aire-Master to service National
accounts if Franchisee fails to do so at Section 0.

4.2 Aire-Master will provide up to five days training at Aire-Master’s home office in
Nixa, Missouri to Franchisee owner, its managerial and supervisory personnel who Aire-
Master deems necessary, and a reasonable number of employees. There shall be no
additional charge to Franchisee for this training. Aire-Master will pay all travel and lodging
expenses, and some meal expenses of up to two Franchisee personnel. Franchisee is
responsible for some meals and local transportation.

4.3 Aire-Master will send a representative to provide up to five days initial training at
Franchisee’s territory to Franchisee owner, its managerial and supervisory personnel who
Aire-Master deems necessary, and a reasonable number of employees. There shall be no
additional charge to Franchisee for this training.
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4.4 Aire-Master will allow Franchisee or its employees access to training sessions
given other new franchisees as given and if space for additional participants is available,
but Aire-Master reserves the right to charge a fee for additional training. Franchisee must
pay all travel, lodging, meal and living expenses of Franchisee personnel for additional
training after the initial training;

4.5 Aire-Master will allow access to its online training courses, containing mandatory
and suggested specifications, methods, standards and procedures for the System. These
training courses are confidential and remains our property. Aire-Master may modify these
training courses, including specifications, methods, standards, procedures, products and
services, but modification will not alter your status and rights under the Franchise
Agreement. These training courses accessible during the franchise license term, and
cannot be used or accessed after expiration of the term, termination, or non-renewal of
the franchise for any reason.

4.6 Aire-Master will permit Franchisee to use Aire-Master’s proprietary web-based
online Computer Software which coordinates and facilitates route scheduling, handles
invoices and statements (including sales tax calculation), account receivable ledger and
aging report, and calculates commissions and royalty, sales tax reports, and General
Ledger. Payroll is currently not included in the Computer Software, but Aire-Master may
add these modules in the future. Franchisee shall use the Computer Software in operations
of the Licensed Franchise Operation. There is no separate charge for Franchisee’s use of
the Computer Software. The Computer Software cannot be acquired from other sources.
Franchisee shall cease to have the right to use or access to the Computer Software to Aire-
Master on Termination. Aire-Master has access to Franchisee’s information input into or
stored in the Computer Software, and may use Franchisee’s information in conducting
Aire-Master’s business in Aire-Master’s discretion.

4.7 Information submitted by Franchisees for inclusion on the intranet or publicly
accessible web site shall become the property of Aire-Master, and Franchisee by such
submission grants to Aire-Master a perpetual license to use any property in which
Franchisee has any protectable interest. See also Section 0, above, for additional
provisions.

4.8 Aire-Master reserves the right to maintain a list of goods subject to specifications
other than the Aire-Master System, a list of approved suppliers, and criteria for approving
suppliers. This may include minimum standards for delivery, performance, warranties,
design, appearance, local zoning, adequate quality control and capacity to supply
Franchisee’s needs promptly and reliably and other restrictions. Aire-Master may require
evidence of compliance, for example: submission of specifications, photographs,
drawings, other information and samples; testing of specimen items; and, on-site
inspection of manufacturing or other facilities. Aire-Master may charge a fee for approval
review, whether approved or not, based on the costs and expenses incurred, including
Aire-Master’s internal and overhead costs. Aire-Master may revoke approval based on
failure to meet specifications or standards. Aire-Master will set specifications or approve
suppliers in writing, available to you on request. You may notify Aire-Master in writing if
you want to purchase items or use suppliers not yet approved.

4.9 Aire-Master shall furnish Franchisee with sales promotional aids which Aire-
Master has available from time to time for nationwide distribution in connection with the
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sale of the products covered by this Agreement, for example, price and data books, sales
plans, circulars, advertising suggestions, cuts, printed commercial and technical
information, and other publications. Aire-Master shall not charge Franchisee for any sales
promotional aids without advance notice and opportunity to refuse material except Aire-
Master may require annual purchases for which a reasonable charge will be made not to
exceed Two Hundred Fifty and NO/100’s Dollars ($250.00) which cannot be refused.

410  Aire-Master will assist Franchisee in preparing Franchisee’s publicity programs
and generally cooperate to enable Franchisee, acting with proper facilities and efforts on
its own part, to carry out satisfactorily Franchisee’s obligations under this Agreement.
Assistance may include mandatory visits by Aire-Master’s franchise representative to
Franchisee’s home office for routine or requested training or other assistance. Aire-Master
shall pay such representative’s salary, and Franchisee shall pay the representative’s travel,
meal and lodging expenses, for which Aire-Master may charge a set per diem rate.

411  Aire-Master has the right at all times with or without advance notice to change
prices, discounts and conditions applicable to the sale of its products under this
Agreement, or to withdraw or supersede any one or more of the individual types or models
of products or services specified or referred to in Schedule A or otherwise. Aire-Master
shall notify Franchisee of any changes by new or superseding handbook and discount
sheets or other written document customatily used by Aire-Master.

412 Aire-Master has the right to negotiate on Franchisee’s behalf with Shared
accounts having locations in the Territory. Aire-Master may negotiate all terms including
centralized billing and collection, prices, and setrvices to be provided. Franchisee and all
other franchisees must service the accounts on the terms negotiated by Aire-Master. If
Aire-Master performs centralized invoicing and collection services it may charge a
maximum processing fee, or escrow fee, of Four per cent (4%). Aire-Master may but is
not required to pursue collection of delinquent Shared accounts with centralized billing
and collection by Aire-Master, and any and all costs of collection, including attorney fees,
shall be retained proportionately from collected amounts due Franchisee and other
franchisees on the delinquent account. Aire-Master shall forward all amounts collected on
Franchisee’s behalf, less any processing fee or collection cost, within Thirty (30) days of
receipt, and shall not be responsible for any amount until actually received by Aire-Master.
If Franchisee at any time fails to service a Shared account, Aire-Master may service or
arrange for service of such Shared account after such failure which shall not violate the
exclusive territory or any other provision of this Agreement and Franchisee shall receive
no part of the payment for such service or any other compensation.

413  Aire-Master will deliver products, equipment, Computer Software, and/or
supplies provided for in this Agreement a reasonable time after receipt of order, assuming
Aire-Master has no unusual problems with delivery, strikes, inventory of supplies, or as
otherwise provided in this Agreement. If Aire-Master fails to deliver the product,
equipment, or supplies necessary to begin substantial operation of the business within 45
days of the delivery date stated above, Franchisee may notify Aire-Master in writing and
cancel the Franchise Agreement and Aire-Master will refund the Franchisee’s entire initial
franchise fee.

414  Aire-Master may negotiate purchase arrangements with suppliers, including price
and terms, for Franchisee.

0009-03.17/Aire-Master of America FDD - 2024 DRAFT [v8].docxPage A. - 65



4.15  Aire-Master reserves the right for itself to use or publish information regarding
Aire-Master or the Aire-Master System in any medium, including electronically through
the internet or otherwise, and to conduct all electronic commerce, including business-to-
business and business-to-consumer sales.

416  Aire-Master shall take the action it believes necessary and appropriate to defend
its rights in the Marks and against any infringement, but is not obligated to defend the
Marks or Franchisee against claims of infringement or unfair competition from its use of
the Marks, or to reimburse Franchise for costs incurred in regard to a claim. Aire-Master
has the right to control litigation concerning the Marks or their infringement.

5. CONSIDERATION AND REPORTING PROVISIONS

5.1 Franchisee agrees to pay to Aire-Master the sum of
and No/100 Dollars (% ).

52 Franchisee shall pay Aire-Master a Royalty of Five percent (5%) of monthly
Gross Service Billings, or during the second and following years, if greater, a minimum of
Two Hundred Fifty and NO/100’s Dollars ($250.00) per month Royalty, and will
additionally reimburse Aire-Master for any gross receipts, sales, use or other tax or
assessment assessed by any taxing authority in the state where Franchisee is located, on
any royalties, fees or other amounts payable by Franchisee to Aire-Master pursuant to this
Agreement. The reporting period is each calendar month unless otherwise authorized by
Aire-Master in writing. Franchisee shall deliver a true and accurate written report showing
Franchisee’s Gross Service Billings on Aire-Master forms within fifteen (15) days after the
last day of each month or other comparable reporting period. The report must be
accompanied by the Royalty payment. A late payment fee of Fifteen and NO/100’s
Dollars ($15.00) is charged for each monthly Royalty payment not received by the 25% of
the month, and each successive month until paid. Aire-Master’s sole decision shall be
binding in the event of dispute or question. Aire-Master reserves the right to set and adjust
a volume royalty discount, or lower or waive the Royalty as to certain products in Aire-
Mastet’s sole and absolute discretion. Items for which the royalty is reduced or waived do
not count in calculating the volume royalty reduction above.

53 Franchisee agrees to pay Aire-Master an advertising fee, currently 1.0% of Gross
Service Billings. Aire-Master reserves the right to institute an advertising fee of up to a
maximum of four percent (4%) of monthly Gross Service Billings. The advertising fee
shall be due simultaneously with the payment of the continuing royalty, above. Aire-
Master reserves the right to set and adjust a volume advertising fee discount, or lower or
walve the advertising fee as to certain products in Aire-Master’s sole and absolute
discretion. The advertising fee shall be uniform for all Aire-Master franchisees required to
participate in the advertising fee program. The advertising fee will be used for the
production of advertising tools, materials and programs for use of Aire-Master and all
franchisees paying an advertising fee. Aire-Master has the right to use the advertising fee
in the best interests of the franchisees and the System in Aire-Mastet’s sole and absolute
discretion. There is no requirement that any portion or any of the advertising fees be spent
in any particular geographic area or manner. The advertising fee will not be used to
advertise the sale of franchises or any purpose other than advertising the operations
according to the Aire-Master System by franchisees and Aire-Master.
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Franchisee agrees to pay Aire-Master a Technology Fee, currently $0, but subject to
increase. The Technology Fee shall be due simultaneously with the payment of the
continuing royalty, above. Aire-Master reserves the right to set and adjust a volume
Technology Fee discount, or lower or waive the Technology Fee in Aire-Master’s sole and
absolute discretion. The Technology Fee shall be uniform for all Aire-Master franchisees
required to participate in the Technology Fee program. The Technology Fee will be used
for the procurement and support of the System’s technology infrastructure, including but
not limited to hardware and software. Aire-Master has the right to use the Technology
Fee in the best interests of the franchisees and the System in Aire-Mastet’s sole and
absolute discretion.

5.4 Any payment or report not actually received by Aire-Master on or before the
payment date shall be deemed overdue. If any payment is overdue Franchisee shall pay
Aire-Master the overdue amount plus interest from the due date until paid at the rate of
one percent (1%) per month or the maximum rate permitted by law, whichever is less.
Aire-Master is entitled to such interest in addition to any other remedies.

5.5 Within ninety (90) days after the close of Franchisee’s fiscal year or within thirty
(30) days of Aire-Master’s written request Franchisee shall provide Aire-Master with an
annual statement of profit and loss and a balance sheet prepared in accordance with
GAAP. The profit and loss and balance sheet shall be signed by Franchisee or if
Franchisee is not a sole proprietorship, by the Designated Principal Executive Officer
attesting that it is true and correct. If the profit and loss and balance sheet are not certified
by a Certified Public Accountant, Franchisee deliver to Aire-Master a complete copy of
Franchisee’s federal income tax return, including all schedules and attachments, for such
period, or such other documentation as is acceptable to Aire-Master. In addition,
Franchisee shall furnish other information and reports Aire-Master deems necessary or
appropriate to comply with any state or federal law or administrative regulation now
existing or later established.

5.6 During and after the Term, Franchisee shall maintain and preserve for at least
seven (7) years from the dates of their preparation, full, complete and accurate books,
records and accounts in accordance with GAAP and, if required, in the form and manner
required by Aire-Master from time to time in writing.

5.7 Franchisee shall submit to Aire-Master for review or auditing such other forms,
reportts, records, computer records and information and data in the form and at the time
reasonably requested or specified by Aire-Master from time to time in writing.

5.8 Aire-Master or its designated agents shall have the right at all reasonable times to
examine or have an independent audit made of, the books, records, and tax returns of
Franchisee and any other business in which Franchisee or its Principal Shareholder(s) have
a financial interest. If an inspection reveals understated payments in any report to Aire-
Master Franchisee shall immediately pay to Aire-Master upon demand the understated
amount, plus interest from the due date until paid at one percent (1%) per month or the
maximum rate permitted by law, whichever is less. Aire-Master shall pay the expense of
any inspection or audit unless an understatement in any report of five percent (5%) or
more is disclosed, in which case Franchisee shall reimburse Aire-Master for all costs and
expenses connected with the inspection or audit (including, without limitation, reasonable
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accounting and attorneys’ fees). These remedies shall be in addition to any other remedies
Aire-Master may have.

6. RENEWALS

6.1 Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, the Term shall run for three (3)
years from the beginning date specified in Section 0.

6.2 Aire-Master and Franchisee may mutually agree to renew this Agreement at no
additional charge for an additional three (3) year term provided that at the end of the initial
term:

a. For the initial term of three (3) years commencing with the beginning date
specified in Section 0, Franchisee’s Gross Service Billings equal or exceed: Three and

One-Third Cents ($.03%) per person in the population of the Tetritory during the first

year; Six and Two-Thirds Cents ($.06%) pet person in the population of the Tettitory
during the second year; and Ten Cents (§.10) per person in the population of the
Territory during the third year; with the requirement on renewal adjusted by the
changes in population, CPI relative to the Anniversary Date, and changes in
Franchisor’s standard formula for Gross Service Billings. The fiscal year billings shall
be based on fiscal years of the twelve (12) months commencing with the Anniversary
Day;

b. Franchisee is not in default of any provision of this Agreement, any amendment
or successor agreement or any other agreement between Franchisee and Aire-Master
or its subsidiaries and affiliates, and has substantially complied with all the terms and
conditions of such agreements;

c. All Franchisee’s monetary obligations to Aire-Master have been satisfied prior to
renewal;

d. Specifically provided, Aire-Master has the right to adjust (typically lengthening,
but including shorten) the length of the first three (3) year renewal term to coincide
with renewal terms of other franchisees in Franchisee’s region, but the total Term
including renewals will not be reduced.

6.3 Franchisee executes Aire-Master’s then current Franchise Agreement, which
Franchise Agreement shall supersede the existing Agreement when accepted and executed
by Aire-Master, and may contain terms and conditions different from those set forth
herein.

6.4 After the first renewal term, Aire-Master and Franchisee may mutually agree to
renew this Agreement for additional successive three (3) year terms through the last date
specified in Section 0 at no additional charge, provided that at the end of the prior term:

a. Franchisee’s Gross Service Billings equal or exceed Ten Cents ($.10) per person
in the population of the Territory during each fiscal year of the prior term, with the
requirement on renewal adjusted by the changes in population, CPI relative to the
Anniversary Date, and changes in Franchisor’s standard formula for Gross Service
Billings. The fiscal year billings shall be based on fiscal years of the twelve (12) months
commencing with the Anniversary Day;
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b. Franchisee complies with the conditions in Sections 0 and 0 above for the prior
three (3) year term.

6.5 Franchisee notifies Aire-Master in writing at least Thirty (30) days prior to the
end of the current Three (3) year term of franchise’s interest in renewing this Agreement.
Such renewal shall be effective on the first day of the succeeding Three (3) year Term, on
the terms and conditions as provided in Aire-Master’s then current Franchise Agreement,
which current Franchise Agreement shall supersede the existing Agreement and which
may contain terms and conditions different from those set forth herein.

6.6 Franchisee agrees to execute and promptly return Aire-Master’s then current
Franchise Agreement. Specifically provided, renewal shall be effective automatically as
provided herein on the terms and conditions as provided in Aire-Master’s then current
Franchise Agreement regardless of whether Franchisee has signed and or returned the
current Franchise Agreement and the renewal will not be contingent on Franchisee
actually signing the current Franchise Agreement.

7. TERMINATION

7.1 Franchisee shall be in default and Aire-Master may terminate this Agreement and
all rights granted hereunder without affording Franchisee any opportunity to cure the
default on ninety (90) days written notice on the occurrence of any of the following events:

a. Pledging or assigning this Agreement or any rights hereunder as security for a
loan without Aire-Master’s prior written consent;

b. Franchisee debt to Aire-Master becoming more than thirty (30) days past due;
c. Franchisee delivers an insufficient or no account check to Aire-Master;
d. A receiver for Franchisee is appointed or applied for;

e. A petition is filed by or against Franchisee under the Federal Bankruptcy Act or
any successor law;

. Franchisee makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors;

g.  Franchisee divulges or discloses any trade secrets or confidential information
provided by Aire-Master contrary to Section 0;

h. Franchisee misuses or makes any unauthorized use of the Marks or otherwise
materially impairs the associated goodwill or Aire-Master’s rights therein; or

i.  Anapproved transfer is not effected within a reasonable time following the death
or permanent incapacity of an individual Franchisee or Designated Shareholder, or if
Franchisee is not a sole proprietorship, it fails within a reasonable time to replace its
Designated Principal Executive Officer after death or permanent incapacity as
required by Section 0.

7.2 Franchisee shall be in default and Aire-Master may terminate this Agreement and
all rights granted hereunder upon ten (10) days’ notice by certified mail on the occurrence
of any of the following events:

a. Franchisee abandons the Licensed Franchise Operation or otherwise forfeits the
right to do or transact business in the Territory.
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b. Franchisee ceases to be a going concern or to conduct operations in the normal
course of business;

c. Franchisee commits any act involving fraud in connection with Aire-Master or
the Licensed Franchise Operation;

d. Franchisee is convicted of a felony, a crime involving moral turpitude, or any
other crime or offense that is reasonably likely to adversely affect the System, the
Program, the Proprietary Marks, the goodwill associated therewith, or Aire-Mastet’s
interest therein, in Aire-Mastet’s sole opinion;

e. Franchisee fails to return a signed franchise renewal agreement within Ninety (90)
days.

7.3 Except as provided in Sections 0 and 0 above, if either party fails to substantially
comply with any of the requirements imposed by this Agreement, or to carry out the terms
of this Agreement in good faith, the offended party shall notify the offending party in
writing of such failure giving the offending party thirty (30) days to cure any default and
provide evidence of cure to the offended party. If any default is not cured within the thirty
(30) day period termination will be effective sixty (60) days thereafter. Defaults by
Franchisee shall include without limitation any of the following events:

a. Franchisee’s Gross Service Billings are less than the amount specified for the
initial three (3) year term in Section 0 during any one-year period during the initial
term;

b. Franchisee’s Gross Service Billings are less than the amount specified in Section
0 for any one year during a subsequent three (3) year renewal term;

c. Franchisee fails, refuses, or neglects to promptly submit the financial information
required under this Agreement, or makes any false statements in connection therein;

d. Franchisee fails to maintain the standards and specifications required in this
Agreement;

e. Franchisee fails, refuses, or neglects to obtain Aire-Master’s prior written
approval or consent as required by this Agreement; or

. Franchisee breaches any other obligations provided in this Agreement.
7.4 Franchisee may terminate this Agreement under the following conditions:
a. Aire-Master’s bankruptcy or insolvency;

b. Aire-Mastet’s failure to deliver product, equipment, and/or supplies necessary to
commence substantial operation within 45 days of delivery date specified in Section

0 above.
7.5 Upon Termination Franchisee’s interest will terminate immediately and
automatically.
7.6 Upon Termination Franchisee shall immediately cease to have the right to

perform any services or use the Marks or the System, and Franchisee agrees:

a. Franchisee shall discontinue forever the use of the System and Marks;
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b. Franchisee shall cooperate and execute all instruments necessary to complete
Termination.

c. Franchisee agrees to change or cancel its business (d/b/a) name, partnership
name, corporate name, and/or fictitious or assumed name or equivalent registration,
to exclude the word and trade name “Aire-Master”; “Aire”, “Air” or “Mastet”, or any
other Marks from such names immediately upon Termination and not to use the
words “Aire-Master”, “Air”, “Aire” or “Master”, or any similar word or words in any
manner. Franchisee shall furnish Aire-Master with evidence of compliance
satisfactory to Aire-Master with this obligation within thirty (30) days after
Termination.

d. Franchisee shall make or cause to be made necessary changes in Franchisee’s
business name and products handled to disassociate Aire-Master’s name and identity
from Franchisee’s business and marks. This includes but is not limited to withdrawal
of all advertising matter, destruction of all letterheads, invoices, business cards,
removal of all signs and any other articles which display the Marks or trade dress
associated with the System as Aire-Master may direct to effectively to distinguish the
same from any connections with Aire-Master. Franchisee will return to Aire-Master
at Franchisee’s expense all forms, documents, manuals, papers and literature supplied
by Aire-Master.

e. Franchisee will change its telephone numbers and listings and instruct the
telephone company to transfer all telephone calls intended for Franchisee or formerly
under Franchisee’s listings to Aire-Master or a franchisee designated by Aire-Master.
Franchisee will assign or cause the telephone number used by the Franchisee under
the “Proprietary Mark” or “Mark” (“Telephone Number”) to be assigned to Aire-
Master, and if the Telephone Number is not assignable, then Franchisee shall
terminate or cause the Telephone Number to be terminated. Franchisee grants Power
of Attorney to Aire-Master to have the number assigned or terminated.

. If Franchisee fails or omits to make or cause, such changes to be made, or make
such returns required by this section, Aire-Master has the right to enter upon
Franchisee’s premises without being deemed guilty of trespass or any other tort and
make or cause to be made such changes, obtain and take such returns, provide for the
destruction and/or withdrawal of all advertising matter and letterheads, and removal
of all signs or other articles displaying the Marks or trade dress associated with the
System, all at the expense of Franchisee.

g. For three (3) years following Termination, within the Territory Franchisee shall
not directly or indirectly engage in any business the same as or similar to the restroom
sanitation service business, or competing with Aire-Master or the System, without
Aire-Master’s prior written consent. This includes but is not limited to as a consultant,
independent contractor, officer, employee, or owner, whether partnership,
corporation, sole proprietorship, or otherwise. Aire-Master shall have right to
determine whether competition or similarity exist.

h. For three (3) years following Termination Franchisee shall not divert or attempt
to divert any business or customers from Aire-Master or its franchisees, by influencing
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or attempting to influence previously existing customers or otherwise, directly or
indirectly.

i.  Franchisee shall not do or perform directly or indirectly, any other act injurious
or prejudicial to the goodwill associated with the Marks or System.

j- The covenants contained in Sections 00, 00 and 00 shall be construed as
independent of any other provision of this Agreement, and the existence of any claim
or cause of action of Franchisee against Aire-Master, whether predicated upon this
Agreement or otherwise, shall not constitute a defense to the enforcement by Aire-
Master of such covenants, equitably and/or at law.

k. Franchisee shall sell to Aire-Master, at Aire-Mastet’s option all or any one or more
of the items of equipment, products and inventory used by Franchisee in the conduct
of the System for their cost to Franchisee. This specifically includes machines and
products “on location” at customer’s places of business. Franchisee agrees not to
remove any of said machines, products, advertising or labels during said ninety (90)
day option period. The purchase price shall be the greater of: (i) Franchisee’s book
value for equipment or (ii) 10% of Franchisee’s cost. Aire-Master shall exercise its
option at any time within ninety (90) days after Termination. If not repurchased,
Franchisee agrees to remove the machines and products within one hundred and
twenty (120) days after Termination from customer’s place of business. Aire-Master
shall make payment upon delivery, as specified by Aire-Master.

I In addition to the purchase option above, Aire-Master has a right of first refusal
to purchase all or any one or more of the items of equipment, products and inventory
on the same terms offered to any other person or entity, or if less, the greater of: (i)
Franchisee’s book value for equipment or (ii) 10% of Franchisee’s cost. Aire-Master
may assign its right of first refusal to any other person. Franchisee shall give Aire-
Master written notice of any offer accompanied by a true and exact copy of a written
agreement embodying all the terms and conditions under which Franchisee proposes
to sell. Any material change in the terms of any offer prior to closing constitutes a
new offer subject to the same right of first refusal by Aire-Master or its assign as in
the case of an initial offer. Aire-Master’s failure to exercise the right of first refusal
afforded by this subparagraph shall not constitute a waiver of any other provision of
this Agreement. Aire-Master or its assign has thirty (30) days after the receipt of notice
to exercise its option in writing. If Aire-Master fails to accept the offer within the time
provided, Franchisee is not in default under any provision of this Agreement and has
satisfied the other conditions on transfer, Franchisee shall be free to sell the
equipment, products and inventory to the person who made the offer in accordance
with the terms of the written agreement which accompanied the notice to Aire-Master
for sixty (60) days after the date Aire-Master received notice of the proposed sale.

m. Franchisee shall deliver to Aire-Master at a place and time designated by Aire-
Master all of the route books, customer lists, master route file, and related documents
used by Franchisee in connection with the System and Licensed Franchise Operation
within fifteen (15) days after Termination.

n. Franchisee grants Aire-Master a security interest in Franchisee’s inventory and
equipment purchased from Aire-Master as security for Franchisee’s obligations on
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Termination. Franchisee agrees to cooperate and execute and or hereby authorizes
Aire-Master to execute on Franchisee’s behalf as debtor any financing statements or
other documents necessary or desirable for Aire-Master to file to evidence and perfect
its security interest.

o. If Franchisee continues to operate or subsequently begins to operate another
business, it shall not use any reproduction, counterfeit, copy or colorable imitation of
the Marks in connection with such other business or its promotion which is likely to
cause confusion, mistake or deception, or dilute Aire-Master’s exclusive rights in and
to the Marks. Franchisee shall not use any trade dress, designation of origin,
description or representation which falsely suggests or represents any association or
connection with Aire-Master constituting unfair competition.

p. 1If at any time within Three (3) years of Termination, Franchisee for any reason
continues to operate or subsequently begins to operate another similar or competing
business, including not limited to as a consultant, independent contractor, officer,
employee, or owner, whether partnership, corporation, sole proprietorship, or
otherwise, then continuing until the later of the final termination date set forth in
Section 0 or until Franchise or any successor to Franchisee has not operated a similar
or competing business for a continuous Three (3) year period, Franchisee will
continue to pay the royalty, including minimum royalty, reimbursements to Aire-
Master for any gross receipts, sales, use or other tax or assessment assessed by any
taxing authority, reporting, and late payment fee, all as provided in Section 0. For
purposes of this paragraph, “Gross Service Billings” means all sales and receipts by
Franchisee, including gross charges for labor, equipment, products, leases, or rental
agreements, similar to or competing with the Aire-Master System. Franchisee shall
furnish to Aire-Master the returns as provided in Section 0. Aire-Master has the right
to audit as provided in Section 0. If Franchise fails to deliver all the reports and
returns, or Aire-Master otherwise has reason to believe the reported amount is
incorrect, Franchisee’s monthly Gross Service Billings shall be deemed to be the
highest monthly amount previously reported by Franchisee or documented by Aire-
Master. The provisions of Section 0 continue to apply. Until the provisions of this
paragraph cease to apply, if Franchisee sells, transfers or otherwise disposes of the
similar or competing business, Franchisee shall include a requirement that the person
or entity acquiring the business pay the royalty and comply with the other provisions
of this paragraph, and in any case, Franchisee shall remain personally liable to Aire-
Master and guaranty the obligations of the person or entity acquiring the business for
the payments and obligations of this paragraph.

q. Franchisee shall comply with the covenants contained in this Agreement.

8. CONSENT TO TRANSFER

8.1 Aire-Master shall have the right to transfer or assign all or any part of its rights or
obligations herein to any person or legal entity, including, without limitation, to Aire-
Master franchisees, provided in Aire-Master’s good faith judgment the Assignee is willing
and able to assume Aire-Master’s obligations under this Agreement. Franchisee agrees to
execute any forms Aire-Master may reasonably request to effectuate any assignment by
Aire-Master. On such full or partial assignment, this Agreement shall remain in full force
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and effect, and be enforceable by either Aire-Master or its successor in interest, including
but not limited to the provisions on non-competition.

8.2 Franchisee understands and acknowledges that the rights and duties set forth in
this Agreement are personal to Franchisee, and that Aire-Master has granted this franchise
in reliance on Franchisee’s business skill and financial capacity (and if Franchisee is not a
sole proprietorship, then in reliance on the Designated Shareholder’s, the person(s)
forming the entity granted the franchise, and or the Designated Principal Executive
Officer’s business skill and financial capacity). Accordingly, Franchisee shall not sell,
assign, transfer, convey, give away, pledge, mortgage or otherwise encumber any interest
in this franchise or Franchisee without Aire-Master’s prior written consent. Any purported
assignment or transfer, by operation of law or otherwise, without Aire-Master’s prior
written consent, shall be null and void, shall constitute a material breach of this
Agreement, and shall be cause for termination as provided in Sections 0, 0, and 0 above.

8.3 Franchisee shall not offer to sell, transfer, or assign this Agreement privately,
through any medium of public advertising or otherwise during the first 3 years of
operation, either a new or transferred franchise, except with Aire-Master’s consent, which
Aire-Master will not unreasonably withhold.

8.4 Franchisee shall not offer to sell, transfer, or assign this Agreement privately,
through any medium of public advertising or otherwise without first having complied with
the terms and conditions of this Agreement and all applicable state and Federal statutes
and regulations.

8.5 Aire-Master has a right of first refusal to purchase Franchisee’s business on the
same terms offered to any other person or entity. Aire-Master may assign its right of first
refusal to any other person. Franchisee shall give Aire-Master written notice of any offer
accompanied by a true and exact copy of a written agreement embodying all the terms and
conditions under which Franchisee proposes to sell the business. Any material change in
the terms of any offer prior to closing constitutes a new offer subject to the same right of
first refusal by Aire-Master or its assign as in the case of an initial offer. Aire-Master’s
failure to exercise the right of first refusal afforded by this Section 0 shall not constitute a
waiver of any other provision of this Agreement, including this Section 0. Aire-Master or
its assign has thirty (30) days after the receipt of notice to exercise its option in writing. If
Aire-Master fails to accept the offer within the time provided, Franchisee is not in default
under any provision of this Agreement and has satisfied the other conditions on transfer,
and the proposed transferee satisfies the requirements of Section 0 below, Franchisee shall
be free to sell the business to the person who made the offer in accordance with the terms
of the written agreement which accompanied the notice to Aire-Master for sixty (60) days
after the date Aire-Master received notice of the proposed sale.

8.6 Aire-Master shall not unreasonably withhold its consent to a transfer of any
interest of Franchisee in this Franchise or Franchisee, provided that prior to the consent
and transfer, Franchisee fulfills the terms of Aire-Master’s transfer policy then in effect.
Unless waived in writing by Aire-Master, Franchisee and or transferee must comply with
the following:

a. Franchisee has operated the franchise for three years;
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b. Franchisee satisfies all its accrued monetary obligations to Aire-Master and all
other outstanding obligations related to the Licensed Franchise Operation;

c. Franchisee executes a general release under seal in a form satisfactory to Aire-
Master of all claims against Aire-Master and its officers, directors, shareholders, and
employees, in their corporate and individual capacities, including without limitation,
claims under federal, state and local laws, rules and ordinances.

As to only franchisees with a part of the Territory located in the state of New York:

Provided however, that all rights enjoyed by the Franchisee and any
causes of action arising in its favor from the provisions of Article 33 of
the General Business Law of the State of New York and the regulations
issued thereunder shall remain in force; it being the intent of this proviso
that the non-waiver provisions of the General Business Law, Section
687.4 and 687.5 be satistied.

d. The transferee demonstrates to Aire-Master’s satisfaction that it:
i meets Aire-Master’s managerial and business standards;
ii. possesses a good moral character, business reputation, and credit rating;

has the aptitude and ability to conduct the Licensed Franchise Operation herein
(as may be evidenced by prior related business experience or otherwise); and

iii. has adequate financial resources and capital to operate the Licensed
Franchise Operation.

e. Transferee furnishes to Aire-Master such financial and other information as Aire-
Master requests, and completes such forms or documents as Aire-Master requires.

f.  The transferee executes (and/or, upon Aire-Mastet’s request, cause all interested
parties execute) Aire-Master’s then current standard form franchise agreement and
other ancillary agreement(s) as Aire-Master may require;

g. At the transferee’s expense and upon such other terms and conditions as Aire-
Master may reasonably require, transferee and/or transferee’s manager completes the
training course then in effect for new franchisees.

h. On Aire-Master granting approval for and as a condition of the transfer,
Franchisee shall pay Aire-Master a Ten Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($10,500.00)
transfer fee for any assignment or splitting of the Territory, for each Territory or
portion thereof transferred to separate persons or entities.

i.  Such additional requirements as Aire-Master shall establish for all franchisees
from time to time or shall specifically request of Franchisee.

8.7 In the event the proposed transferee is not a sole proprietorship, Aire-Master’s
consent to such transfer shall be conditioned on the requirements set forth in Section 0
and 0, and the transferee agreeing to comply with the provisions of Sections 0 and 0,
regarding the transfer and issuance of securities.

8.8 On the death or permanent incapacity of any Designated Shareholder or other
person with any interest in this franchise or in Franchisee, the executor, administrator,
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personal representative or trustee or other authorized representative of such person (the
“Representative”) shall transfer the interest to a third party approved by Aire-Master
within a reasonable time. If the heirs, beneficiaries or other recipient of any such person
are unable to meet the conditions in Section 0, the Representative of the deceased person
shall have a reasonable time to dispose of the deceased’s interest in the franchise or
Franchisee. Post-death dispositions are subject to all the terms and conditions for transfers
contained in this Agreement the same as a lifetime transfer, including without limitation
transfers by devise, bequest or inheritance.

8.9 On the dissolution or other termination of a Franchisee that is not a sole
proprietorship, the authorized representative shall transfer the franchise interest to a third
party approved by Aire-Master within a reasonable time. Such transfers are subject to all
the terms and conditions for transfers contained in this Agreement.

8.10  Aire-Mastet’s consent to a transfer of any interest in the franchise or Franchisee
shall not constitute a waiver of any claims it may have against the transferor, nor shall it
be deemed a waiver of Aire-Master’s right to demand exact compliance with any of the
terms of this Agreement by the transferor or transferee.

9. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

9.1 Aire-Master and Franchisee shall mutually treat as confidential and safeguard all
information, knowledge, know how, reports, and records pertaining to this Franchise,
except to the extent that there may be some other specific agreement in writing to the
contrary. Franchisee shall divulge such confidential information only to its employees who
must have access to operate the franchised business, and who have executed the
confidentiality agreement as provided herein.

10. GENERAL CONTRACTUAL PROVISIONS

10.1  This is a Missouri contract and shall be governed by and interpreted and
construed under laws of that state, which laws shall prevail in the event of any conflict of
law, unless otherwise required by the state within which the Territory is located.

As to only franchisees a part of whose Territory is located in the state of New York:

The foregoing choice of law should not be considered a waiver of any
right conferred upon either Aire-Master or upon Franchisee by the
General Business Law of the State of New York, Article 33.

10.2  FEither party’s failure to enforce any of the provisions of this Agreement shall not
waive such provision(s), or the party’s right thereafter to enforce each provision.

10.3  The parties acknowledge that this Agreement has been prepared with an attempt
to avoid legal antiques and repetitive phrases. The intent is not to alter the terms but to
make the document more readable. For example, references to “including” rather than
“including but not limited to”; “from” rather than “whatsoever arising or occurring upon
ot in connection with”; or omission of “at any time, or for any period of time”, “thereof”

or “hereof” shall not be interpreted as limitations of effect or coverage.

104 The headings, captions and arrangements used in this Agreement or any related
document are for convenience only and shall not be deemed to limit, amplify or modify
the terms or effect the meaning of the Agreement or other documents, unless specified
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otherwise. References to “Articles” or “Sections” are to articles and sections of this
Agreement unless specifically indicated otherwise. References to “Exhibits” or
“Schedules” are to attached exhibits or schedules, all of which are incorporated by
reference and made a part of the Agreement as if set forth herein verbatim.

10.5  This instrument contains the entire and only agreement between the parties
respecting the subject matter of this Agreement, all prior and collateral representations,
promises and conditions in connection with the subject matter being merged herein, and
any representation, promise, or condition not incorporated in this Agreement shall not
bind either party. Nothing in the Agreement or in any related agreement is intended to
disclaim the representations Aire-Master made in the franchise disclosure document
furnished to Franchisee. This instrument supersedes all pre-existing agreements or
arrangements between the parties relating to the subject matter, except any balance due
owed before the effective date of this Agreement. This Agreement may only be modified
or amended in writing signed by both parties, except as to Aire-Master’s rights as provided
elsewhere.

10.6  This Agreement takes effect upon its acceptance and execution by Aire-Master in
Missouri, and is not effective or binding on Aire-Master until signed by its President, Vice-
President, or Treasurer.

10.7  Franchisee shall make a timely written request to Aire-Master whenever this
Agreement requires Aire-Master’s prior approval or consent, and such approval or
consent shall be obtained in writing,

10.8  Any notice required or permitted shall be in writing and may be given by personal
service, overnight express delivery service, or by depositing a copy thereof in United States
certified or registered mail, with postage thereon fully prepaid, in a sealed envelope to be
addressed as follows:

FRANCHISEE:

AIRE-MASTER: Aire-Master of America, Inc.
ATTN: President
P.O. Box 2310
Nixa, Missouri 65714

With a copy to: Evan Goldman
The Franchise Firm
225 Wilmington West Chester Pike
Suite 200
Chadds Ford, Pennsylvania 19317

The above address may be changed at any time by either party by written notice to the
other. Notice is effective on deposit.

10.9  Franchisee shall promptly pay to Aire-Master, all costs, expenses, and reasonable
attorney’s fees, incurred or paid by Aire-Master in enforcing the terms of this Agreement
or in defending any related action or proceeding, whether or not suit is actually filed.
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10.10  Any provision of this Agreement or any related document held to be illegal,
invalid or unenforceable under present or future laws shall be fully severable, the
Agreement shall be construed and enforced as if it had never been a part of the Agreement
and the remaining provisions shall remain in full force and effect and shall not be affected
by the illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision or by its severance. Furthermore, a
provision as similar in terms to such illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision as is
possible and may be legal, valid and enforceable shall be added automatically as a part of
this Agreement in lieu of the illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision.

10.11  This Agreement shall not confer any rights or remedies on any person or legal
entity other than Aire-Master or Franchisee or their respective successors and assigns as
contemplated by Section 0. This Agreement is not intended to confer any rights on third
parties, and anything to the contrary shall not confer any rights or remedies on third parties
and is without effect.

10.12  No right or remedy conferred on or reserved to Aire-Master or Franchisee by this
Agreement is exclusive of any other right or remedy herein or by law or equity provided
or permitted, but each shall be cumulative of every other right or remedy.

10.13  Aire-Master has the right to seek and obtain injunctive relief under the usual
equity rules against threatened conduct that may cause it loss or damage, including

restraining orders and preliminary injunctions. Nothing in this Agreement shall bar such
relief.

10.14  Franchisee personally submits to and acknowledges the personal jurisdiction of
the Circuit Court of the Judicial Circuit of the State of Missouri, and of the Federal Court
for the Western District of Missouti.

10.15  The provisions of Sections 0, 0 (including cross references therein), 0, and O shall
survive the expiration or termination of this Franchise Agreement.

10.16  This Agreement inures to the benefit of and is binding on the parties and their
respective heirs, legal representatives, successors and assigns. Nothing in this Agreement
is intended to confer, expressly or by implication, on any person who is not a party or an
heir, legal representative or successor to a party, any rights or remedies under or by reason
of this Agreement.

11. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

11.1 No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a
franchisee in connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have
the effect of (1) waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud
in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor,
franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision
supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.

11.2  Franchisee and all persons claiming under it shall at any time hereafter, make all
such further assurances, and execute such additional documents on Aire-Mastet’s request
as Aire-Master deems necessary to effectuate the terms and conditions of this Agreement.
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FRANCHISOR:Aire-Master of America, Inc.

SEAL BY:

Walter R. Heinle, President/Chief Operating
Officer
Attest:

Walter R. Heinle, Second Assistant Secretary

FRANCHISEE: , dba Aire-Master of
SEAL By:
Attest:

, Secretary

GUARANTOR(S):
individually
individually
STATE OF )

) ss

COUNTY OF )
On this day of 202__, before me personally appeared Walter R.

Heinle, to me known personally, who being duly sworn did say that he is President/Chief
Operating Officer of Aire-Master of America, Inc., that the seal affixed to this instrument is
the Corporate seal of said Corporation and that the Franchise Agreement was signed and
sealed in behalf of said Corporation by authority of its Board of Directors and the said Walter
R. Heinle acknowledges the Franchise Agreement to be the free act and deed of said
Corporation.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal at
my office in Nixa, Missouri, the day and year first above written.

Notary Public
County of Commission:
My Commission Expires:
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STATE OF )

) ss
COUNTY OF )
On this day of , 202__, before me personally appeared
and , to me known to be the person(s)
described in and who executed the Franchise Agreement in individual capacity ____,
and acknowledged that executed the same as free act and deed.
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal at
my office in , the day and year first above
written.
Notary Public
County of Commission:
My Commission Expires:
STATE OF )
) ss
COUNTY OF )
On this day of , 202__, before me personally appeared
, to me known personally, who being duly sworn did say that
__he is President of that the seal affixed to this instrument is

the corporate seal of said corporation and that the Franchise Agreement was signed and sealed
in behalf of said corporation by authority of its Board of Directors and the said
acknowledges said instrument to be the free act and deed of said

corporation.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the
day and year first above written.

Notary Public
County of Commission:
My Commission Expires:
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STATE OF )

COUNTY OF )

On this day of , 202__, before me personally appeared

of
, to me known to be the person described in and who
executed the within Franchise Agreement in behalf of said partnership and acknowledged to
me that __he executed the same for the purposes therein stated.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the
day and year first above written.

Notary Public
County of Commission:
My Commission Expires:
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Schedule A - PRODUCTS

Classification and Description of List of products and equipment proprietary to Aire-Master
System to be purchased from Aire-Master of America, Inc., by Franchisee (and more
specifically defined in the product and price information guide as from time to time issued by
Aire-Master of America, Inc., to Franchisee.):

Deodorizing containers and related components.

Deodorizing dispensing units

Liquid, semi-solid, and solid deodorant products.

Liquid and aerosol Disinfectants and Sanitizers

All hand cleaning products, hand soaps, and hand sanitizers.

Liquid and powdered specialty cleaning agents.

All Toilet bowl, Urinal and Commode screens, shields, mats, cleaners and
chemicals

Toilet bowl cleaners.

All Urinal screens.

Specialty tools and materials.

Dispensing devices and related components for servicing restroom fixtures.
Floor, wall, and partition cleaners and chemicals

Chemical proportioning equipment, cleaners, and chemicals

Service labels and signs.

Identification labels and signs.

Literature, stationery, business cards and forms.

Route-Master computer software (Aire-Master licenses to franchise without
additional charge).

Uniforms.
Vehicle graphics.

Classification and Description of List of Products and equipment meeting particular
specifications required for Aire-Master System to be purchased persons other than Aire-
Master of America, Inc., by Franchisee:

[FDD Note: The computer industry is constantly advancing and Aire-Master sets minimum
requirements at an appropriate level between state of the art and obsolete. Generally
computers purchased within one to two years meet these requirements. Contact Aire-Master
for current minimum standards. It may be appropriate for you to purchase more powerful
equipment than required.]

REQUIRED: Internet connected desktop or laptop computer with current operating system
(Windows or Mac) and laser printer. E-mail account. Up to date web browser (Internet
Explorer, Chrome, Firefox, Safari). Up to date security software. Minimum 6 Mbps Broadband
internet access, 12 Mbps or faster, and secondary internet provider recommended. Contact
Aire-Master for more specifics.
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Schedule B - TERRITORY

The prime territory of Franchisee conveyed under Section 0 of this Agreement is the following
described geographical area:

In the State of
[MAP]
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Schedule B.1 —- OPERATION OUTSIDE TERRITORY
“EXTERNAL-TERRITORY”

Section 0 prohibits Franchisee from distributing, selling, or in other ways making commercial
or noncommercial use of the products or services offered for sale by Aire-Master or making
up a part of System beyond the Territory without Aire-Master’s express written permission.

Aire-Master consents to Franchisee establishing and servicing accounts outside the Territory
(the  “External-Territory”) in the following counties in the state of

[MAP]

Except as specifically provided, all terms and conditions of this Agreement apply to
Franchisee’s operation in the External-Territory. The provisions of this Agreement regarding
completion during and or after the Term apply to the External-Territory (i) during the time
Franchisee has any operations in the External-Territory and (ii) for Three (3) years after
Franchisee ceases all operations in the External-Territory.

Aire-Master has the right to revoke its consent to Franchisee’s operation in all or any part of
the External-Territory at any time, and to market and license all or any part of the External-
Territory as a franchise, including combining it with additional territory not part of the
External-Territory. Franchisee has no right or option to acquire the External-Territory either
as an addition to its Territory or as a new franchise. Aire-Master will use its normal
qualification process and criteria for potential franchisees.

Franchisee shall no longer service account in the External-Territory and is not entitled to any
payment on license of all or any part of the External-Territory, including for the account based
being served by Franchisee in the External-Territory.

Franchisee is not authorized to and shall not make any agreement or representation on Aire-
Master’s behalf or otherwise in regard to sale of a franchise including all or any part of the
External-Territory. Franchisee will refer all potential franchisees who express an interest in a
franchise including all or a portion of the External-Territory or otherwise to the appropriate
person at Aire-Master.
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Schedule C - PROPRIETARY MARKS

Aire-Master agrees to permit Franchisee to use the following marks in connection with
marketing of the Aire-Master System and as part of Franchisee’s name as specified in the
Franchise Agreement, subject to Aire-Master’s rights pursuant to the Franchise Agreement to
amend, modify, or withdraw such permission to use, the following marks:

“Aire-Mastet” with perfume cloud as dot over 'i', Skunk with spray can surrounded by
perfume cloud, Reg. No. 1,170,645

Skunk with spray can surrounded by perfume cloud, Reg. No. 2,073,146
“Aire-Master”, Reg. No. 2,108,159

Skunk with spray bottle , Reg. No. 3,485,020

“Aire-Master”, Reg. No. 3,862,868

“AIRE MASTER" with four circles of increasing size forming the dot of the "I" and a
tornado funnel design appearing between the terms "AIRE" and "MASTER"., Reg.
No. 3,862,862 »

“Blue Lagoon”, Reg. No. 2,144,208

“You're N Control”, Reg. No. 1,945,636

“Paw Wash”, Reg. No. 1,921,420

“Clean Streak” Reg. No. 3,152,670 4

“go-gel” design plus words, Reg. No. 3,074,631 1.
“Scentscapes”, Reg. No. 85153944 ,

“Nuvera”, Reg No. 4,859,928 ,

“McCauley’s”, Reg. No. 4,896,631 »

1. These marks are not exclusive to the Aire-Master System and Aire-Master may sell
products under these marks to non-franchisees, including in your territory.
2. Mark not used in the Aire-Master System.

0009-03.17/Aire-Master of America FDD - 2024 DRAFT [v8].docxPage A. - 85



Notice Required by
The Defend Trade Secrets Act (“DTSA”),
18 USC §1833

The DTSA requires all employment contracts, policies and other documents governing the
use of confidential information to contain a special notice of immunity for whistleblowers
(this notice).

The DTSA includes a whistleblower provision that provides immunity for disclosure of trade
secrets to government officials. Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Agreement, you
may be entitled to immunity and protection from retaliation under the Defend Trade Secrets
Act of 2016 for disclosing a trade secret under certain limited circumstances.

Pursuant to the Defend Trade Secrets Act of 2016:

An individual may not be held criminally or civilly liable under any federal or state trade
secret law for the disclosure of a trade secret that: (a) is made (i) in confidence to a federal,
state, or local government official, either directly or indirectly, or to an attorney; and (ii)
solely for the purpose of reporting or investigating a suspected violation of law; or (b) is
made in a complaint or other document that is filed under seal in a lawsuit or other
proceeding,

Further, an individual who files a lawsuit for retaliation by an employer for reporting a
suspected violation of law may disclose the employet's trade sectets to the attorney and
use the trade secret information in the court proceeding if the individual: (a) files any
document containing the trade secret under seal; and (b) does not disclose the trade secret,
except pursuant to court order.
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Exhibit A.2
PROMISSORY NOTE

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, I, , as principal, promise to pay to the order of
Aire-Master of America, Inc., ("Holdet"), Nixa, Missouti, the sum of Dollars
% ) in legal and lawful money of the United States of America, with interest thereon
from ., at the rate of ___ percent (__ %) [___% over prime as determined by

Bank, adjustable each anniversary date] per annum [compounded monthly| so
long as default does not exist upon this obligation, or the instrument securing it, and at the
rate of two percent (2%) per annum above the original [current| rate provided herein so long
as default, if any exists, payable

This note is due and payable [on demand] [in ___ payments of § , beginning .,

, and continuing at monthly time intervals thereafter. A final payment of the unpaid
principal balance plus accrued interest is due and payableon ;. Late payments are
subject to a late payment fee of ___|

Maker has the right to prepay the balance, in whole or in part, without penalty, on any payment
date. However, prepayment of principal shall be in the amount(s) corresponding with the next
principal payment(s) due according to the loan payment schedule, and prepayment(s) shall not
release Maker's obligation to make continuous monthly payment(s) until the balance is fully

paid.

In case of default in the payment of any installment of either principal or interest or in the
performance of any of the covenants, conditions, or agreements contained in the mortgage
{or deed of trust} given to secure the payment hereof, then or at any time thereafter during
the continuance of such default, the legal holder hereof may, without notice, declare the whole
debt immediately due and payable.

For the purpose of securing the payment of this note or any renewals, or extensions, or
changes in form hereof, the undersigned does hereby pledge, transfer and deliver to Holder
the following described property, owned by me in good faith and free of any claims, security
interest or liens, to wit:

Aire-Master of America, Inc. franchise for the following counties in the state(s) of

; and, all inventory of goods of whatever description held for sale or lease
by the debtor, now or hereafter owned, or now or hereafter in the possession, custody
or control of debtor, wherever located, together with all attachments, parts,
accessories, additions and substitutions, including all returns and repossessions; all
accounts, accounts receivable, contract rights, chattel paper and general intangibles,
now owned or hereafter existing in favor of or acquired by debtor; all equipment,
furniture and fixtures, wherever located, now owned or hereafter acquired or now or
hereafter in the possession, custody or control of the debtor and all replacements,
substitutions and accessions thereto and thereof all reserves, however created, of
debtor in the possession or control of secured party all of debtor's rights to any
rebates, discounts, credits, factory holdbacks and incentive payments which may
become due to debtor by the manufacturer or distributor with respect to any of the
inventory, and all proceeds from all or any part of the above described collateral,
including, but not limited to, insurance proceeds payable by reason of loss or damage
to any of the collateral, cash, goods, equipment, instruments, accounts, chattel paper,
contract rights, general intangibles, replacement inventory or otherwise.
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All signers and endorsers of this note are to be regarded as principals, so far as their liability
to Holder is concerned, and each of us hereby severally waive presentation for payment,
protest and notice of protest, and of non-payment, in case this note is not paid at maturity,
and agree to all extensions without limitations as to number or the term of any such extension
and part payments before or after maturity without prejudice to the Holder hereof. We and
each of us agree that, in case of renewal or if extension of maturity of this note, any and all
security interests given to the Holder by us or any of us at any time shall remain in full force
and effect as security for the payment of the renewed or extended note. We further agree to
pay all costs of collection, including but not limited to reasonable attorney fees, and court
costs.

Upon default in the payment or performance of any liability or obligation hereunder of the
undersigned or any of them, or of any maker, endorser, or guarantor, to the Holder; or upon
the death, dissolution, termination of existence, insolvency, business failure, appointment of a
receiver of any part of the property of, assignment for the benefit of creditors by, or the
commencement of proceedings under any bankruptcy or insolvency law by or against, a maker,
endorser, or guarantor of this obligation; or, upon the assighment by maker of any equity in
any of the property of, or obligations due any maker, then in any such event, this note, at the
election of the Holder, without notice shall become due and payable forthwith.

On and after the default of this note either by its terms or by election as aforesaid, the Holder
is hereby expressly authorized at any time and from time to time, to sell, transfer and deliver
the whole or any part of the above described security, and any additions thereto and substitutes
therefor, either at public or private sale, or at any broker's board or any exchange, whether
within or without the State of Missouri, and whether at public or private sale, with or without
advertising the time or place of such sale. Any notice of sale, disposition or other intended
action by Holder sent to the undersigned, at the address specified after makert's signature, at
least five (5) days prior to such action, shall, where notice is required under applicable statutes,
constitute reasonable notice to the parties entitled thereto and the Holder, if the highest bidder
therefor, is expressly authorized and permitted to become the purchaser of the collateral
security, or any part thereof, at any such sale or sales. I, we and each of us further agree that,
after deducting all costs and expenses of any such sale, including attorney's fees, and after the
payment of the principal and interest due on this note, the balance, if any, of the proceeds of
the sale shall be paid over to maker.

It is agreed that Holder may, at the request of or by agreement with maker or any endorser or
guarantor hereof, accept in exchange other and different security for that above described, or
for any part thereof.

Any failure by Holder to exercise any right hereunder shall not be construed as a waiver of the
right to exercise the same or any other right at any other time and from time to time hereafter.
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Upon any transfer of this note and agreement, the collateral security held under this agreement
at the time of transfer, or any part thereof, may be delivered to the transferee, who shall
thereupon become vested with all the rights and powers above given to the Holder in respect
thereto. All rights and powers of the Holder hereunder shall inure to its successor or assigns,
and all agreements herein shall bind the successors, assigns, heirs and personal representatives
of the undersigned.

MAKER
STATE OF )
) ss
COUNTY OF )
Onthe ___ dayof ,202__, before me personally appeared , to me known
to be the person described in and who executed the foregoing Promissory Note and who
acknowledged that __he__ executed the same as free act and deed.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal the day and year first
above written.

Notary Public
My Commission Expires:
County of Commission:
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Exhibit A.3
SECURITY AGREEMENT

SECURITY AGREEMENT, dated as of the ___ day of , 202_, by and between
("Company"), and Aire-Master of America, Inc., a Missouri

corporation ("Lender").

WHEREAS, it is a condition precedent that Company execute and deliver to Lender a
security agreement in substantially the form hereof, and

WHEREAS, Company wishes to grant security interests in favor of Lender as herein
provided;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises contained herein and for other
good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby
acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Definitions. The term "State", as used hetrein, means the State of Missouri. All terms
defined in the Uniform Commercial Code of State and used herein shall have the same
definitions herein as specified therein; provided however, that the term "instrument" shall be
such term as defined in Article 9 of the Uniform Commercial Code of State rather than Article
3. The term "Obligations" as used herein, means all of the indebtedness, obligations and
liabilities of Company to Lender, individually or collectively, whether direct or indirect, joint
or several, absolute or contingent, due or to become due, now existing or hereafter arising
under or in respect of the extension of credit, any promissory notes or other instruments or
agreements executed and delivered pursuant thereto or in connection therewith, or this
Agreement, and the term "Event of Default" as used herein, means the failure of Company to
pay or perform any of the Obligations as and when due to be paid or performed.

2. Grant of Security Interest. Company hereby grants to Lender, to secure the payment
and performance in full of all of the Obligations, a security interest in and so pledges and
assigns to Lender the following properties, assets and rights of Company, wherever located,

whether now owned or hereafter acquired or arising, and all proceeds and products thereof
individually or collectively "Collateral"): See attached Exhibit A.

3. Authorization to File Financing Statements. Company hereby irrevocably
authorizes Lender at any time and from time to time to file in any Uniform Commercial Code
jurisdiction any initial financing statements and amendments thereto that (a) indicate the
Collateral (1) as all assets of Company or words of similar effect, regardless of whether any
particular asset comprised in the Collateral falls within the scope of Article 9 of the Uniform
Commercial Code of State or such jurisdiction, or (i) as being of an equal or lesser scope or
with greater detail, and (b) contain any other information required by part 5 of Article 9 of the
Uniform Commercial Code of State for the sufficiency or filing office acceptance of any
financing statement or amendment, including (i) whether Company is an organization, the
type of organization and any organization identification number issued to Company and, (ii)
in the case of a financing statement filed as a fixture filing or indicating Collateral as
as-extracted collateral or timber to be cut, a sufficient description of real property to which
the Collateral relates. Company agrees to furnish any such information to Lender promptly
upon request.

0009-03.17/Aire-Master of America FDD - 2024 DRAFT [v8].docxPage A. - 90



4. Other Actions. Further to insure the attachment, perfection and first priority of, and
the ability of Lender to enforce, Lendet's security interest in the Collateral, Company agrees,
in each case at Company's own expense, to take the following actions with respect to the
following Collateral:

4.1 Collateral in the Possession of a Bailee. If any goods are at any time in
the possession of a bailee, Company shall promptly notify Lender thereof and, if
requested by Lender, shall promptly obtain an acknowledgment from the bailee, in
form and substance satisfactory to Lender, that the bailee holds such Collateral for
the benefit of Lender and shall act upon the instructions of Lender, without the
further consent of Company. Lender agrees with Company that Lender shall not give
any such instructions unless an Event of Default has occurred and is continuing or
would occur after taking into account any action by Company with respect to the
bailee.

4.2 Other Actions as to any and all Collateral. Company further agrees to take

any other action reasonably requested by Lender to insure the attachment, perfection
and first priority of, and the ability of Lender to enforce, Lendet's security interest in
any and all of the Collateral including, without limitation, (a) executing, delivering and,
where appropriate, filing financing statements and amendments relating thereto under
the Uniform Commercial Code, to the extent, if any, that Company's signature
thereon is required therefor, (b) causing Lender's name to be noted as secured party
on any certificate of title for a titled good if such notation is a condition to attachment,
petfection or priotity of, or ability of Lender to enforce, Lendet's secutity interest in
such Collateral, (c) complying with any provision of any statute, regulation or treaty
of the United States as to any Collateral if compliance with such provision is a
condition to attachment, perfection or priority of, or ability of Lender to enforce,
Lendet's security interest in such Collateral, (d) obtaining governmental and other
third party consents and approvals, including without limitation any consent of any
licensor, lessor or other person obligated on Collateral, (¢) obtaining waivers from
mortgagees and landlords in form and substance satisfactory to Lender and (f) taking
all actions required by any eatlier versions of the Uniform Commercial Code or by
other law, as applicable in any relevant Uniform Commercial Code jurisdiction, or by
other law as applicable in any foreign jurisdiction.

5. Representations and Warranties Concerning Company's ILegal Status.
Company has previously delivered to Lender a certificate signed by Company and entitled
"Petfection Certificate” (the "Perfection Certificate"). Company represents and warrants to
Lender as follows: (a) Company's exact legal name is that indicated on the Perfection
Certificate and on the signature page hereof, (b) Company is an organization of the type and
organized in the jurisdiction set forth in the Perfection Certificate, (c) the Perfection Certificate
accurately sets forth Company's organizational identification number or accurately states that
Company has none, (d) the Perfection Certificate accurately sets forth Company's place of
business ot, if more than one, its chief executive office as well as Company's mailing address
if different and (e) all other information set forth on the Perfection Certificate pertaining to
Company is accurate and complete.

6. Covenants Concerning Company's Legal Status. Company covenants with
Lender as follows: (a) without providing at least 30 days prior written notice to Lender,
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Company will not change its name, its place of business or, if more than one, chief executive
office, or its mailing address or organizational identification number if it has one, (b) if
Company does not have an organizational identification number and later obtains one,
Company shall forthwith notify Lender of such organizational identification number, and (c)
Company will not change its type of organization, jurisdiction of organization or other legal
structure.

7. Representations and Warranties Concerning Collateral, Etc. Company further
represents and warrants to Lender as follows: (a) Company is the owner of the Collateral, free
from any adverse lien, security interest or other encumbrance, except for the security interest
created by this Agreement, (b) none of the Collateral constitutes, or is the proceeds of, "farm
products” as defined in §9-102(a)(34) of the Uniform Commercial Code of State, (c) none of
the account debtors or other persons obligated on any of the Collateral is a governmental
authority subject to the Federal Assignment of Claims Act or like federal, state or local statute
or rule in respect of such Collateral, (d) Company has at all times operated its business in
compliance with all applicable provisions of the federal Fair Labor Standards Act, as amended,
and with all applicable provisions of federal, state and local statutes and ordinances dealing
with the control, shipment, storage or disposal of hazardous materials or substances and ()
all other information set forth on the Perfection Certificate pertaining to the Collateral is
accurate and complete.

8. Covenants Concerning Collateral, Etc. Company further covenants with Lender
as follows: (a) the Collateral, to the extent not delivered to Lender pursuant to §2.3, will be
kept at those locations listed on the Perfection Certificate and Company will not remove the
Collateral from such locations, without providing at least 30 days prior written notice to
Lender, (b) except for the security interest herein granted, Company shall be the owner of the
Collateral free from any lien, security interest or other encumbrance, and Company shall
defend the same against all claims and demands of all persons at any time claiming the same
or any interests therein adverse to Lender, (¢) Company shall not pledge, mortgage or create,
or suffer to exist a security interest in the Collateral in favor of any person other than Lender,
(d) Company will keep the Collateral in good order and repair and will not use the same in
violation of law or any policy of insurance thereon, (¢) Company will permit Lender, or its
designee, may inspect the Collateral at any reasonable time, wherever located, (f) Company
will pay promptly when due all taxes, assessments, governmental charges and levies upon the
Collateral or incurred in connection with the use or operation of such Collateral or incurred
in connection with this Agreement, (g) Company will continue to operate, its business in
compliance with all applicable provisions of the federal Fair Labor Standards Act, as amended,
and with all applicable provisions of federal, state and local statutes and ordinances dealing
with the control, shipment, storage or disposal of hazardous materials or substances, and (h)
Company will not sell or otherwise dispose, or offer to sell or otherwise dispose, of the
Collateral or any interest therein except for sales of inventory in the ordinary course of
business.

9. Insurance.

9.1 Maintenance of Insurance. Company will maintain with financially sound
and reputable insurers insurance with respect to its properties and business against
such casualties and contingencies as shall be in accordance with general practices of
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10.

businesses engaged in similar activities in similar geographic areas. Such insurance
shall be in such minimum amounts that Company will not be deemed a co-insurer
under applicable insurance laws, regulations and policies and otherwise shall be in
such amounts, contain such terms, be in such forms and be for such periods as may
be reasonably satisfactory to Lender. In addition, all such insurance shall be payable
to Lender as loss payee. Without limiting the foregoing, Company will (i) keep all of
its physical property insured with casualty or physical hazard insurance on an "all
risks" basis, with broad form flood and earthquake coverages and electronic data
processing coverage, with a full replacement cost endorsement and an "agreed
amount” clause in an amount equal to 100% of the full replacement cost of such
propetty, (i) maintain all such workers' compensation or similar insurance as may be
required by law and (iif) maintain, in amounts equal to those generally maintained by
businesses engaged in similar activities in similar geographic areas, general public
liability insurance against claims of bodily injury, death or property damage occurring,
on, in or about the properties of Company; business interruption insurance; and
product liability insurance.

9.2 Insurance Proceeds. The proceeds of any casualty insurance in respect of
any casualty loss of any of the Collateral shall, subject to the rights, if any, of other
parties with a prior interest in the property covered thereby, (i) so long as no Default
or Event of Default has occurred and is continuing and to the extent that the amount
of such proceeds is less than $1,000.00, be disbursed to Company for direct
application by Company solely to the repair or replacement of Company's propetty
so damaged or destroyed and (ii) in all other circumstances, be held by Lender as cash
collateral for the Obligations. Lender may, at its sole option, disburse from time to
time all or any part of such proceeds so hold as cash collateral, upon such terms and
conditions as Lender may reasonably prescribe, for direct application by Company
solely to the repair or replacement of Company's property so damaged or destroyed,
or Lender may apply all or any part of such proceeds to the Obligations.

9.3 Notice of Cancellation, etc. All policies of insurance shall provide for at
least 30 days prior written cancellation notice to Lender. In the event of failure by
Company to provide and maintain insurance as herein provided, Lender may, at its
option, provide such insurance and charge the amount thereof to Company.
Company shall furnish Lender with certificates of insurance and policies evidencing
compliance with the foregoing insurance provision.

Collateral Protection Expenses; Preservation of Collateral.

10.1  Expenses Incurred by Lender. In its discretion, Lender may discharge
taxes and other encumbrances at any time levied or placed on any of the Collateral,

make repairs thereto and pay any necessary filing fees. Company agrees to reimburse
Lender on demand for any and all expenditures so made. Lender shall have no
obligation to Company to make any such expenditures, nor shall the making thereof
relieve Company of any default.
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10.2  Lender's Obligations and Duties. Anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding,
Company shall remain liable under each contract or agreement comprised in the Collateral to be
observed or performed by Company thereunder. Lender shall not have any obligation or liability under
any such contract or agreement by reason of or arising out of this Agreement or the receipt by Lender
of any payment relating to any of the Collateral, nor shall Lender be obligated in any manner to perform
any of the obligations of Company under or pursuant to any such contract or agreement, to make
inquiry as to the nature or sufficiency of any payment received by Lender in respect of the Collateral
or as to the sufficiency of any performance by any party under any such contract or agreement, to
present or file any claim, to take any action to enforce any performance or to collect the payment of
any amounts which may have been assigned to Lender or to which Lender may be entitled at any time
or times. Lendet's sole duty with respect to the custody, safe keeping and physical preservation of the
Collateral in its possession, under $9-207 of the Uniform Commercial Code of State or otherwise, shall
be to deal with such Collateral in the same manner as Lender deals with similar property for its own
account.

11. Securities and Deposits. Lender may at any time, at its option, transfer to itself or any nominee any
securities constituting Collateral, receive any income thereon and hold such income as additional Collateral or
apply it to the Obligations. Whether or not any Obligations are due, Lender may demand, sue for, collect, or
make any settlement or compromise which it deems desirable with respect to the Collateral. Regardless of the
adequacy of Collateral or any other security for the Obligations, any deposits or other sums at any time credited
by or due from Lender to Company may at any time be applied to or set off against any of the Obligations.

12. Notification to Account Debtors and Other Persons Obligated on Collateral. If an Event of
Default shall have occurred and be continuing, Company shall, at the request of Lender, notify account debtors
and other persons obligated on any of the Collateral of the security interest of Lender in any account, chattel
paper, general intangible, instrument or other Collateral and that payment thereof is to be made directly to
Lender ot to any financial institution designated by Lender as Lendet's agent therefor, and Lender may itself if
a Default or an Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing without notice to or demand upon
Company, so notify account debtors and other persons obligated on Collateral. After the making of such a
request or the giving of any such notification, Company shall hold any proceeds of collection of accounts,
chattel paper, general intangibles, instruments and other Collateral received by Company as trustee for Lender
without commingling the same with other funds of Company and shall turn the same over to Lender in the
identical form received, together with any necessary endorsements or assignments. Lender shall apply the
proceeds of collection of accounts, chattel paper, general intangibles, instruments and other Collateral received
by Lender to the Obligations, such proceeds to be immediately entered after final payment in cash or other
immediately available funds of the items giving rise to them.

13. Power of Attorney.

13.1  Appointment and Powers of Lender. Company hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints
Lender and any officer or agent thereof, with full power of substitution, as its true and lawful
attorneys- in-fact with full irrevocable power and authority in the place and stead of Company or in
Lendet's own name, for the purpose of carrying out the terms of this Agreement, to take any and all
appropriate action and to execute any and all documents and instruments that may be necessary or
desirable to accomplish the purposes of this Agreement and, without limiting the generality of the
foregoing, hereby gives said attorneys the power and right, on behalf of Company, without notice to
or assent by Company, to do the following:

() upon the occurrence and during the continuance of a Default or an Event of
Default, generally to sell, transfer, pledge, make any agreement with respect to or otherwise
deal with any of the Collateral in such manner as is consistent with the Uniform Commercial
Code of State and as fully and completely as though Lender were the absolute owner thereof
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for all purposes, and to do at Company's expense, at any time, or from time to time, all acts
and things which Lender deems necessary to protect, preserve or realize upon the Collateral
and Lender's security interest therein, in order to effect the intent of this Agreement, all as
fully and effectively as Company might do, including, without limitation, (i) the filing and
prosecuting of registration and transfer applications with the appropriate federal or local
agencies or authorities with respect to trademarks, copyrights and patentable inventions and
processes, (i) upon written notice to Company, the exercise of voting rights with respect to
voting securities, which rights may be exercised, if Lender so elects, with a view to causing the
liquidation in a commercially reasonable manner of assets of the issuer of any such securities
and (iii) the execution, delivery and recording, in connection with any sale or other disposition
of any Collateral, of the endorsements, assignments or other instruments of conveyance or
transfer with respect to such Collateral; and

(b) to the extent that Company's authorization given in §3 is not sufficient, to
file such financing statements with respect hereto, with or without Company's signature, or a
photocopy of this Agreement in substitution for a financing statement, as Lender may deem
appropriate and to execute in Company's name such financing statements and amendments
thereto and continuation statements which may require Company's signature.

13.2  Ratification by Company. To the extent permitted by law, Company hereby ratifies all that
said attorneys shall lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof This power of attorney is a power
coupled with an interest and shall be irrevocable.

13.3  No Duty on Lender. The powers conferred on Lender hereunder are solely to protect its
interests in the Collateral and shall not impose any duty upon it to exercise any such powers. Lender
shall be accountable only for the amounts that it actually receives as a result of the exercise of such
powers and neither it nor any of its officers, directors, employees or agents shall be responsible to
Company for any act or failure to act, except for Lendet's own gross negligence ot willful misconduct.

14. Remedies. If an Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing, Lender may, without notice
to or demand upon Company, declare this Agreement to be in default, and Lender shall thereafter have in any
jurisdiction in which enforcement hereof is sought, in addition to all other rights and remedies, the rights and
remedies of a secured party under the Uniform Commercial Code of State or of any jurisdiction in which
Collateral is located, including, without limitation, the right to take possession of the Collateral, and for that
purpose Lender may, so far as Company can give authority therefor, enter upon any premises on which the
Collateral may be situated and remove the same therefrom. Lender may in its discretion require Company to
assemble all or any part of the Collateral at such location or locations within the jurisdiction(s) of Company's
principal office(s) or at such other locations as Lender may reasonably designate. Unless the Collateral is
perishable or threatens to decline speedily in value or is of a type customarily sold on a recognized market,
Lender shall give to Company at least five Business Days prior written notice of the time and place of any
public sale of Collateral or of the time after which any private sale or any other intended disposition is to be
made. Company hereby acknowledges that five Business Days prior written notice of such sale or sales shall be
reasonable notice. In addition, Company waives any and all rights that it may have to a judicial hearing in
advance of the enforcement of any of Lendet's rights hereunder, including, without limitation, its right
following an Event of Default to take immediate possession of the Collateral and to exercise its rights with
respect thereto.

15. Standards for Exercising Remedies. To the extent that applicable law imposes duties on Lender to
exercise remedies in a commercially reasonable manner, Company acknowledges and agrees that it is not
commercially unreasonable for Lender (a) to fail to incur expenses reasonably deemed significant by Lender to
prepare Collateral for disposition or otherwise to complete raw material or work in process into finished goods
or other finished products for disposition, (b) to fail to obtain third party consents for access to Collateral to
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be disposed of, or to obtain or, if not required by other law, to fail to obtain governmental or third party
consents for the collection or disposition of Collateral to be collected or disposed of, (c) to fail to exercise
collection remedies against account debtors or other persons obligated on Collateral or to remove liens or
encumbrances on or any adverse claims against Collateral, (d) to exercise collection remedies against account
debtors and other persons obligated on Collateral directly or through the use of collection agencies and other
collection specialists, (¢) to advertise dispositions of Collateral through publications or media of general
circulation, whether or not the Collateral is of a specialized nature, (f) to contact other persons, whether or not
in the same business as Company, for expressions of interest in acquiring all or any portion of the Collateral,
(2) to hire one or more professional auctioneers to assist in the disposition of Collateral, whether or not the
collateral is of a specialized nature, (h) to dispose of Collateral by utilizing Internet sites that provide for the
auction of assets of the types included in the Collateral or that have the reasonable capability of doing so, or
that match buyers and sellers of assets, (i) to dispose of assets in wholesale rather than retail markets, disposition
warranties, (j) to disclaim disposition warranties, (k) to purchase insurance or credit enhancements to insure
Lender against risks of loss, collection or disposition of Collateral or to provide to Lender a guaranteed return
from the collection or disposition of Collateral, or (1) to the extent deemed appropriate by Lender, to obtain
the services of other brokers, investment Bankers, consultants and other professionals to assist Lender in the
collection or disposition of any of the Collateral. Company acknowledges that the purpose of this §15 is to
provide non-exhaustive indications of what actions or omissions by Lender would not be commercially
untreasonable in Lender's exercise of remedies against the Collateral and that other actions or omissions by
Lender shall not be deemed commercially unreasonable solely on account of not being indicated in this §15.
Without limitation upon the foregoing, nothing contained in this §15 shall be construed to grant any rights to
Company or to impose any duties on Lender that would not have been granted or imposed by this Agreement
ot by applicable law in the absence of this §15.

16. No Waiver by Lender, etc. Lender shall not be deemed to have waived any of its rights upon or
under the Obligations or the Collateral unless such waiver shall be in writing and signed by Lender. No delay
or omission on the part of Lender in exercising any right shall operate as a waiver of such right or any other

right. A waiver on any one occasion shall not be construed as a bar to or waiver of any right on any future
occasion. All rights and remedies of Lender with respect to the Obligations or the Collateral, whether evidenced
hereby or by any other instrument or papers, shall be cumulative and may be exercised singulatly, alternatively,
successively or concurrently at such time or at such times as Lender deems expedient.

17. Suretyship Waivers by Company. Company waives demand, notice, protest, notice of acceptance of
this Agreement, notice of loans made, credit extended, Collateral received or delivered or other action taken in
reliance hereon and all other demands and notices of any description. With respect to both the Obligations and
the Collateral, Company assents to any extension or postponement of the time of payment or any other
indulgence, to any substitution, exchange or release of or failure to perfect any security interest in any Collateral,
to the addition or release of any party or person primarily or secondarily liable, to the acceptance of partial
payment thereon and the settlement, compromising or adjusting of any thereof, all in such manner and at such
time or times as Lender may deem advisable. Lender shall have no duty as to the collection or protection of
the Collateral or any income thereon, nor as to the preservation of rights against prior parties, nor as to the
preservation of any rights pertaining thereto beyond the safe custody thereof as set forth in §10.2. Company
further waives any and all other suretyship defenses.

18. Marshalling. Lender shall not be required to marshal any present or future collateral security
(including but not limited to this Agreement and the Collateral) for, or other assurances of payment of, the
Obligations or any of them or to resort to such collateral security or other assurances of payment in any
particular order, and all of its rights hereunder and in respect of such collateral security and other assurances of
payment shall be cumulative and in addition to all other rights, however existing or arising. To the extent that
it lawfully may, Company hereby agrees that it will not invoke any law relating to the marshalling of collateral
which might cause delay in or impede the enforcement of Lendet's rights under this Agreement or under any
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other instrument creating or evidencing any of the Obligations or under which any of the Obligations is
outstanding or by which any of the Obligations is secured or payment thereof is otherwise assured, and, to the
extent that it lawfully may, Company hereby irrevocably waives the benefits of all such laws.

19. Proceeds of Dispositions; Expenses. Company shall pay to Lender on demand any and all expenses,
including reasonable attorneys' fees and disbursements, incurred or paid by Lender in protecting, preserving or
enforcing Lender's rights under or in respect of any of the Obligations or any of the Collateral, however,
specifically provided, this provisions shall not include Lender=s attorney=s fees associated with the preparation
of this security agreement and the promissory note. After deducting all of said expenses, the residue of any
proceeds of collection or sale of the Obligations or Collateral shall, to the extent actually received in cash, be
applied to the payment of the Obligations in such order or preference as Lender may determine, proper
allowance and provision being made for any Obligation, not then due, upon the final payment and satisfaction
in full of all of the Obligations and after making any payments required by Sections 9-608(a)(1)(C) or 9-615(2)(3)
of the Uniform Commercial Code of State, any excess shall be returned to Company, and Company shall remain
liable for any deficiency in the payment of the Obligations.

20. Overdue Amounts. Until paid, all amounts due and payable by Company hereunder shall be a debt
secured by the Collateral and shall bear, whether before or after judgment, interest at the note rate of interest.

21. Governing Law; Consent to Jurisdiction. THIS AGREEMENT IS INTENDED TO TAKE
EFFECT AS A SEALED INSTRUMENT AND SHALL BE GOVERNED BY, AND CONSTRUED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH, THE LAWS OF MISSOURI. Company agrees that any suit for the enforcement of
this Agreement may be brought in the courts of State or any federal court sitting therein and consents to the
non-exclusive jurisdiction of such court and to service of process in any such suit being made upon Company

by mail at the address . Company hereby waives any objection that it may now or hereafter
have to the venue of any such suit or any such court or that such suit is brought in an inconvenient court.

22. Waiver of Jury Trial. Company WAIVES ITS RIGHT TO A JURY TRIAL WITH RESPECT TO
ANY ACTION OR CLAIM ARISING OUT OF ANY DISPUTE IN CONNECTION WITH THIS
AGREEMENT, ANY RIGHTS OR OBLIGATIONS HEREUNDER OR THE PERFORMANCE OF
ANY SUCH RIGHTS OR OBLIGATIONS. Except as prohibited by law, Company waives any right which it
may have to claim or recover in any litigation referred to in the preceding sentence any special, exemplary,

punitive or consequential damages or any damages other than, or in addition to, actual damages. Company (i)
certifies that neither Lender nor any representative, agent or attorney of Lender has represented, expressly or
otherwise, that Lender would not, in the event of litigation, seek to enforce the foregoing waivers and (ii)
acknowledges that, in entering into the Agreement, Lender is relying upon, among other things, the waivers
and certifications contained in this §22.

23. Miscellaneous. The headings of each section of this Agreement are for convenience only and shall
not define or limit the provisions thereof. This Agreement and all rights and obligations hereunder shall be
binding upon Company and its respective successors and assigns, and shall inure to the benefit of Lender and
its successors and assigns. If any term of this Agreement shall be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable,
the validity of all other terms hereof shall in no way be affected thereby, and this Agreement shall be construed
and be enforceable as if such invalid, illegal or unenforceable term had not been included herein. Company
acknowledges receipt of a copy of this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, intending to be legally bound, Company has caused this Agreement to be duly
executed as of the date first above written.

[Franchisee]

By:
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[authorized party]
Accepted:

Aire-Master of America, Inc.

By:
Walter R. Heinle, President/Chief Operating Officer
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CERTIFICATE OF ACKNOWLEDGMENT

STATE OF MISSOURI )
) ss
COUNTY OF )
On this __ day of 202__, before me personally appeared
to me personally known, who being duly sworn, did say that he/she is the
of that the seal affixed to this instrument is the corporate seal of

said corporation, and that the said instrument was signed and sealed in behalf of said corporation by authority
of its Board of Directors and he/she acknowledged said instrument to be the free act and deed of said
corporation.

In Testimony Whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal, at my office in
the day and year first above written.

Notary Public
My Commission Expires:

[Notary Form may be modified depending on form of organization, if any of Franchisee]

STATE OF MISSOURI )
) ss
COUNTY OF )
On this day of , 202___, before me personally appeared Walter R. Heinle,

to me personally known, who being duly sworn, did say that he is the President/Chief Operating Officer of
Aire-Master of America, Inc., that the seal affixed to this instrument is the corporate seal of said corporation,
and that the said instrument was signed and sealed in behalf of said corporation by authority of its Board of
Directors and he acknowledged said instrument to be the free act and deed of said corporation.

In Testimony Whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal, at my office in
the day and year first above written.

Notary Public
My Commission Expires:

UCC/SecurityAgrUFOC/156521.doc
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EXHIBIT A
NAMED COLLATERAL-SECURITY AGREEMENT

Aire-Master of America, Inc. franchise for the following counties in the state(s) of

And, all inventory of goods of whatever description held for sale or lease by the debtor, now
or existing or hereafter created or acquired by Debtor or in which Debtor now or hereafter
acquires any rights, title or interest (all of the foregoing includes, without limitation, all
accounts and/or contract rights arising out of or pertaining to the same), wherever located,
together with all attachments, parts, accessories, additions and substitutions, including all
returns and repossessions; all accounts, accounts receivable, contract rights, chattel paper and
general intangibles, now owned or hereafter existing in favor of or acquired by debtor; all
equipment, furniture and fixtures, wherever located, now owned or existing or hereafter
created or acquired by Debtor or in which Debtor now or hereafter acquires any rights, title
or interest (all of the foregoing includes, without limitation, all accounts and/or contract rights
arising out of or pertaining to the same) and all replacements, substitutions and accessions
thereto and thereof, all reserves, however created, of debtor in the possession or control of
secured party all of debtot's rights to any rebates, discounts, credits, factory holdbacks and
incentive payments which may become due to debtor by the manufacturer or distributor with
respect to any of the inventory, and all proceeds from all or any part of the above described
collateral, including, but not limited to, insurance proceeds payable by reason of loss or damage
to any of the collateral, cash, goods, equipment, instruments, accounts, chattel paper, contract
rights, general intangibles, replacement inventory or otherwise, used by debtors in operation
of the above Aire-Master of America, Inc. franchise.
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PERFECTION CERTIFICATE
(UCC Financing Statements)

The undersigned, the of , a

(the "Company"), hereby certifies, with reference to a certain note and Secutity

Agreement dated as of , 202 (terms defined in such Security Agreement having the
same meanings herein as specified therein), between Company and Aire-Master of America, Inc., a Missouri
corporation (the "Lender"), to Lender as follows:

1.

@)

®)

@)

Name. Company's exact legal name as that name appears on its Certificate of Incorporation
is:

Other Identifying Factors.

Company's mailing address is:

If different from its mailing address, Company's place of business or, if more than one, its chief
executive office is located at the following address:

el
[~
IS
—
(@)

Address County

Company's type of organization is:

Company's jurisdiction of organization is:
Company's state issued organizational identification number is:

Other Names, Etc.

The following is a list of all other names (including trade names or similar appellations) used
by Company, or any other business or organization to which Company became the successor
by merger, consolidation, acquisition, change in form, nature or jurisdiction of organization
or otherwise, now or at any time during the past five years:

Attached hereto as Schedule 3 is the information required in §2 for any other business or
organization to which Company became the successor by merger, consolidation, acquisition,
change in form, nature or jurisdiction of organization or otherwise, now or at any time
during the past five years.

Other Current Locations.

The following are all other locations in the United States of America in which Company
maintains any books or records relating to any of the Collateral consisting of accounts,
instruments, chattel paper, general intangibles or mobile goods:

]
[~
IS
—
(@)

Address County
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(b) The following are all other places of business of Company in the United States of America:

Address County State
(©) The following are all other locations in the United States of America where any of the

Collateral consisting of inventory or equipment is located:

Address County State
) The following are the names and addresses of all persons or entities other than Company,

such as lessees, consignees, warchousemen or purchasers of chattel paper, which have
possession or are intended to have possession of any of the Collateral consisting of
instruments, chattel paper, inventory or equipment:

Name Mailing Address County State
5. Prior Locations.
) Set forth below is the information required by §4(a) or (b) with respect to each location or

place of business previously maintained by Company at any time during the past five years in
a state in which Company has previously maintained a location or place of business at any
time during the past four months:

Address County State
Set forth below is the information required by §4(c) or (d) with respect to each other
q y p

location at which, or other person or entity with which, any of the Collateral consisting of
inventory or equipment has been previously held at any time during the past twelve months:

Address County State
6. Fixtures. Attached hereto as Schedule 6 is the information required by UCC §9-502(b) or

former UCC §9-402(5) of each state in which any of the Collateral consisting of fixtures are or are to be
located and the name and address of each real estate recording office where a mortgage on the real estate on
which such fixtures are or are to be located would be recorded.

7. Unusual Transactions. Except for those purchases, acquisitions and other transactions
described on Schedule 3 or on Schedule 7 attached hereto, all of the Collateral has been originated by
Company in the ordinary course of Company's business ot consists of goods which have been acquired by
Company in the ordinary course from a person in the business of selling goods of that kind.

8. File Search Reports. Attached hereto as Schedule 8A is a true copy of a file search report
from the Uniform Commercial Code filing officer (or, if such officer does not issue such reports, from an
experienced Uniform Commercial Code search organization acceptable to Lender) (i) in each jurisdiction
identified in §2(d) or in § 4 or 5 with respect to each name set forth in §1 or 3, (if) from each filing officer in
each real estate recording office identified on Schedule 6 with respect to real estate on which Collateral
consisting of fixtures are or are to be located and (iii) in each jurisdiction in which any of the transactions
described in Schedule 3 or 7 took place with respect to the legal name of the person from which Company
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purchased or otherwise acquired any of the Collateral. Attached hereto as Schedule 8(B) is a true copy of each
financing statement or other filing identified in such file search reports.

9. UCC Filings. A duly authorized financing statement, in a form acceptable to Lender and
containing the indication of the Collateral set forth on Schedule 9(A) has been duly filed in the central
Uniform Commercial Code filing office in the jurisdiction identified in §2(d) and in each real estate recording
office referred to on Schedule 6 hereto. Attached hereto as Schedule 9(B) is a true copy of each such filing
duly acknowledged or otherwise identified by the filing office.

10. Termination Statements. A duly signed or otherwise authorized termination statement in
form acceptable to Lender has been duly filed in each applicable jurisdiction identified in §2(d), 3, 4 and 5 or
on Schedule 3 or 7 hereto (or, in the case of Schedule 3 or 7 a release acceptable to Lender from the secured
party of the person from which Company purchased or otherwise acquired the Collateral identified on
Schedule 3 or 7) has been delivered to Lender. Attached hereto as Schedule 10 is a true copy of each such
filing duly acknowledged or otherwise identified by the filing office (and of each such release).

11. Schedule of Filing. Attached hereto as Schedule 11 is a schedule setting forth filing
information with respect to the filings described in $§9 and 10.

12. Filing Fees. All filing fees and taxes payable in connection with the filings described in $§§9
and 10 have been paid.

[Franchisee]

[authorized party]
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UCC FINANCING STATEMENT

FOLLOW INSTRUCTIONS (front and back) CAREFULLY

A. NAME & PHONE OF CONTACT AT FILER [optional]

-

L

B. SEND ACKNOWLEDGMENT TO: (Name and Address)

_

THE ABOVE SPACE IS FOR FILING OFFICE USE ONLY

1.DEBTOR'S EXACT FULL LEGAL NAME - insertonly one debtor name (1a or 1b) -do notabbreviate orcombine names

1a. ORGANIZATION'S NAME

OR 195 TNDIVIDUALS LAST NAME FIRST NAME MIDDLE NAME SUFFIX
c. MAILING ADDRESS CITY STATE |POSTAL CODE COUNTRY
1d. SEE INSTRUCTIONS ADD'LINFO RE [1e. TYPE OF ORGANIZATION 1f. JURISDICTION OF ORGANIZATION 1g. ORGANIZATICNAL ID #, if any

ORGANIZATION
DEBTOR

DNONE

2. ADDITIONAL DEBTOR'S EXACT FULL LEGAL NAME - insert only one debtor name (2a or 2b) - do not abbreviate or combine names

2a. ORGANIZATION'S NAME

OR 5 TNOVIDUAL'S LAST NAME FIRST NAME MIDDLE NAME SUFFIX
2c. MAILING ADDRESS CITY STATE |POSTAL CODE COUNTRY
2d. SEE INSTRUCTIONS ADD'L INFORE | 2e. TYPE OF ORGANIZATION 2f. JURISDICTION OF ORGANIZATION 2g. ORGANIZATIONAL ID #, if any

ORGANIZATION
DEBTOR

DNONE

3.SECURED PARTY'S NAME (or NAME of TOTAL ASSIGNEE of ASSIGNOR S/P) - insertonly ong secured party name (3a or3b)

3a. ORGANIZATION'S NAME

ik 3b. INDIVIDUAL'S LAST NAME FIRST NAME MIDDLE NAME SUFFIX
3c. MAILING ADDRESS CITY STATE POSTAL CODE COUNTRY
4. This FINANCING STATEMENT covers the following collateral:
5. ALTERNATIVE DESIGNATION [if applicable] LESSEE/LESSOR CONSIGNEE/CONSIGNOR BAILEE/BAILOR DSELLERIEUYER AG. LIEN DNON-UCC FILING
6. This FINANCING STATEMENT is to be filed [for record] (or recorded) in the REAL 7.Check to REQUEST SEARCH REFPORT(S) on Debtor(s) D D
| |ESTATE RECORDS __ Attach Addendum [if applicable] [ADDITIONAL FEE] loptionall All Debtors Debtor 1 Debtor 2

8. OPTIONAL FILER REFERENCE DATA

FILING OFFICE COPY — UCC FINANCING STATEMENT (FORM UCC1) (REV. 05/22/02)



EXHIBIT A
NAMED COLLATERAL-SECURITY AGREEMENT

Aire-Master of America, Inc. franchise for the following counties in the state(s) of

And, all inventory of goods of whatever description held for sale or lease by the debtor, now or
existing or hereafter created or acquired by Debtor or in which Debtor now or hereafter acquires
any rights, title or interest (all of the foregoing includes, without limitation, all accounts and/or
contract rights arising out of or pertaining to the same), wherever located, together with all
attachments, parts, accessories, additions and substitutions, including all returns and repossessions;
all accounts, accounts receivable, contract rights, chattel paper and general intangibles, now owned
or hereafter existing in favor of or acquired by debtor; all equipment, furniture and fixtures,
wherever located, now owned or existing or hereafter created or acquired by Debtor or in which
Debtor now or hereafter acquires any rights, title or interest (all of the foregoing includes, without
limitation, all accounts and/or contract rights arising out of or pertaining to the same) and all
replacements, substitutions and accessions thereto and thereof, all reserves, however created, of
debtor in the possession or control of secured party all of debtor's rights to any rebates, discounts,
credits, factory holdbacks and incentive payments which may become due to debtor by the
manufacturer or distributor with respect to any of the inventory, and all proceeds from all or any
part of the above described collateral, including, but not limited to, insurance proceeds payable by
reason of loss or damage to any of the collateral, cash, goods, equipment, instruments, accounts,
chattel paper, contract rights, general intangibles, replacement inventory or otherwise, used by
debtors in operation of the above Aire-Master of America, Inc. franchise.
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Exhibit A.5
LOAN GUARANTEE AGREEMENT

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, and to enable ("Debtor)," to obtain credit from time
to time of Aire-Master of America, Inc. ("Lender"), we request Lender to extend to Debtor such credit
as Lender may deem proper, and we hereby jointly and severally guarantee the full and prompt
payment to Lender at maturity, and at all times thereafter, and also at the time hereafter provided, of
any and all indebtedness, liability and obligations of every nature and kind of Debtor to Lender, and
every balance and part thereof, whether now owing or due, or which may hereafter, from time to time,
be owing or due, and howsoever heretofore or hereafter created or arising or evidenced, to the extent
of Dollars ($ ), and we jointly and severally also agree to pay in addition thereto,
all costs, expenses and reasonable attorney's fees at any time paid or incurred in endeavoring to collect
indebtedness, liabilities and obligations, and in and about enforcing this instrument.

All diligence in collection, and all presentment for payment, demand, protest, notice of protest, and
notice of nonpayment, dishonor and default, and of the acceptance of this guaranty, and of any and
all extensions of credit hereunder, are hereby expressly waived.

The granting of credit from time to time by Lender to Debtor in excess of the amount of this guaranty
and without notice to the undersigned, is hereby authorized and shall in no way affect or impair this

guaranty.

Authority and consent are hereby expressly given Lender from time to time, and without any notice
to the undersigned, to give and make such extensions, renewals, indulgences, settlements and
compromises as it may deem proper with respect to any of the indebtedness, liabilities and obligations
covered by this guaranty, including the taking or releasing of security and surrendering of documents.

In case of the death, dissolution, liquidation, failure, insolvency or bankruptcy of Debtor, all of the
indebtedness, liabilities and obligations, to the extent of the amount of this guaranty, shall, at the
option of Lender, become immediately due from, and be forthwith paid by the undersigned to Lender,
the same as though said debts, liabilities and obligations had matured by lapse of time.

This guaranty shall be construed according to the laws of the State of Missouri, in which state it shall
be performed by the undersigned.

This guaranty shall be binding upon the undersigned jointly and severally, and upon the heirs, legal
representatives and assigns of the undersigned, and each of them, respectively, and shall inure to the
benefit of Lender, its successors, legal representatives and assigns.

Signed and sealed by the undersigned, this day of 202__

>
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EXHIBIT A.6
[THIS DOCUMENT MAY REQUIRE REVISION TO COMPLY WITH LOCAL LAW]

DEED OF TRUST

THIS DEED, Made and entered into this day of ,202__, by and between
of the County of and State of Missouri (“Grantor”),
of the County of and State of Missouri

(“Trustee” and “Grantee”). Grantee’s mailing address:

WITNESSETH, That Grantot, in consideration of the debt and trust hereinafter mentioned and
created, and the sum of Ten Dollars ($10.00) paid by Grantee to Grantor, the receipt and sufficiency
of which is hereby acknowledged, do\es by these presents, Grant, Bargain and Sell, Convey and
Confirm unto Trustee, as Grantee, the following described real estate, situated, lying and being in the
County of and State of Missouri, to wit:

[legal description]

TO HAVE AND HOLD the same with the appurtenances to Trustee, and to Trustee’s successors
and assigns, forever, In trust, however, for the following purpose:

NOW THEREFORE, if Grantor, or anyone for Grantor shall well and truly pay off and discharge
the debt and interest expressed in the Note and every part thereof (“Debt” or “Indebtedness”), when
the same shall become due, which Grantor agrees to do, and payable according to the true tenor, date
and effect of the Note, then this deed shall be void, and the Property shall be released at the cost of
Grantor; but should Grantor fail or refuse to pay the Debt, or interest or any part thereof due on the
Debt, and pay, when due, all taxes and assessments, general and special, hereafter levied or charged
upon the Property, and keep the covenants herein contained and the improvements on the Property
continuously insured by an insurance company, to Beneficiary’s satisfaction in the sum of
Dollars ($___ ), and the policies therefore assigned and delivered to Beneficiary,
and keep the Property clear of all statutory lien claims and interest, or any part thereof, when the same
or any part thereof shall become due and payable, according to the true tenor and effect of the Note
or default in any of the terms of the Note or this Deed of Trust, or to pay any of said taxes, or effect
such insurance, or discharge such statutory lien claims, then the holder of part thereof, when the same
or any part thereof shall become due and payable, according to the true tenor and effect of the Note
or default in any of the terms of the Note or this Deed of Trust, or to pay any of said taxes, or effect
such insurance, or discharge such statutory lien claims, then the holder of the Note, or any part thereof,
may pay the same, and the sums so paid shall bear interest at the rate of ___ percent (___ %) per
annum, and be a charge upon the Property and secured by this deed, and upon any such failure or
refusal, or upon any breach of any covenant herein contained, expressed or implied, this deed shall
remain in full force; and at the option of the holder of the Note, or any part thereof, the whole of the
Indebtedness shall, without notice to Grantor\s, become due and payable forthwith, and Trustee, or
in case of Trustee’s absence, death or refusal to act, or disability in anywise, when part thereof, when
the same or any part thereof shall become due and payable, according to the true tenor and effect of
the Note or default in any of the terms of the Note or this Deed of Trust, or to pay any of said taxes,
or effect such insurance, or discharge such statutory lien claims, then the holder of the Note, or any
part thereof, may pay the same, and the sums so paid shall bear interest at the rate of ____ percent
(___%) per annum, and be a charge upon the Property and secured by this deed, and upon any such
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failure or refusal, or upon any breach of any covenant herein contained, expressed or implied, this
deed shall remain in full force; and at the option of the holder of the Note, or any part thereof, the
whole of the Indebtedness shall, without notice to Grantor\s, become due and payable forthwith, and
Trustee, or in case of Trustee’s absence, death or refusal to act, or disability in anywise, when any
advertisement and sale are to be made hereunder, then whoever shall be sheriff of
County, Missouri (“Sheriff”), at the time any such advertisement and sale are to be made (who shall
thereupon for the purposes of that advertisement and sale succeed to Trustee’s title to the Property
and the trust herein created respecting same), may proceed to sell the Property or any part thereof, at
public venue to the highest bidder, at the front door of the Circuit Courthouse at which sheriff's sales
are usually made, in the County of at , Missouri, for cash, first
giving twenty (20) day's notice of the time, terms and place of sale, and of the property to be sold, by
advertisement in some newspaper printed and published in said county, and upon such sale shall
execute and deliver a deed in fee simple of the property sold to the purchaser or purchasers thereof,
and receive the proceeds of said sale; and any statement of facts or recitals by Trustee, or any person
assuming to act as successor to Trustee, in relation to the non-payment of the money secured or
agreed to be paid or default in or breach of any condition, covenant, or agreement herein, the
advertisement, sale, receipt of the money, appointment as successor or happening of any fact
preliminary to the succession as trustee of such person, shall be received as prima facie evidence of
such facts and such trustee shall out of the proceeds of said sale pay first, the costs and expenses of
executing this trust, including legal compensation to Trustee for Trustee’s services, and reasonable
attorney's fees which shall be immediately due upon first publication of sale aforesaid; and next shall
apply the proceeds remaining over to the payment of taxes, insurance and statutory lien claims paid
by the holders of Indebtedness, and interest thereon, as aforesaid; and next, to the payment of Debt
and interest, or so much thereof as remains unpaid; and the remainder, if any, shall be paid to
Grantor\s, or Grantor\’s\s’ legal representatives; and in case any suit is instituted for the foreclosure
of this Deed of Trust Grantor\s will pay reasonable attorney's fees, which shall also be payable upon
institution of suit, and that a decree and judgment may be rendered for the payment of the said sum
out of the proceeds of sale upon foreclosure, or otherwise, in addition to the taxable costs of such
suits. And upon default in performance of the agreements herein, or payment of any moneys hereby
secured, in case of foreclosure by suit, by the holder of the Indebtedness, or any part thereof, a receiver
to take possession of and collect the rents and profits of the Property shall be appointed as a matter
of right, at the instance of holder or holders of Indebtedness or any part thereof.

It is further provided and agreed that without Trustee’s death, absence, refusal or inability to act of
Trustee, Beneficiary, or any legal holder of the Note or Notes, or the attorney-in-fact of either of
them, may by writing, signed and acknowledged, with or without Trustee’s consent, and at any time
appoint a successor to Trustee in Trustee’s stead or place, other than said sheriff, which successor
shall thereupon become vested with all the estate, interest, power and rights in or concerning said
lands or property, or any part thereof, granted to or vested in Trustee by this deed.

It is further agreed that Trustee or Trustee’s successor(s) may sell or convey the Property under the
power aforesaid, although Trustee or Trustee’s successor has been, may now be, or may hereafter at
any time be, the agent or attorney of Beneficiary or the holder of the Notes, and all right of equity or
redemption upon such sale shall cease and be thereby determined notwithstanding Trustee may be
such attorney or agent, and whether the holder of the Note or some other person is the purchaser at
such sale.

Until some default in the condition hereof occurs, Trustee lets and demises the Property to Grantor,
for which Grantor agrees to pay the sum of one cent ($.01) per month. And Grantor further agrees
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that should default occur and sale under this deed be made, then upon such sale Grantors, or the then
owner or occupant of Property, shall become the tenant of the purchaser of the Property from month

to month at a rental of Dollars ($ ) petr month.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor has hereunto set his hand and seal the day and year first above
written.

STATE OF MISSOURI )

)ss
COUNTY OF )
On this day of A.D., 202___, before me, personally appeared

to me known to be the person described in and who executed the foregoing
instrument, and acknowledged that he executed the same as his free act and deed. Witness my hand
and Notarial seal subscribed and affixed in said County and State the day and year in this certificate
above written.

Notary Public

Print Name
My Commission is in County.
My Commission Expires:
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Exhibit A.7
RELEASE AND CONSENT TO TRANSFER AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT ("Agreement"), made effective the ___ day of , 202__, ("Effective
Date") by and between Aire-Master of America, Inc., a Missouri corporation ("Aire-Master"), and
dba Aire-Master of ("Franchise"), and

and
as guarantor(s) (individually or

>

collectively "Guarantor").

WHEREAS, Aire-Master, Franchisee, and Guarantor entered into a franchise agreement dated
, 202__, together with any amendments thereto (the "Franchise
Agreement"), for the Territory set forth on Exhibit A ("Territory"). Capitalized terms used herein but
not otherwise defined herein have the meanings ascribed in the Franchise Agreement unless otherwise
expressly stated or clearly required by the context.

WHEREAS, the Franchise Agreement contains certain provisions regarding transfer and Franchisee
desites to transfer its/their interest in the Franchise Agreement to
("Transferee").

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements herein contained,
the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

1. Aire-Master waives it right of first refusal to acquire Franchisee’s Franchise.
2. Aire-Master consents to Franchisee’s transfer of its/their interest in the Franchise

Agreement and Territory as set forth on Exhibit B to Transferee, subject to Franchise and or the
Transferee complying with the following:

a. satisfaction of all Franchisee’s accrued monetary obligations to Aire-Master and all other
outstanding obligations related to the Licensed Business;

b. Transferee demonstrates to Aire-Master's satisfaction that it:

i.  meets Aire-Master's managerial and business standards;
ii.  possesses a good moral character, business reputation, and credit rating;
ii.  has the aptitude and ability to conduct the Licensed Business herein (as may
be evidenced by prior related business experience or otherwise);
iv.  has adequate financial resources and capital to operate the Licensed Business;
and
v.  otherwise meets the then current requirements for new franchisees.

c. Transferee furnishes to Aire-Master the financial and other information or documents
Aire-Master requests, and completes the forms or documents Aire-Master requires.

d. Transferee executes (and/or, on Aire-Mastet's request, causes all interested patties to
execute) Aire-Master's then current standard form franchise agreement and other ancillary
agreement(s) Aire-Master requires.

e. At the transferee's expense and on other terms and conditions Aire-Master reasonably
requites, transferee and/or transferee's manager completes the training course then in
effect for new franchisees.

f. Payment to Aire-Master of the Ten Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($10,500.00) transfer
fee for any assignment or splitting of the Territory, for each Territory or portion thereof
transferred to separate persons or entities.

0009-03.17/Aire-Master of America FDD - 2024 DRAFT [v8].docxPage A. - 110



3. All terms and provisions of the Franchise Agreement which by their terms continue
beyond the termination of the franchisee granted shall continue in full force and effect.

4. Franchisee shall immediately as of the Effective Date cease to have the right to
perform any services or use, by advertising or in any manner whatsoever the System and shall comply
with the Franchise Agreement provisions on termination, specifically including provisions preventing
competition and maintaining confidentiality of all information, knowledge, know how, and operational
information pertaining to the Franchises and the System not generally known or otherwise available
to persons not holding an Aire-Master franchise, except to the extent that there is some other specific
agreement in writing to the contrary.

5. Franchisee, for itself, its successors and assigns, forever releases, acquits, and
discharges Aire-Master, its directors and officers, employees or agents, their successors and assigns
and any person or entity liable on their behalf of and from all claims of any kind whatsoever past or
present, including claims for damages, costs, expenses and attorney's fees, whether known or
unknown, whether at law or equity, whether in tort or in contract, or under statute or otherwise.

6. Guarantor, for themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors and
assigns forever releases, acquits, and discharges Aire-Master, its directors and officers, employees or
agents, their successors and assigns and any person or entity liable on their behalf of and from all
claims of any kind whatsoever past or present, including claims for damages, costs, expenses and
attorney's fees, whether known or unknown, whether at law or equity, whether in tort or in contract,
or under statute or otherwise.

7. Aire-Master, for itself, its successors and assigns forever releases, acquits, and
discharges Franchisee, its directors and officers, employees or agents, their successors and assigns of
and from all claims of any kind whatsoever past or present, including claims for damages, costs,
expenses and attorney's fees, whether known or unknown, whether at law or equity, whether in tort
or in contract, or under statute or otherwise, except with regard to the continuing obligations of
Franchisee as are provided for in this Agreement.

8. Aire-Master, for itself, its successors and assigns forever releases, acquits, and
discharges Guarantor, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns of and from all
claims of any kind whatsoever past or present, including claims for damages, costs, expenses and
attorney's fees, whether known or unknown, whether at law or equity, whether in tort or in contract,
or under statute or otherwise, except with regard to the continuing obligations of Franchisee as are
provided for in this Agreement.

9. This is a Missouri contract and shall be governed by laws of that state. This Contract
may be modified only by written instrument signed by all the parties hereto. Any notices required
herein are effective on deposit in the United States mail, postage prepaid by Certified Mail or
Registered Mail, return receipt requested to the last known address of the respective party to receive
notice. This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties and there are no other agreements,
warranties or representations, oral or otherwise. Each party has the right to seek to obtain injunctive
relief against threatened conduct that will cause it loss or damage, under the usual equity rules,
including the applicable rules for obtaining restraining orders and preliminary injunctions. If default
results in litigation, the prevailing party shall recover, in addition to damages or equitable relief, the
cost of litigation, interest from the date of default at the rate of 10% per annum, and a reasonable
attorney's fee. Franchisee and Guarantor, by entering into this Agreement, hereby personally submit
to and acknowledge the personal jurisdiction of the Circuit Court of the Judicial Circuit of the State
of Missouri, and of the Federal Court for the Western District of Missouri. This Contract shall be
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binding upon and shall operate for the benefit of the parties hereto. Anything to the contrary herein
notwithstanding, nothing in this Agreement is intended, nor shall be deemed, to confer any rights or
remedies under or by reason of this Agreement on any person or legal entity other than Aire-Master,
Franchisee or Guarantor. This Contract shall be binding on the parties' respective executors,
administrators, successors, heirs and assigns.

IN WITNESS HEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands and seals effective the date first
written above.

FRANCHISOR: Aire-Master of America, Inc.
By:
Walter R. Heinle, President/Chief Operating Officer
(SEAL)
ATTEST:

Walter R. Heinle, Assistant Secretary
FRANCHISEE:

(SEAL)
ATTEST:

, Secretary

GUARANTOR(S):
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STATE OF MISSOURI )
) ss
COUNTY OF CHRISTIAN )

On this day of , 202 , before me personally appeared Walter R. Heinle, to me
known personally, who being duly sworn did say that he is President/Chief Operating Officer of Aire-Master
of America, Inc., that the seal affixed to this instrument is the Corporate seal of said Corporation and that the
said instrument was signed and sealed in behalf of said Corporation by authority of its Board of Directors and
Walter R. Heinle acknowledges said instrument to be the free act and deed of said Corporation.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal at my office in
Nixa, Missouri, the day and year first above written.

Notary Public
My Commission Expires:
STATE OF )
) ss
COUNTY OF )
On this ___ day of , 202___, before me personally appeared

, who being duly sworn did say that he/she is President of Franchisee, that
the seal affixed to this instrument is the Corporate seal of said Corporation and that the said instrument was
signed and sealed in behalf of said Corporation by authority of its Board of Directors and
acknowledges said instrument to be the free act and deed

of said Corporation.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal at my office in
, the day and year first above written.

Notary Public
My Commission Expires:
STATE OF )
) ss
COUNTY OF )
On this __ day of 202___, before me personally appeared
and , husband and wife, to me known to

be the persons described in and who executed the foregoing instrument in their individual capacities, and
acknowledged that they executed the same as their free act and deed.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal at my office in
, the day and year first above written.

Notary Public
My Commission Expires:
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Exhibit A.8
Designated Persons / Patriot Act Affidavit

State of )
) ss
County of )

The undersigned, being duly sworn, deposes and says:

Neither I, my Affiliates, or the direct or indirect owner of any stock, membership interests or other ownership
interests in any of the foregoing (collectively, "Transaction Persons") is subject to sanctions of the United States
government or in violation of any applicable laws relating to terrorism or money laundering, including
Executive Order No. 13224, 66 Fed. Reg. 49079 ("Terrorism Executive Order") or a Person similarly designated
under any related enabling legislation or any other similar executive order (collectively with the Terrorism
Executive Order, the "Executive Orders"), the Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate
Tools Required to Intercept and Obstruct Terrorism Act of 2001 (Public Law 107-56, "Patriot Act"), any
sanctions and regulations promulgated and as amended from time to time under authority granted by the
Trading with the Enemy Act, 50 U.S.C. App. 1-44, the International Emergency Economic Powers Act, 50
U.S.C. §§ 1701-06, the Iraqgi Sanctions Act, Publ. L. 101-513; United Nations Participation Act, 22 U.S.C. §
287c, the International Security and Development Cooperation Act, 22 US.C. § 2349 aa-9, the Cuban
Democracy Act, 22 U.S.C. {§ 6001-10, the Cuban Liberty and Democratic Solidarity Act, 18 U.S.C. §§ 2332d
and 2339b, and the Foreign Narcotics Kingpin Designation Act, Publ. L. 106-120.

None of the Transaction Persons is: (i) listed on the Specially Designated Nationals and Blocked Persons List
maintained by the Office of Foreign Assets Control, and/or any other similar list (the "Lists") maintained by
that office pursuant to any authorizing statute, Executive Order or regulation; or (i) a Person ("Designated
Person") either: (A) included within the term "designated national" as defined in the Cuban Assets Control
Regulations, 31 C.F.R. Part 515; or (B) designated under Sections 1(a), 1(b), 1(c), or 1(d) of the Terrorism
Executive Order or a Person similarly designated under any related enabling legislation or any similar Executive
Otders.

None of the Transaction Persons is or will knowingly: (i) conduct any business or engage in making or receiving
any contribution of funds, goods or services to or for the benefit of any Designated Person; (ii) deal in, or
otherwise engage in, any transaction relating to any property or interest in property blocked pursuant to any
Executive Order or the Patriot Act; or (iii) engage in or conspire to engage in any transaction that evades or
avoid, or has the purpose of evading or avoiding, or attempts to violate, any of the provisions set forth in any
Executive Otrder or the Patriot Act.

All individuals and entities who are direct, indirect, or beneficial owners of stock, membership interests or other
ownership interests of your affiant and your affiant’s entity are correctly identified below:
(if none, state)

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have executed this instrtument on this day of ,202__

On this ___ day of , 202__, before me personally came , to be known
and known to me as the individual described in and who executed the foregoing document and acknowledged
to me that s/he, executed the same.
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EXHIBIT A9
AIRE-MASTER OF AMERICA, INC.
PRE-FRANCHISE AGREEMENT EXECUTION
DEPOSIT AGREEMENT

WHEREAS, and , ("Applicant") have/has applied for
consideration to become an Aire-Master System franchisee, and assuming successful completion of the
application process, Applicant and Aire-Master of America, Inc. ("Franchisor"), anticipate entering into a
Franchise Agreement ("Franchise Agreement").

AND WHEREAS, Franchisor will expend significant time and effort and incur significant expense in
reviewing the application anticipate of signing the Franchise Agreement, and [NOTE THIS COMMITMENT]
Franchisor agrees not to grant a franchise for the territory for which Applicant is under consideration until
Franchisor’s final determination of whether or not to award a franchise to Applicant.

In consideration of Franchisor’s consideration of Applicant and review of Applicant and not awarding other
franchises for the territory under consideration, and Applicant’s application for consideration, Franchisor and
Applicant agree that:

1. Applicant will deposit ¢_, .00_) ("Deposit") with Franchisor to be applied
against the Franchise Fee to be paid by Applicant if a Franchise Agreement is actually entered into, or to
compensate Franchisor for review of Applicant’s application and refraining from granting another franchise to
the territory under consideration.

2. If either: () Applicant decides not to continue with the application process and or to enter into a Franchise
Agreement, or (ii) Franchisor does not finally approve Applicant to enter into a Franchise Agreement, then the
Deposit shall be applied as follows:

3. Prior to Franchisor taking any action to consider the Applicant’s request for consideration, 100% of the
Deposit shall be refunded to Applicant.

4. After Franchisor commences review of the application and investigation of the Applicant, but prior to
Franchisor’s approval of Applicant as a franchisee, Franchisor shall retain One Thousand and NO/100’s
Dollars ($1,000.00) of the Deposit, and the balance of the Deposit shall be refunded to Applicant;

5. After Franchisor’s final approval of Applicant, if Applicant does not enter into a Franchise Agreement,
Franchisor shall retain ALL of the Deposit, and NONE of the Deposit shall be refunded to Applicant.

IN WITNESS HEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands and seals effective the day of
,202_ .
FRANCHISOR: AIRE-MASTER OF AMERICA, INC.
BY:

Walter R. Heinle, President/Chief Operating Officer

APPLICANT:
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Exhibit A.10

ADDENDUM
TO AIRE-MASTER OF AMERICA, INC.
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT DATED

3

WHEREAS, Aire-Master of America, Inc. ("Franchisot"), and and
, doing business as Aire-Master of ("Franchisee"), entered into a
Franchise Agreement dated (the “Franchise Agreement” and “Effective

Date”, respectively).

AND, WHEREAS, the parties desire to amend the Franchise Agreement to comply with said statutory
requirements.

In consideration of the original Franchise Agreement and this First Addendum thereto, Franchisor and
Franchisee do agree as follows:

1. Payment of the initial franchise fee provided in paragraph 5.1 of the Franchise Agreement is postponed
and shall be made on the eatrlier of:

2. Two (2) years from the Effective Date; or

3. Transfer of the franchise as provided for in paragraph 8 of the Franchise Agreement.

4.  Except as expressly provided herein, all other terms of the Franchise Agreement shall remain in full force
and effect.

IN WITNESS HEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands and seals effective the day of
,202_

FRANCHISOR:AIRE-MASTER OF AMERICA, INC.

BY:
Walter R. Heinle, President/Chief Operating Officer

FRANCHISEE:
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Exhibit A.11

ADDENDUM TO
AIRE-MASTER OF AMERICA, INC. FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
DATED )
WHEREAS, Aire-Master of America, Inc. (“Franchisor”), and and
, doing business as Aire-Master of (“Franchisee”), entered into a
Franchise Agreement dated , (“Franchise = Agreement”), and

and >
(address) (individually or collectively “Guarantor”), who are individually guarantying
Franchisee's performance under and agreeing to be bound by certain provisions of the Franchise Agreement.

AND, WHEREAS, the parties desire to amend the Franchise Agreement.

In consideration of the original Franchise Agreement and this First Addendum thereto, Franchisor and
Franchisee do agree that:

1. Section 2.3 is amended to read: “The term of this Agreement is for two (2) years beginning
, 202__ (“Initial Term”). Franchisee has the option to continue the Franchise
Agreement, and renew for additional successive three (3) year terms through a final termination date of

, 20 , as limited by this Agreement (“Option”). Franchisee may exercise the Option at
any time during the Initial Term and up to Thirty (30) days prior to the end of the Initial Term. Franchisee
shall exercise the Option by notifying Aire-Master in writing at least Thirty (30) days prior to the end of
the Initial Term, together with delivery of the payment provided herein, as amended. Failure to include the
payment voids the election. Franchisee's option to continue this Franchise Agreement is subject to: (i)
Franchisee being in full compliance with, and having met the gross sales requirements under, this Franchise
Agreement, and (i) Franchisee and any entity controlled by Franchisee or Franchisee's spouse, or morte
than 5% of which is owned by Franchisee or Franchisee's spouse, being in full compliance with and having
met the gross sales requirements under any franchise agreement they are a party to, determined at the date
of Franchisee exercising the Option. Franchisee's failure to exercise the Option is a Termination and the
provisions of Section 7 shall apply;”.

2. [OPTIONAL BASED ON SATISFACTORY TRAINING HAVING OCCURRED] Based on
Franchisee and its managerial staff having completed the required training, Section 3.5.a is amended to read
“RESERVED”.

3. Section 5.1 is amended to read: “Franchisee agrees to pay to Aire-Master One Hundred and No/100
Dollars ($100.00). If Franchisee elects to exercise the Option, Franchisee agrees to pay to Aire-Master Aire-
Master's standard franchisee fee for the Tetritory applicable at the time of Franchisee's exercise of the
option (currently .10 per person in the territory population (minimum of $30,000), plus initial inventory
commitment of $4,000 as product credit on a new franchise). Franchisee shall deliver such amount to Aire-
Master with the notice of exercise of the Option, or the exercise of the Option is void.”

4. Except as expressly provided herein, all other terms of the Franchise Agreement shall remain in full
force and effect.
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IN WITNESS HEREOF, the parties have set their hands and seals effective ,202_

FRANCHISOR: Aire-Master Of America, Inc.

BY:
Walter R. Heinle, President/Chief Operating Officer

FRANCHISEE:

GUARANTOR(S):
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Exhibit A.12

[THE VARIOUS "WHEREAS" PROVISIONS AND NUMBERED PARAGRAPHS
BELOW ARE USED AS APPLICABLE]

ADDENDUM TO
ATRE-MASTER OF AMERICA, INC. FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
DATED i

WHEREAS, Aire-Master of America, Inc. ("Franchisor"), and and
, doing business as Aire-Master of ("Franchisee"), entered into a
Franchise Agreement dated (“Franchise Agreement”), and

and (address) (individually
or collectively “Guarantor”), who are individually guarantying Franchisee's performance under and agreeing to
be bound by certain provisions of the Franchise Agreement.

[WHEREAS, Franchisee desites to transfer a portion of Franchisee's Territory to

[Franchisor|, Franchisor is willing to consent to [and accept| such transfer, and the parties desire to amend the
Franchise Agreement to revise the original Territory [as previously amended], and amend and restate Schedule
B to delete the transferred territory and substitute an entirely new Schedule B identifying the remaining
Territory.]

[WHEREAS, Franchisee desites to add additional territory (the "External-Territory") to Franchisee's
Territory, Franchisor is willing to license additional territory to Franchisee, and the parties desire to amend the
Franchise Agreement to revise the original territory, and amend and restate and substitute an entirely new
Schedule B to delete the transferred Territory and identify the remaining Territory.]

[WHEREAS, Franchisee desires to establish and service accounts outside of the Territory which is prohibited
by Section 3.9 without Franchisot's consent, Franchisor is willing to license additional tetritory to Franchisee,
and the patties desite to amend the Franchise Agreement by adding [a new / amended and restated] Schedule
B.1 identifying External-Territory.]

AND, WHEREAS, the parties desire to amend the Franchise Agreement.

In consideration of the original Franchise Agreement and this [First] Addendum thereto, Franchisor and
Franchisee do agree that:

1. Capitalized terms not otherwise defined have the meanings ascribed in the Franchise Agreement unless
otherwise expressly stated or defined herein or otherwise cleatly required by the context.

2. is added as an additional Franchisee.

3. is deleted as a Franchisee.

4. Franchisor consents to the transfer of a portion of Franchisee's Territory as set forth on Schedule A
to [Franchisor|, pursuant to Franchise Agreement Section 7.

5. Franchise Agreement Schedule B is hereby deleted in its entirety and a new Schedule B as attached
hereto is inserted in lieu thereof.

6. Franchisor consents to Franchisee establishing and servicing accounts outside of Franchisee's Tertitory
as identified in Schedule B.1, pursuant to Franchise Agreement Section 3.9.

7. All Schedules and Exhibits attached hereto are hereby incorporated herein by reference.

8. Except as expressly provided herein, all other terms of the Franchise Agreement remain in full force
and effect.
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IN WITNESS HEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands and seals effective the day of

,202__
FRANCHISOR: AIRE-MASTER OF AMERICA, INC.
BY:
Walter R. Heinle, President/Chief Operating Officer
FRANCHISEE:
GUARANTOR(S):
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Alabama:

Arizona:

Arkansas:

California:

Colorado:
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Exhibit B.1

CURRENT FRANCHISEES

Aire-Master of Lower Alabama
Brian Hunter Glass

23375 Fountain Street
Robertsdale, AL 36567
251-422-6310

Aire-Master of Tucson
Tony & Vangie Carranza
PO Box 1696

Cortaro, AZ 85652
520-303-1523

Aire-Master of Northwest Arkansas
Alexa Brach

PO Box 8235

Springdale, AR 72766
479-957-7879

Aire-Master of the North Bay
Ron Bruder

PO Box 1301

Alamo, CA 94507-1301
925-550-0560

Aire-Master of the Southland
Rick Epperson

PO Box 2562

Apple Valley, CA 92307-2560
760-885-2475

Aire-Master of Los Angeles County
Josh Haslam & Roury McDermott
8117 Manchester Ave., #604

Playa del Rey, CA 90293
801-707-5279

Aire-Master of Coastal California
Arie Troyce

PO Box 910724

San Diego, CA 92191-0724
858-342-5353

Aire-Master of the Rockies

Derek & Dede Shibe

P.O. Box 62715

Colorado Springs, CO 80962-2715
719-494-0801

Aire-Master of Central Alabama
Marty Lax

PO Box 43002

Birmingham, AL, 35243-3002
205-547-0199

(see Georgia)

Aire-Master of Phoenix
Isaac & Aude Monson, &
Jess Beckman

PO Box 43258

Phoenix, AZ 85080-3258
855-602-AIRE

(see Texas)

Aire-Master of Eastern Los Angeles County

Rick Epperson

PO Box 2562

Apple Valley, CA 92307
760-885-2475

Aire-Master of San Diego

Tony & Vangie Carranza, Jess Beckman,

and Isaac & Aude Monson
P.O. Box 43258

Phoenix, AZ 85080
855-602-2473

Aire-Master of the East Bay
Jared Peterson & Pete Best

PO Box 96924

Las Vegas, NV 89193-6924

702-892-0004

Aire-Master of Central California
Roman & Krychele Valenzuela
1397 W. Carriage View Court
South Jordan, UT 84065
801-860-5569

Aire-Master of South Denver

J. Logan Patterson

PO Box 2385

Colorado Springs, CO 80903-2385
719-373-4300



Delaware:

Florida:
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Aire-Master of Arapahoe
J- Logan Patterson
PO Box 2385

Colorado Springs, CO 80903-2385

719-373-4300

Aire-Master of Northern Colorado

John Beck

310 W. Prospect Rd.
Fort Collins, CO 80526
970-481-4845

Aire-Master of Colorado Highlands

Daniel & Laura Tucker
PO Box 2500

Loveland, CO 80539-2500
970-215-3257

Aire-Master of Delmarva
John & Melanie Michalik
5270 Baker Rd.
Bridgeville, DE 19933
302-628-8042

Aire-Master of Central Florida
Greg & Barbara Nelsen

P.O. Box 301095

Fern Park, FL 32730-1095
407-332-9310

Aire-Master of Northeast Florida
Patrick & Chas Griggs

P.O. Box 28031

Jacksonville, FL. 32226-8031
866-802-0444

Aire-Master Miami

Brian & Marisol Rogers

11301 S. Dixie Hwy, #565776
Miami, FL. 33256
305-760-9500

Aire-Master of Palm Beach
Felix Valdez

11301 S. Dixie Hwy, #565776
Miami, FL. 33255
305-760-9500

Aire-Master of Gainesville
David & Jordan Cole

PO Box 148

Osteen, FL. 32764
609-217-1398

Aire-Master of North Denver
J. Logan Patterson

PO Box 2385

719-373-4300

Aire-Master of West Denver
Mike Whitacre

12081 W Alameda Pkwy, Ste 198
Lakewood, CO 80228
303-589-7116

Aire-Master of Denver

Terry & Anne Shuck

PO Box 33011

Notthglenn, CO 80233-3011
720-324-0494

(also contains territory in Maryland)

Aire-Master of Metro Orlando
Chris & Suzie Lilly

PO Box 1747

Goldenrod, FL 32733
407-977-0373

Aire-Master of Broward County
Massimo Roccasecca

11301 S. Dixie Hwy, #565776
Miami, FL. 33256
786-353-0010

Aire-Master of Naples
Lonnie Mortis and Lewis Litt
5806 Commerce Lane
Miami, FL. 33143
239-880-8003

Aire-Master of North Broward
Steven Minor

PO Box 23544

Oakland Park, FL. 33307
786-614-4932

Aire-Master of Eastern Florida
Noah & Amanda Champlin
PO Box 560554

Rockledge, FL. 32956-0554
719-650-3701



Georgia:

Hawaii

Idaho:

Illinois:

Indiana:
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Aire-Master of Tampa Bay
Leonardo Liberato, Marcio Vieira
7703 Ann Ballard Rd.

Tampa, FL 33634

813-616-8586

Aire-Master of Atlanta
Henry & Rhonda Mez

P.O. Box 2229

Cartersville, GA 30120-2229
770-386-7822

Aire-Master of Honolulu
George Doi

3342 Pawaiina Street
Honolulu, HI 96822
808-284-2858

Aire-Master of Southern Idaho
Tina Hawthorne

P.O. Box 490

Middleton, ID 83644-0490
208-466-0700

(also contains territory in Oregon)

Aire-Master of Magic Valley
Edward & Sytoria Zigmond
Nampa, ID 83653-3395
208-880-6514

(also contains territory in Nevada)

Aire-Master of Inland Empire
William Jackson

PO Box 883

Rathdrum, ID 83858-0883
208-916-8813

Aire-Master of Chicago
Brian Olson

PO Box 10931

Chicago, IL 60610-0394
312-622-6319

(see lowa and Wisconsin)

Aire-Master of West Central Indiana

Linda & Delbert Deplanty
3655 E. State Rd 234
Crawfordville, IN 47933
765-592-1860

(see Georgia)

(also contains territory in Florida, Alabama

& Tennessee)

Aire-Master of the Gem State
Patty Thies

P.O. Box 3042

Nampa, ID 83653-3042
208-250-9221

Aire-Master of Eastern Idaho
Morgan & Elizabeth Bates

P.O. Box 4056

Pocatello, ID 83205-4056
208-220-1193

(also contains territory in Wyoming)

Aire-Master of Suburban Chicagoland
Joe & Sheryl Johnson

PO Box 9233

Naperville, IL. 60567-9233
630-649-0721



Towa:

Kansas:

Louisiana:

Maryland:

Massachusetts:

Michigan:

Mississippi:
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Aire-Master of Eastern Iowa
Mel & Stephanie Welch

P.O. Box 206

Swisher, IA 52338-0206
319-470-4623

(also contains territory in Illinois)

(see South Dakota)

Aire-Master of Eastern Kansas
Chad & Lora Mottier

PO Box 5050

Topeka, KS 66605-5050
785-221-0520

Aire-Master of Batton Rouge
Neal & Angela Milligan, &
Ben & Lenell Riley

10380 Perkins Road, #82711
Batton Rouge, LA 70884
601-383-1118

Aire-Master of Southern Maryland
Anthony Dozier

26 Thurston Drive

Upper Matlboro, MD 20774
301-440-7226

Aire-Master of Central Massachusetts
Jack Roy

280 Brandybrow Road

Haverhill, MA 01830

978-314-9189

Aire-Master of Southwest Michigan
Sue Schomisch

2153 Wildfield Drive Northeast
Grand Rapids, MI 49505
919-622-0777

Aire-Master of Northern Mississippi
Carver & Robyn Sims

163 Nottingham Drive

Batesville, MS 38606

662-426-8691

Aire-Master of Mid Mississippi
Neal & Angela Milligan

141 Green Glades

Ridgeland, MS 39157
601-497-3251

Aire-Master of South Central Iowa
Brandon & Aaron DeWeerd

PO Box 576

Waukee, IA 50263-0576
515-326-2800

(see Missouri)

Aire-Master of the Gulf Coast
Michael & Jennifer Breaux
P.O. Box 2601

Mandeville, LA 70471-2601
985-807-5337

(see Texas)

(see Delaware)

Aire-Master of South Mississippi
Ben & Lenell Riley

PO Box 6295

Gulfport, MS 39506
228-596-9310



Missouri:

Montana:

Nebraska:

Nevada:

New Jersey:
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Aire-Master of Kansas City

Jerry Rockhold

P.O. Box 25872

Ovetland Park, KS 66225-5872
913-634-6877

(also contains territory in Kansas)

Aire-Master of the Pony Express
Warren Ott

1918 E. Meadowmere
Springfield, MO 65804
800-641-4002

(also contains territory in Kansas)

Aire-Master of Mid Missouti
Timothy and Terri Lea

307 Hwy U

Steelville, MO 65565
573-820-7534

Aire-Master of Metro St. Louis
Cheryl Harris

61 Fox Run Drive

Wright City, MO 63390
636-233-2749

Aire-Master of the Northern Rockies
Randy Robertson

PMB #105

2047 N. Last Chance Gulch

Helena, M'T 59601

406-461-0040

Aire-Master of Eastern Nebraska
Mark & Michelle Rule

PO Box 460787

La Vista, NE 68128-0787
402-490-7626

Aire-Master of Las Vegas
Pete Best & Jared Peterson
PO Box 96924

Las Vegas, NV 89193-6924
702-892-0004

Aire-Master of Essex County
Rionel Cabrera

PO Box 11314

Fairfield, NJ 07004-1314
973-336-0207

Aire-Master of West St. Louis
Steve & Lisa Bornhop

P.O. Box 1464

St. Chatles, MO 63302-1464
314-374-1286

Aire-Master of North St. Louis
Ron, John & Linda Belcher
PO Box 865

St. Peters, MO 63376-0865
314-315-0422

Aire-Master of Central Missouti
Shannon Douglas

PO Box 562

Sullivan, MO 63080-0562
573-927-2912

Aire-Master of Western Montana
Chance Anderson

901 Idlewilde Ct

Helena, MT 59601
406-461-8957

(see South Dakota)

Aire-Master of North Jersey
Ricky Luna and John Valdez
PO Box 3178

Paterson, NJ 07524-3178
973-277-8301



New Mexico:

New York:

North Carolina

North Dakota:

Ohio:

Aire-Master of East Jersey
Karen Jarvie and Erica Ward
PO Box 1024

Toms River, NJ 08754-1024
732-703-6652

Aire-Master of Central New Mexico
Zach & Sarah Taylor

PO Box 53053

Albuquerque, NM 87153-3053
505-286-0874

Aire-Master of Southern New Mexico
Genaro & Christina Rojas

PO Box 920483

El Paso, TX 79902

575-652-1673

Aire-Master of Long Island
Matthew & Frances Ferriso
P.O. Box 832
Commack, NY 11725-0832
631-543-5199

Aire-Master of Raleigh

Josh Haslam, Roury McDermott
501 W Williams St #1312

Apex, NC 27502

801-707-5279

Aire-Master of Coastal Carolina
Mike Whitacte

393 Toulon Dr

Wilmington, NC 28405
303-589-7116

Aire-Master of North Dakota
Gary & Delores Christian
2100 Lovett Ave

Bismarck, ND 58504
701-751-5055

Aire-Master of Cleveland

Chris & Jennifer Nagel

P.O. Box 39181

North Ridgeville, OH 44039-9181
440-666-1394
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Aire-Master of Central New Jersey
Terry Cole

P.O. Box 1389

Wrightstown, NJ 08562-1389
609-758-2405

(also contains territory in Pennsylvania)

Aire-Master of the Four Corners

J. Logan Patterson

PO Box 2385

Colorado Springs, CO 80903-2385
719-373-4300

(see Colorado)

Aire-Master of Western New York
James & Patricia Schwartz

PO Box 557

Hornell, NY 14843-0557
607-324-4935

(also has Territory in Pennsylvania)

Aire-Master of Myrtle Beach

Wes Tongue, Jeff Warner

147 Forest Hills Dr

Leland, NC 28451

(also has territory in South Carolina)

Aire-Master of The Valley

Kevin & Janet Brichetto

P.O. Box 2155

Warren, OH 44484

330-423-4166

(also contains territory in Pennsylvania)



Oklahoma

Oregon:

Pennsylvania:

Rhode Island:

South Carolina
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Aire-Master of Central Oklahoma

Daryn & Nicole Holbein
PO Box 268

Mottis, OK 74445
918-221-1283

Aire-Master of Southern Oregon

Jerrud Hook

PO Box 2271

Grants Pass, OR 97528
541-761-1073

(See Idaho)

Aire-Master of the Cascades
Aaron & Elizabeth Peterson
PO Box 2241

Redmond, OR 97756-2241
541-788-2473

Aire-Master of Lehigh Valley
Leica & Jeff Nissen

P.O. Box 22792

Lehigh Valley, PA 18002-2792
601-346-7949

Aire-Master of SEPA
Scott & Kara Gruver

PO Box 177

Mohnton, PA 19540-0177
610-301-7090

Aire-Master of Rhode Island
Paul & Eileen Caccia

40 Steeple Lane

Lincoln, RT 02865
401-644-7889

Aire-Master of Chatleston
Phil & Ashley Canipe

221 St James Ave, Ste 2A
Goose Creek, SC 29445
843-509-8961

Aire-Master of the Upstate
Gabe & Laura Weisser
PO Box 1415

Greer, SC 29652
864-720-8820

Aire-Master of Central Oregon
Keith Bockhahn

P.O. Box 20773

Keizer, OR 97307-0773
503-399-9717

Aire-Master of Philadelphia
Jeff & Lisa Nissen

PO Box 22792

Lehigh Valley, PA 18002-2792
610-346-7949

(see New Jersey, New York and Ohio)

Aire-Master of Columbia
Phil Canipe

221 St James Ave, Ste 2A
Goose Creek, SC 29445
843-509-8961

(see North Carolina)



South Dakota:

Tennessee:

Texas:

Aire-Master of the Black Hills
Jordan & Morgan Murphy
PO Box 2952

Rapid City, SD 57709
605-391-5375

Aire-Master of Middle Tennessee
Marty Lax

PO Box 43002

Birmingham, AL, 35243-3002
205-547-0199

(see Georgia)

Aire-Master of Northeast Texas
Warren & Joan Ott

1918 E. Meadowmere

Springfield, MO 65804

800-641-4002

(also contains territory in Louisiana &
Arkansas)

Aire-Master of the Alamo
Pete Best & Jared Peterson
PO Box 96924

Las Vegas, NV 89193
888-510-2211

Aire-Master of Dallas

Catlos De Leon & Guillermo Ramirez
6006 N. Mesa St., #408

El Paso, TX 79912

915-203-7332

Aire-Master of Austin
Catlos Del.eon

6006 N. Mesa St., #408
El Paso, TX 79912
915-203-7332

Aire-Master of San Antonio
Todd Heaton

727 Ranch Falls

San Antonio, TX 78245
210-722-1227

Aire-Master of North Houston
Steve Darrah

10 Green Field Place

Spring, TX 77380
281-614-9358
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Aire-Master of the Plains

Rick & Theresa Schlapkohl

615 S. Lyons, Ste. 300

Sioux Falls, SD 57106
605-728-2362

(also contains territory in Iowa and
Nebraska)

Aire-Master of the Smoky Mountains
Mike & JaNae Asper

PO Box 32882

Knoxville, TN 37930-2882
865-805-8730

Aire-Master of the Alamo
Pete Best & Jared Peterson
PO Box 96924

Las Vegas, NV 89193
888-510-2211

Aire-Master of Denton County

Brian & Alisha Hessing

409 S. Central Expwy, Suite 107, #502
Anna, TX 75409

801-389-6184

Aire-Master of West Texas
Alejandro & Patricia Reyes
1025 Desierto Seco Drive
El Paso, TX 79912
915-585-4599

Aire-Master of Collin County
Gama & Maria Dominguez

8700 Stone Brook Parkway, #1381
Frisco, TX 75034

214-300-5688

Aire-Master of Houston
Steve Darrah

10 Green Field Place
Spring, TX 77380
281-614-9358



Utah:

Virginia:

Washington:

Wisconsin:

Wyoming:

Canada:

Alberta

Aire-Master of Salt Lake Aire-Master of Western Utah
Jared & Amy Peterson Brian & Alisha Hessing

PO Box 96924 P.O. Box 505

Las Vegas, NV 89193 Riverton, UT 84065-0505
800-821-8893 801-389-6184

Aire-Master of Dixie Aire-Master of Northern Utah
Pete & Sadie Best Nathan & Jennifer Epperson
PO Box 911502 PO Box 1255

St. George, UT 84791-1502 West Jordan, UT 84084-1255
435-275-8045 801-946-1992

Aire-Master of Northern Virginia

Theo & Meena Meyyappan

PO Box 1364

Springfield, VA 22151
703-596-0520

Aire-Master of Eastern Washington
JC & Kristina Shahan

3915 E Tanager Lane

Mead, WA 99021

509-218-4343

Aire-Master of Wisconsin

Donn & Alice Mortier

P.O. Box 68

Eldorado, WI 54932-0068
800-321-9402

(also contains territory in Illinois)

Aire-Master of Eastern Wyoming
Scott & Deb Harris

PO Box 1174

Casper, WY 82602-1174
307-262-7727

Aire-Master of the Prairies
Amin & Nasrin Poonja
8605 Coronet Rd. NW
Edmonton, AB TG6E 4P2
780-448-2661

0009-03.17/Aire-Master of America FDD - 2024 DRAFT [v8].docxPage A. - 129



Exhibit B.2

FRANCHISEES WHO HAVE LEFT THE SYSTEM
DURING AIRE-MASTER'S MOST RECENT FISCAL YEAR

Aire-Master of Northern California
Sara Westerman

PO Box 4599

Auburn CA 95604-4599
775-391-8040

Aire-Master of Arizona
Graeme Flexman

1635 W Harris Ave
Queen Creek, AZ 85142
480-415-7137

Aire-Master of North Los Angeles County
Ali Moghaddam

23928 Bennington Dr

Valencia, CA 91354

805-754-0247

Aire-Master of Inland Empire
Donna Bates

PO Box 2286

Hayden, ID 83835-2286
208-699-4145

Aire-Master of Denton County
Peter Berk

4671 Edith Street

Plano, TX 75024
972-793-8007

Aire-Master of Reno
Kyle & Carly Sipherd
PO Box 10345

Reno, NV 89510-0345
775-391-8040

Aire-Master of River Valley
Brooke Brach

PO Box 1450

Jenks, OK 74037
479-957-3237

Aire-Master of South Denver
Emerson Cheever

PO Box 7491

Colorado Springs, CO 80933
719-473-1862

Aire-Master of Berks County
Sam & Evelyn Klingler

PO Box 4203

Reading, PA 19606-4203
570-898-3752

Aire-Master of Northern Utah
Brian & Alisha Hessing

P.O. Box 505

Riverton, UT 84065-0505
801-389-6184

If you enter into an Aire-Master Franchise Agreement, your contact information may be disclosed to other
potential franchisees if you leave the system.
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Arizona

Arkansas

California

Colorado

Idaho

Texas

Utah

If you enter into an Aire-Master Franchise Agreement, your contact information may be disclosed to other

Exhibit B.3

FRANCHISEES WHO HAVE TRANSFERRED
DURING AIRE-MASTER'S MOST RECENT FISCAL YEAR

Transferring Franchisee

Aire-Master of Arizona
Graeme Flexman

1635 W Harris Ave
Queen Creek, AZ 85142
480-415-7137

Aire-Master of River Valley
Brooke Brach

PO Box 1450

Jenks, OK 74037
479-957-3237

Aire-Master of North Los Angeles County

Ali Moghaddam
23928 Bennington Dr
Valencia, CA 91354
805-754-0247

Aire-Master of South Denver
Emerson Cheever

PO Box 7491

Colorado Springs, CO 80933
719-473-1862

Aire-Master of Inland Empire
Donna Bates

PO Box 2286

Hayden, ID 83835-2286
208-699-4145

Aire-Master of Denton County
Peter Berk

4671 Edith Street

Plano, TX 75024
972-793-8007

Aire-Master of Northern Utah
Brian & Alisha Hessing

P.O. Box 505

Riverton, UT 84065-0505
801-389-6184

potential franchisees if you leave the system.
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New Franchisee

Aire-Master of Phoenix
Isaac & Aude Monson, &
Jess Beckman

PO Box 43258

Phoenix, AZ 85080-3258
855-602-AIRE

Aire-Master of Northwest Arkansas
Alexa Brach

PO Box 8235

Springdale, AR 72766
479-957-7879

Aire-Master of the Southland
Rick Epperson

PO Box 2562

Apple Valley, CA 92307-2560
760-885-2475

Aire-Master of South Denver

J. Logan Patterson

PO Box 2385

Colorado Springs, CO 80903-2385
719-373-4300

Aire-Master of Inland Empire
William Jackson

PO Box 883

Rathdrum, ID 83858-0883
208-916-8813

Aire-Master of Denton County

Brian & Alisha Hessing

409 S. Central Expwy, Suite 107, #502
Anna, TX 75409

801-389-6184

Aire-Master of Northern Utah
Nathan & Jennifer Epperson
PO Box 1255

West Jordan, UT 84084-1255
801-946-1992
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AIRE-MASTER OF AMERICA, INC.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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ELLIOTT, ROBINSON

& COMPANY, LLP

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors
of Aire-Master of America, Inc.

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Aire-Master of America, Inc. (a
Missouri corporation), which comprise the balance sheets as of March 31, 2023 and 2022, and the
related statements of income, retained earnings, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the
related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Aire-Master of America, Inc.as of March 31, 2023 and 2022, and the
results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Change in Accounting Principle

As described in Note 1 to the financial statements, the Company changed its method of accounting
for leases due to the adoption of Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842)
as of January 1, 2022. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to
be independent of Aire-Master of America, Inc.and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Aire-Master of

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS AND TRUSTED BUSINESS ADVISORS e« ercpa.com
2305 S. Blackman Road, Suite D ¢ Springfield, MO 65809 * 417.887.0585 ¢ F 417.887.0619
760 East U.S. Highway 60 e Republic, MO 65738 e 417.732.7252 ¢ F 417.732.1003
192 Expressway Lane, Suite 240 ¢ Branson, MO 65616 ¢ 417.336.4169 e F 417.339.4669

0009-03.17/Aire-Master of America FDD - 2024 DRAFT [v8l.docxPage A. - 134



America, Inc.’s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the
financial statements are available and issued.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control. Misstatements, including omissions, are considered material if there
is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment
made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of Aire-Master of America, Inc.’s internal control.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgement, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Aire-Master of America, Inc.’s ability to
continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control related matters that we identified during the audit.

Springfield, Missouri
June 15, 2023
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AIRE-MASTER OF AMERICA, INC.
BALANCE SHEETS

YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 AND 2022

ASSETS 2023 2022
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash $ 2,435,550 1,245,655
Accounts receivable - as reduced by allowance for
doubtful accounts of $26,400 and $34,400, respectively 1,467,508 1,661,862
Inventory 2,387,963 2,460,298
Income taxes receivable - 155,167
Prepaid expenses 191,599 168,676
Total Current Assets 6,482,620 5,691,658
FIXED ASSETS
Vehicles 928,230 901,131
Machinery and equipment 2,059,271 1,978,340
Furniture and fixtures 797,277 784,093
Leasehold improvements 848,678 814,881
4,633,456 4,478,445
Less: accumulated depreciation 3,534,313 3,251,221
Total Fixed Assets 1,099,143 1,227,224
OTHER ASSETS
Deposits 77,853 153,685
Operating lease right of use asset 3,867,774 -
Intangible assets 100,150 100,983
Total Other Assets 4,045,777 254,668
$ 11,627,540 7,173,550

See accompanying accountants' report
and notes to financial statements.
3

Exhibit C-3
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AIRE-MASTER OF AMERICA, INC.
BALANCE SHEETS

YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 AND 2022

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Notes payable - maturing within one year $
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Income taxes payable
Deferred revenue - current portion
Operating lease liability - current portion

Total Current Liabilities

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Operating lease liability - long-term
Long-term debt
Deferred income taxes
Due to shareholder
Deferred revenue - long-term

Total Non-Current Liabilities

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Class A voting common stock - $1 par value; 2,500 shares
authorized; 1,000 shares issued and outstanding
Class B nonvoting common stock - $1 par value; 25,000 shares
authorized; 10,000 shares issued and outstanding
Retained earnings

Total Stockholders' Equity

2023 2022
67,000 -
460,399 398,201
414,089 575,216
101,884 -
20,000 48,000
483,958 -
1,547,330 1,021,417
3,383,816 -
391,405 -
384,100 449,400
78,618 150,796
258,895 192,000
4,496,834 792,196
1,000 1,000
10,000 10,000
5,572,376 5,348,937
5,583,376 5,359,937
$ 11,627,540 7,173,550

See accompanying accountants' report
and notes to financial statements.
4
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AIRE-MASTER OF AMERICA, INC.
STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS
YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 AND 2022

2023 2022
REVENUE
Service revenue $ 2,881,205 2,791,680
Merchandise sales 522,441 478,099
Wholesale sales 4,789,695 3,912,346
Distributor sales 118,864 123,113
Manufacturing sales 3,645,796 4,733,920
Royalties income 1,422,863 1,262,191
Franchise sales 139,189 417,997
Sales allowances (4,290) (5,955)
Total Revenue 13,515,763 13,713,391
COST OF REVENUE 5,754,357 5,827,928
GROSS PROFIT 7,761,406 7,885,463
EXPENSES
Selling and administrative expenses 7,181,672 7,191,773
Bad debt expense 18,735 18,437
Interest expense 15,333 595
Depreciation and amortization expense 311,625 321,591
Total Expenses 7,527,365 7,532,396
EARNINGS FROM OPERATIONS 234,041 353,067
OTHER INCOME
Interest income 30,428 -
Gain on sale of assets 20,959 5,300
Miscellaneous income 16,311 8,154
Total Other Income 67,698 13,454
EARNINGS BEFORE INCOME TAXES 301,739 366,521
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES 78,300 79,800
NET EARNINGS $ 223,439 286,721

See accompanying accountants' report
and notes to financial statements.
5
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AIRE-MASTER OF AMERICA, INC.
STATEMENTS OF RETAINED EARNINGS
YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 AND 2022

2023 2022
RETAINED EARNINGS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR $ 5,348,937 5,062,216
NET EARNINGS 223,439 286,721
RETAINED EARNINGS AT END OF YEAR $ 5,572,376 5,348,937

See accompanying accountants' report
and notes to financial statements.
6
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AIRE-MASTER OF AMERICA, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 AND 2022

2023 2022
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net earnings S 223,439 286,721
Non cash items included in net earnings:
Depreciation and amortization 311,625 321,591
Increase in deferred income taxes (65,300) 37,800
Increase in deferred revenue 38,895 210,000
(Gain) on sale of assets (20,959) (5,300)
(Increase) decrease in operating assets:
Accounts receivable 194,354 (281,306)
Inventory 72,335 (194,452)
Prepaid expenses (22,923) (23,482)
Deposits 75,832 (87,197)
Operating lease right of use asset (3,867,774) -
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Accounts payable 62,198 (102,822)
Accrued expenses (161,127) (46,066)
Income taxes payable 257,051 (243,279)
Operating lease liability 3,867,774 -
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 965,420 (127,792)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of assets 27,700 5,300
Purchase of fixed assets (189,452) (208,478)
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (161,752) (203,178)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from long-term and short-term borrowings 500,000 -
Repayment of long-term and short-term borrowings (41,595) (40,205)
Loan from shareholder (72,178) (104,606)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Financing Activities 386,227 (144,811)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 1,189,895 (475,781)
CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,245,655 1,721,436
CASH AT END OF YEAR $ 2,435,550 1,245,655
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash paid during the year for:
Interest expense $ 15,333 595
Income tax $ 5,796 120,667

See accompanying accountants' report
and notes to financial statements.
7
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AIRE-MASTER OF AMERICA, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

Accounts Receivable

The Company accounts for the potential losses in accounts receivable utilizing the allowance method.
Management has provided an allowance for uncollectible accounts at March 31, 2023 and 2022 of $26,400
and $34,400, respectively. In reviewing aged receivables, management considers their knowledge of
customers, historical activity and current economic conditions in establishing the allowance for doubtful
accounts. A trade account receivable is charged to bad debt expense when management determines the
receivable is uncollectible.

The Company does not have any significant financing components as franchise fee payments are paid up
front and all other payments are typically received within 45-90 days.

Inventory
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market based on the first-in, first-out method. Market value is

determined by comparison with recent purchases or realizable value.

Leases

The Company accounts for leases in accordance with FASB ASC 842. The Company is a lessee in several
noncancellable operating leases for their office facilities, warehouse space, and office equipment. The
Company determines if an arrangement is a lease, or contains a lease, at the inception of a contract and
when the terms of an existing contract are changed. The Company determines if an arrangement conveys
the right to use an identified asset and whether the Company obtains substantially all of the economic
benefits from and has the ability to direct the use of the asset. The Company recognizes a lease liability and
ROU asset at the commencement date of the lease.

Lease liabilities

A lease liability is measured based on the present value of its future lease payments. Variable payments are
included in the future lease payments when those variable payments depend on an index or rate and are
measured using the index or rate at the commencement date. Lease payments, including variable payments
made based on an index rate, are remeasured when any of the following occur: (1) the lease is modified
(and the modification is not accounted for as a separate contract), (2) certain contingencies related to
variable lease payments are resolved, or (3) there is a reassessment of any of the following: the lease term,
purchase options, or amounts that are probable of being owed under a residual value guarantee. The
Company has adopted an accounting policy to utilize the practical expedient for determining the discount
rate used in the present value calculations. As such, the Company used the risk-free rate for all leases.

ROU assets

A ROU asset is measured at the commencement date at the amount of the initially measured liability plus
any lease payments made to the lessor before or after commencement date, minus any lease incentives
received, plus any initial direct costs. Unless impaired, the ROU asset is subsequently measured throughout
the lease term at the amount of the lease liability (that is the present value of the remaining lease payments),
plus unamortized initial direct costs, plus (minus) any prepaid amounts (accrued leases payments, less the
unamortized balance of lease incentives received). Lease cost for lease payments is recognized on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

Accounting policy election for short-term leases

The Company has elected for all underlying classes of assets, to not recognize ROU assets and lease
liabilities for short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less at lease commencement, and do
not include an option to purchase the underlying asset that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise.
The Company recognizes lease costs associated with its short-term leases on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

9
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AIRE-MASTER OF AMERICA, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

Property and Depreciation
Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is computed by applying the following methods
and estimated lives:

Category Estimated Life Method

Vebhicles 3-5 years Declining balance
Machinery and Equip 5-10 years Declining balance and straight-line
Furniture & fixtures 3-10 years Declining balance and straight-line
Leasehold improvements 5-40 years Straight-line

For federal income tax purposes, depreciation is computed using the modified accelerated cost recovery
system.

The costs of assets sold or otherwise disposed of and the accumulated depreciation thereon are eliminated
from the accounts and the resulting gain or loss is reflected in income, except for gains on assets traded
where no cash was received. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to income as incurred;
replacements and betterments that extend the useful lives are capitalized.

Long-lived assets held and used by the Company are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the cost of any long-lived assets may be impaired, and evaluation of
recoverability would be performed following generally accepted accounting principles.

Total depreciation expense for the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022 was $310,792 and $320,758,
respectively.

Intangible Assets
Intangible assets include franchise rights, goodwill, customer lists, and covenants not to compete. Effective

April 1, 2002, the Company adopted Accounting Standard Codification (ASC) No. 350, Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets. In accordance with this standard, goodwill and franchise rights will no longer be
amortized, but will be tested for impairment at least annually. Customer lists and covenants not to compete
are considered to have determinable useful lives and will continue to be amortized over their useful lives.

Advertising
The Company expenses the production costs of advertising as incurred. Advertising expense for the years

ended March 31, 2023 and 2022 was $33,208 and $42,717, respectively.

Revenue Recognition

The Company’s revenue is derived from contracts with customers. The majority of the Company’s revenue
is derived from franchise fees royalties and retail sales. The Company accounts for revenue in accordance
with ASC 606, which the Company adopted on April 1, 2018 using the modified retrospective method.
Refer to Note 1 to the financial statements for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2018 for a description of the
Company’s revenue recognition policy prior to April 1,2018. The core principle of ASC 606 is to recognize
revenue upon the transfer of services or products to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration
the Company expects to be entitled to in exchange for those services or products. The Company applies the
following framework to recognize revenue:

10
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AIRE-MASTER OF AMERICA, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — CONTINUED

Revenue Recognition - Continued

The Company’s major revenues consist of initial franchise fees and royalties from franchised stores
operated by conventional franchisees, wholesale and retail sales from manufactured products and service
revenue from company-owned franchises. ASC 606 provides that revenues are to be recognized when
control of promised goods or services is transferred to a customer in an amount that reflects the
consideration expected to be received for those goods or services.

Franchise Fees

Initial franchise fees consist of non-refundable payments received by the Company from franchisees for the
rights to develop a specified franchise location. This revenue is recognized after the Company and
franchisee enter into a franchise agreement and after significant obligations required of the Company under
the franchise agreement are substantially performed such as the deliverable of materials and training
services. Any franchise fees received prior to the Company satistying its obligations are deferred.

The Company has determined there are two distinct performance obligations related to the franchise fee: 1)
the distribution of manuals and similar material concerning operations, administration and record
keeping which usually occurs at the signing of franchise agreement and training of the franchisee’s
personnel at the franchisor’s location, 2) On-site training of the franchisee’s personnel.

The Company adopted the practical expedient that permits franchisors that are not public business entities
to account for pre-opening services provided to a franchisee as distinct from the franchise license if the
services are consistent with those included in a predefined list within the ASU. Until the performance
obligations are met, the remainder of the franchise fee is in deferred revenue on the balance sheet. The
Company also receives transfer fees and additional territory fees which are earned as the performance
obligations are performed. For fees with no performance obligations, the income is earned over the life of
the agreement. The Company had current deferred franchise sale revenues of $20,000 and $48,000,
respectively, and long-term deferred franchise sale revenues of $258,895 and $192,000 respectively, as of
March 31, 2023 and 2022.

Royalties

The Company grants a franchise license which gives the franchisee the right to access the Company’s
intellectual property. The trade name and logo have limited standalone functionality; the utility of the
products developed by the entity is derived largely from the products’ association with the franchise brand.
Substantially all of the utility inherent in the trade name, logo, and product rights granted under the license
stems from the entity’s past and ongoing activities of establishing, building, and maintaining the franchise
brand. The utility of the license is its association with the franchise brand and the related demand for its
products. The Company’s performance obligation to transfer the license is satisfied over time because the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits of the franchisor’s license. The variable
consideration is in the form of sales-based royalties that specifically relate to the franchise license.
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AIRE-MASTER OF AMERICA, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — CONTINUED

Revenue Recognition - Continued

Manufacturing and Retail Sales

The Company generates wholesale and retail revenues (shown as merchandise, manufacturing and
distributor sales on the statements of earnings) primarily from the sale of products to retailers, distributors
and consumers in the United States. Revenue is recognized upon shipment to the customer as that is when
the customer obtains control of the promised goods. Credit terms are extended to wholesale customers
based on their creditworthiness and the Company generally does not receive advance payments. As such,
accounts receivable is recorded at the time of shipment, when their right to the consideration becomes
unconditional. The Company offers a 30-day return policy with a 15% restocking fee. The Company does
not expect significant returns based on historical experience and therefore has not accrued a reserve for
product returns. In the same way, the Company does not have a formal warranty policy but stands behind
their products. Historically, warranty claims have not resulted in material costs and are expensed when
incurred.

Service Revenue
Service revenue is generated from company-owned franchises for cleaning and other sanitation practices.
This revenue is earned over time as the performance obligations are satisfied.

The Company had no contract assets or liabilities as of March 31, 2023 or 2022 with the exception of
franchise fee revenues detailed above and consignment arrangements detailed below.

Bill and Hold and Consignment Arrangements

Certain wholesale products are held at the Company’s warehouse because the customer requests that it be
held there and lacks the physical space to store the goods. These products are held separately as belonging
to the customer and are not used to satisfy orders for other customers. The customer requests shipment of
the products as they need them. Revenue is recognized on these arrangements at the point in time when the
customer orders the goods and they are available to be shipped to the customer.

The Company also engages in a minimal amount of consignment arrangements. In this arrangement,
products are shipped to a dealer, but revenue is not recognized until the product is sold to a customer of the
dealer. There was $0 and $0 of deferred consignment revenue as of March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

For the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, $979,400 and $1,185,833, respectively, was recorded as bill
and hold and consignment income and included in manufacturing sales on the statement of earnings.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with FASB ASC 740, Income Taxes, which requires
the recognition of deferred income taxes for differences between the basis of assets and liabilities for
financial statement and income tax purposes. Since income taxes are paid on the cash basis of accounting
rather than the accrual basis this creates timing differences. There are also timing differences in reporting
depreciation and amortization for financial statement and tax purposes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
represent the future tax consequence for those differences, which will either be deductible or taxable when
the assets and liabilities are recovered or settled. A valuation allowance is established when necessary to
reduce deferred tax assets to the amount expected to be realized.
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AIRE-MASTER OF AMERICA, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — CONTINUED

Income Taxes - Continued

The Company follows the provisions of FASB ASC 740-10-25, which prescribes a recognition threshold
and measurement attribute for the recognition and measurement of tax positions taken or expected to be
taken in income tax returns. FASB ASC 740-10-25 also provides guidance on de-recognition of income tax
assets and liabilities, classification of current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities, and accounting
for interest and penalties associated with tax positions. The Company does not have any accruals for
uncertain tax positions as of March 31, 2023.

The federal and state income tax returns of the Company for 2022, 2021, and 2020 are subject to
examination by the IRS and state taxing authorities, generally for three years after they were filed.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Judgments
The Company considered several factors in determining how revenue should be recognized. These

judgments and estimates include identifying performance obligations, determining if performance
obligations are distinct, determining the standalone selling price and timing of revenue recognition for each
distinct performance obligation, and estimating variable consideration to be included in the transaction
price. The Company determined that the initial franchise fees were related to two distinct and separate
performance obligations. The Company used the best estimate of the selling price for the standalone
performance obligations by estimating the price a customer in a similar market would be willing to pay for
the goods and services the Company provides. The Company then allocated the initial franchise fees to
each separate and distinct performance obligation based on the relative stand-alone selling price basis.

The Company also determined that the variable consideration (the sales-based royalty) be allocated entirely
to the franchise license because the variable consideration relates entirely to the entity’s promise to grant
the franchise license.

Several factors were considered in determining that control transfers to the customer upon shipment of retail
and wholesale products. These factors include that legal title transfers to the customer, the Company has a
present right to payment, and the customer has assumed the risks and rewards of ownership at the time of
shipment.

The products held under bill and hold arrangements are deemed to have transferred control of the goods to
the customer at the point in time the goods are manufactured and stored separately in the warehouse because
the customer has accepted the goods, directs and determines how the goods are used and can otherwise
benefit from the goods.

Research and Development Costs

The IRS amended Section 174 that impacts businesses that incur research and development costs.
Beginning in 2022, firms that invest in research and development are no longer able to currently deduct
their research and development expenses. Rather, the businesses must amortize their costs over five years,
starting with the midpoint of the taxable year in which the expense is paid or incurred. Research and
development costs were $15,035 and $12,777 for the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.
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AIRE-MASTER OF AMERICA, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — CONTINUED

Cash Held in Financial Institutions
During the year ended March 31, 2023, there were instances when the Company’s cash held in financial
institutions exceeded the depositors’ insurance provided by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.

Sales Taxes
Sales (and similar) taxes that are imposed on our sales and collected from customers are excluded from
revenues.

Shipping and Handling Costs
Costs for shipping and handling activities, including those activities that occur subsequent to transfer of

control to the customer, are recorded as cost of sales and are expensed as incurred. The Company accrues
costs for shipping and handling activities that occur after control of the promised good has transferred to
the customer.

Date of Management’s Review
Management has evaluated subsequent events through June 15, 2023, the date on which the financial

statements were available to be issued.

NOTE 2: INTANGIBLE ASSETS

At March 31, 2023, the Company had the following intangible assets:

Gross Carrying  Accumulated Net Amortization
Amount Amortization Value Period
Amortized intangible assets:
Customer lists $ 266,859 257,136 $ 9,723 15 years
Covenants not to compete 55314 55.314 - 15 years
$§ 322,173 312,450
Unamortized intangible assets:
Goodwill 87,294
Franchise rights 3.133
Total intangible assets $ 100,150

Total amortization expense for the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022 was $833 and $833
respectively.
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AIRE-MASTER OF AMERICA, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 2: INTANGIBLE ASSETS - CONTINUED

Future amortization expense is as follows:

Year Ended
March 31 Amount
2024 $ 833
2025 833
2026 833
2027 833
2028 833
2029+ 5,558

$ 9,723

NOTE 3: NOTES PAYABLE

The Company has a $750,000 line of credit with OakStar Bank. The interest rate is fixed at 4.15%. As of
March 31, 2023, the Company had no borrowings against this line of credit leaving $750,000 available for
future borrowing.

The Company borrowed $500,000 from OakStar Bank during the year. The interest rate is fixed at 4.75%.
The balance is due July 18, 2029. As of March 31, 2023 the balance was $458,405 with a current portion
of $67,000.

Cash payments for interest expense during the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, amounted to $15,333
and $595, respectively.

NOTE 4: INCOME TAXES

2023 2022
Earnings before provision for income taxes $ 301,739 366,521
Non-deductible expenses 10,602 11,536
Allowances for doubtful accounts (8,000) 8,700
Depreciation 150,479 75,655
Amortization (833) -
Accrual to cash adjustment 119,010 (234,732)
Taxable income $ 572,997 222,680
Federal and state income taxes at statutory rates $ 143,500 42,000
Deferred income taxes based on timing differences (65,200) 37,800
Provision for income taxes $ 78,300 79,800
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AIRE-MASTER OF AMERICA, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 4: INCOME TAXES — CONTINUED

During the fiscal years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company paid $54,617 and $276,745 toward
income tax liabilities, respectively.

Deferred taxes result from differences in the recognition of expenses for income tax and financial statement
purposes. The sources of these differences and the tax effect of each are as follows:

2023 2022
Depreciation $ 237,200 274,900
Bad debt (6,600) (8,600)
Accrued vacation (28,900) (33,050)
Accrual to cash adjustment 162,200 196,180
Amortization 20,200 19,970
$ 384,100 449,400

NOTE S: EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Beginning in January 2020, the Company adopted a Safe Harbor 401k plan. Employees are eligible to
participate after 60 days of service and automatically enrolled once eligible with 1% of earnings being
contributed. The company matches up to 4% on the first 4% the employee contributes into the
plan. Employer’s contributions are subject to vesting as follows: 20% in year 2, 40% in year 3, 60% in year
4, 80% in year 5 and 100% after year 6. The Company’s contributions to the plans during years ended
March 31, 2023 and 2022 totaled $91,532 and $94,178, respectively.

NOTE 6: LONG TERM LEASES

The Company has obligations as a lessee for office and warehouse facilities and office equipment with
initial noncancelable terms in excess of one year. Generally, these leases have an initial term of 3 to 6 years.
The Company classifies these leases as operating leases. The Company’s lease agreements vary, with some
having formal renewal options and others not having formal renewal options. When the lease includes a
formal renewal option that is reasonably certain to be exercised, the renewal periods are included in the
lease terms and lease liabilities. The Company’s leases do not include termination options for either party
to the lease, guaranteed residual values or restrictive financial or other covenants.

Payments due under lease contracts include fixed payments and, for many leases, variable payments.
Several of the Company’s leases require it to make variable payments for the Company’s proportionate
share of the buildings’ property taxes, insurance, and other operating costs. These variable lease payments
are not included in lease payments used to determine lease liabilities and are recognized as variable lease
costs when incurred.

Beginning in 2022, the Company has elected not to separate non-lease components from lease components
in leases for all lease classes.
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AIRE-MASTER OF AMERICA, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 6: LONG TERM LEASES - CONTINUED

The components of lease cost and statement of earnings caption allocation for the year ended
March 31, 2023, are as follows:

Year ended

Statement of earnings captions March 31, 2023
Operating lease cost Selling and administrative

expenses $ 474,974
Variable lease cost Selling and administrative

expenses 43,426
Short-term lease cost Selling and administrative

expenses 44,684
Total lease cost $ 563,084

Other information related to leases as of or for the year ended March 31, 2023 are as follows:

Weighted-average remaining operating lease term (years) — 8.77 years
Weighted-average discount rate for operating leases — 1.6%

Maturities of operating lease liabilities as of March 31, 2023, are as follows:

Operating leases

2023-2024 $ 483,958
2024-2025 486,493
2025-2026 464,964
2026-2027 464,964
2027-2028 + 2,253,189
Total lease payments 4,153,568
Less: present value adjustment 285,794
Present value of lease liabilities $ 3,867,774

The lease liabilities at March 31, 2023 include $3,823,225 of related party leases as described in Note 7.

Rent expense for operating leases accounted for under FASB ASC 840 was $483,931 for the year ended
March 31, 2022.

NOTE 7: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company paid Directors’ fees in the amount of $4,200 and $4,200 during the fiscal years ended March
31,2023 and 2022, respectively.

The Company owed shareholders $78,618 as of March 31, 2023. The loans are unsecured obligations and
are due upon demand. The interest rate fluctuates yearly based on the interest rate of the 30-year Treasury
bond at March 31. For the year ended March 31, 2023, the interest rate was 3.67%.

The Company leases office and warehouse facilities from a limited liability company owned in part by the
Company’s majority shareholder. The Company also leases warchouse facilities from a limited liability
company owned by the Company’s majority shareholder. See Note 6: Long Term Leases for the amount of
lease liability for the year ended March 31, 2023.
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AIRE-MASTER OF AMERICA, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 8: REVENUE FROM MAJOR CUSTOMERS

The Company has five major customers which combine to account for approximately 71% of the
Company’s total manufacturing sales for the year ended March 31, 2023. The largest single customer
accounted for approximately 26% of total manufacturing sales for the year ended March 31, 2023.

NOTE 9: FRANCHISE REVENUE

Aire-Master of America, Inc. is a franchiser of deodorizing and sanitation service outlets. When a franchise
is sold, the Company agrees to provide certain services to the franchisee, including training personnel,
design of promotional materials and advertising programs, and continuing supervision. Continuing
franchise service fees are charged to franchises at 5% of the franchisee's gross sales.

Management is uncertain if initial franchise fee revenue will decline in the future or not. The following
analysis details franchise ownership during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2023 and 2022:

2023 2022
Franchise operating at beginning of year 116 109
Newly established franchises 2 6
Franchises transferred 5 5
Franchises terminated/expired (8) 4
115 116

In addition to the above referenced franchises, Aire-Master of America, Inc. operated five of its own
separate franchises as of March 31, 2023.
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ELLIOTT, ROBINSON

&8 COMPANY, LLP

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors
of ATRE-MASTER OF AMERICA, INC.

Opinion

We have andited the accompanying fimancial statements of ATRE-MASTER OF AMERICA, INC.
(a Missouri copparation ), which comprise the halance sheets as of Maxch 31, 2022 and 2021, and
the related statements of income, =tained camings, and cash flows for the years then ended, and
the related notes 1o the fimancal sttements.

In our opmion, the fmancial statements =fermd © above present farrly, m all material respects,
the financial position of ATRE-MASTER OF AMERICA, INC. as of March 31, 2022 and 2021,
and the results of its operations and s ;ash flows for the years then ended in accordance with

accounting princip les generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our mudits in accordance with anditing standards generally accepted i the United
States of America Qurresponsi biliies under those standards am further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities ©orthe Andit of the Fmancial Stements section of our repart We are required ©o
be independent of AIRE-MASTER OF AMERICA, INC. and © meet our other ethical
responsibilities In accordance with the relevant ethical requimments =lating © our audits. We
bdieve that the andit evidence we have ocbtained s sufficient and sppropriate o provide a hasis
forour andit opimion.

Rasponsibilities of Management for the Financial Statem ents

Mamgement is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles general ly accepted in the United States of America, and for
the design, implementation, and mainenance of intermal contmo | =levant © the preparation and
far presentation of fimancial statements that are free ffom material misstatement, whether due ©o
frand or aror.

In pe=paring the fmancial styvements, mamagement is required © evaluate whether there are
conditions or events considered in the aggregate that mise substantial doubt about AIRE-
MASTER OF AMERICA, INC."s ability ©o continue as a going concem within one year after the
date that the fmancial stiements are available and issued.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS AND TRUSTED BUSINESS ADVISORS « ercpa.com
2306 5. Bockman Hooad. Sutte D Speinghield, MO 65209 » 497.857.0585 « F 417.287.0819
760 Eaat U.E. Highway 80 « Regublc, MO 65738 « 417.732.7252 « F 417.732.1003
216 W. College S1. » Branson, MO 65616 » 417.335.4160 » F 417.339.4669
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Ourobjectives are 1o obtain reasomable assurance about whether the financial shtements as awhole
are fee from material misstuement, whether dueto frmd or eror, smd © issuean andios ' repost
that mdudes our opinion. Reasonable sssurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not 2 guarmntee that an andit conducted in accordance with genenally
accepiad and iting standards will always detect 2 material misstatement when it exists. The risk of
not detecting 2 material misstatement resulting fom faud is highe than for one resulting from
error, as fand may mwolve collusion, forgery, mtentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
overnide of mtamal contmol. Misstatements, induding omissions, are considered material if there
isa substantial likdihood that, individmally orin the aggregate, they would influence the jud gment
made by areasomable user hased on the fmancal statements.

In pesforming an andit in accardance with generally accepted and iting standards, we

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain profess ional s keptia sm throug hout the mdit.

o Jdentify and assess the risks of material misstaement of the financial statements, whether
doe © fand or ewor, and design and perform andit procedures responsive o those nisks.
Such pocedures indude examining, on a st hasis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosums in the fmancial sheements.

e Obtain a undersanding of intemal control relevant © the andit n arder © design andit
procedures that areappmopriate in the circums tances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opimion on the effectiveness of AIREMASTER OF AMERICA, INC's mtemal
control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e FEwalhie the approprizeness of accounting policies used and the reasomableness of
signifimant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evalute the ovenall
presentation of the fmancial statements.

e Conchude whether, in our judgement, them e conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt sbout AIRE-MASTER OF AMERICA, INC.'s
ability o continue 2 a going concern for a rensomable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the andit, significant and it findings, and certain mtemal
control mlxted mattess that we identified during the andit.

Missouri
June 25 222
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AIRE-MASTER OF AMERICA, INC.
BALANCE SHEETS

YEARS ENDED MARCH 31,2022 AND 2021

ASSETS 222 pLrA R
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash s 1,5 655 1721 436
Acoouns rece nable - o raduced by allowasce e
doabafid accomss of $34 400 and $25, 700, respect e ly 1,661 X262 1,380,556
Isvemsoey 2,460,29% 2265346
lacomee mxes meervable 155,167 -
Prepasd expenses 168,676 145,194
Taal Cament Assts 5,690 658 5513,032
FIXED ASSETS
Vel 900,131 877,244
Mac nery and agupae st 1,975.340 1393251
Pormtwre and fivoures TS 093 T45364
Lexsedold mproneme s 4551 202219
44445 4321108
Less: acconula od deprecation 328 221 2951604
Taal Foed Asses 1277224 1339504
OTHER ASSETS
Deposis 153,685 66,458
lmanghle assess 100,953 101 %16
Texal (eker Assees 254 665 165304
S 7,173,550 7920340

See sccongan yiag sccomtnt! repost
sl motey o fsmcid stgonea s
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AIRE-MASTER OF AMERICA, INC.

BALANCE SHEETS

YEARS ENDED MARCH 31,2022 AND 2021

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EOUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Notss payable - mateneg withis one your
Accousss payable
Accread expensies
lacome taxes payable
Defersd mweme - caret portion
Tomal Carsent Luabilimes

NONLURRENTLIABILITIES
Defersd moome taxes
Due 10 shase holder
Defersd mweme - loag-2emm
Tomal Noo-Oarrent Lak linss

STOCKHOL DERS' EQUITY
Class A voting common sock - $1 par vales; 2 500 shares
axhoroed; 1,000 haws nesad and
Clas B sonvoting comumnon ook - $1 par vale; 25000 shares
auhon 20d; 10,000 shares masad and cusanding
Reoai ned camuingn
Toml Suxidoldes’ Kyany

See sccongan yiay sccomnt! repost
sl motex o Gumcid stgoneas.
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575,216 621252
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43,000 6000
1021417 1, 2565622
445 400 4115600
150,796 255402

— 192000 2400
T9L196 691002
1,000 1000
10,000 10000
5348937 5062216
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AIREMASTER OF AME RICA, INC.
STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS
YEARS ENDED MARCH 31,2022 AND 2021

22 221
REVENUE
Senvie revenue s 2,791 550 2326954
Mechandse sakss 478059 &1.967
Wholksale sakss 3912346 4 330662
Dsandbasor sales 123113 21,716
Mazfictoneg sales 4733920 231,747
Royaluss moome 1,262191 1,103
Fraschise sales 417597 56 865
Salss allowasoss (5955) (3,561)
Taal Revenge 13713391 1687423
COST OF REVENUE 552792% TS5 049
GROSS PROFIT T AR5 463 £ 572374
EXPENSES
Selleg and admimtniive expenses 7,091073 7.97.162
Bad dedt expense 15437 “6,702)
lmemst expense 595 2556
Depescusion and amatoation e pemsme 321591 T A43
Teaxal Expenass 7532396 750459
EARNINGS FROM OPERATIONS 353 P67 1061915
OTHER INCOME
Gam casale of assts 5300 32300
Mo lnaous moomne 154 27,142
Toaxal Ocder lncome 13454 29,542
EARNINGS BEFORE INCOME TAXES 366521 1, 91857
PROVISION FOR INOCOME TAXES TR0 300500
NET EARNINGS S 286721 1,.81357

See sccongan yay sccomtnt! ropost
sl motex o smcid stgonen s
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AIREMASTER OF AMERICA,INC
STAT EMENTS OF RETAINED EARNINGS
YEARS ENDED MARCH 31,2022 AND 2021

22 21
RET AINED EARNINGS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR s SP62216 3 S5T0XS
NET EARNINGS 286,721 1491357
RET AINED EARNINGS AT END OF YEAR S 5348937 5,062.206

Sec scoomgan yiay sccomtnt! repodt
sl moecx o frsacud stgonons.
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AIRE MASTER OF AMERICA,INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASHFLOWS

YEARS ENDED MARCH 31,2022 AND 2021

a2 pL iR
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Ne& camingsn s 2%.721 1491357
Non cash neny mchadad innet camings:
Degrecation and anoet 2og o in s 2157443
(Deraxse ) i & frved moomes uxes 37 200 77400
lreme o defared mvenue 210,000 30,000
(Gaim) on sale of amsets (5,300) (32,500)
PPP loas farghes - (662,100)
(lacrense ) docrame i Opemling AReees:
Acoouans recervable (2X1,306) 318955
lavenory (194,452) (515,015)
Prepasd expenses (23,452) @9.491)
Depoans (%7,197) B5,517)
Iacemase (docmase) i opemting labilmes:
Acomnuas payable (1m,x22) (574,390)
Accrad expenas (46,066) 96,302
lcomne Mes pajyable (243.279) 101,29%
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities (127,792) 523442
INVESTINGACTIVITIES
Poceads fiom sale of assees 5,300 32300
Purchase of fixed et (DX 47%) (545 3%4)
Net Cash (Used) in Investing A ctivities (248,17%) 512.584)
FINANCINGACTIVITIES
PPP loan peoceads - 662,100
Repaymnent of loag-2emn and shot 20mm barsowings (40,205) $1L,777)
Loas fom shareholder ( 104,606) 123724
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Financing Activities (144.311) 734047
NET INCRE ASE (DECREASE) IN CASH (475,751) 744 505
CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,721 436 976,531
CASH AT END OF YEAR S 1,245 655 L721.436
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash pasd donng S yoar for
lnteres expemie s 595 2583
B T s 120,667 120667

Ser sccongan Yy sccomtnt! ropodt
sexd motex o Bsmcid stomens
7

0009-03.17/Aire-Master of America FDD - 2024 DRAFT [v8].docxPage A. - 158



AIRE-MASTER OF AMERICA, INC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 AND 2021

OTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of the Company's Buosin ess

The Company is pimarily esgaged in the manafactoe and sale of sanition prodocts and in
poviding commercial hygiene services.  The Company is located in Southwest Missowrl and
oparges five of s own faschis I e Bllowing regioes: Oxgon, Soutimest Missourd,
Okl aboma and St Lowis, Missowrl. The company sells poodacts 10 | ndependent franc hises al lacross
North Amen o and masufictares poodacts for ofher companies unrelated 1 the fanchise indastry.
The Company extends unecared aradit 10 the genemn | public and 1o franc hised out ks in the nommal
course of business.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For parpoass of the statement of cash flows, cash agaivalents inc hade time depoaits, cantificatss of

depoait, maney madket fands, and highly liguid &bt nstraments with magarities of Sree montha
or less ot the dage of he i acguisition.

Acconats Recoivable

The Company accounts for the potestial losses in accounts recervabie utiloing the allowance
method. Managem ent has peovidad anal lowance for ancollecti bl e accounts &t March 31,2022 and
2021 of $34 400 and £5 700, resgectively. In mviewing aged receivabies, mana gement considers
their knowladge of castome s, histarical activity and canest cconomic conditions in

e allowance for doubtfal accounts. A trade account moeivible & charged 1 bad dedt expense
when management determinss the woeivable 15 meollactible.

The Company does not hawe any significant flsancing companents as franc hise fee payments ax
pad up fromt and all other payments ax typically rece ived within 4550 days.

loventory
Inventones are stated at the lower of cost or market based on the fist-in, fist-out method. Masket

valse & dtemuned by comparson with recent pase hases o real cable value.

Ereperty snd Depreciation
Property and equipment ae stated atcost Depeeclation & computad by applying the Billowing
methods and estimated lives:

Casegory Estimated Life Method

Vehicles 35 years Decl ming balance
Machinery and Equip 510 yas Declining balance and strazght-line
Pamitwe & fixtares 3-10 years Declining balance and straght-line
Leasehal d i mgrovements 540 years Stragdt- line

For #dal mcome i papoaes, dpeecation & computed using the modified accelentad cost
moovery system .

The costs of assets sold or otharwise of and the accumualated deprec it ion Shexon ax
ol mingted from the accaunts andthe gainor kas & reflactad in income, except for gains

on assets traded whe e no cash was mosived. Expenditaes for mal gtenance and repairsase charged
10 Income @5 Incurred; replacaments and bett orments Shat extend the useful ives ax capitalized.
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AIRE-MASTER OF AMERICA, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACOCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

Property and Depreciation - Continved
Long-lived assets held and wsad by the Company ae reviewed fr impainment whene ver events or

changes in circamstances indicate hat the coat of any long-lived assets maybe impaired, and
evalagion of recoverasbility would be parfrmsd fadlowing gescmlly acospted accounting
ponc ples.

Tatal depeeclation expense for the yaas endad March 31, 2022 and 2021 was $320,758 and
$256610, mapectively.

lotangible Assets

Itangible assets inchade franchise rights, goodwill, castomer 1ists, and covenants not 10 compete.
Effective Apnl 1, 2002, the Company adopied Accounting Standad Cod fication (ASC) No. 350,
Goodwill and Other busangible Assets. 1n accordance with this standisd, goodwill and fanchise
nghts will oo longer be amortzed, bt will be testad for impal anent ot last ansenlly. Castomer
Ity and covenants ot 10 comgeds we considarad 0 have dstemmimable wsefial lives and will
continge 10 be amortzed over their wsefial Iives.

Advertising
Tie Campany expenses the prodaction ooats of advertising & incured. Advest ing expense for
the years endad March 31, 2022 and 2021 was $42. 717 and $36 529 respectiwely.

Reven ue Recognition

The Company's revenue & darived from contracts with customers. The ma jonty of the Company's
mvense & darived from fmnchise fees royalties and retall sales. The Company accounts for revense
n accosdance with ASC 606, which the Company adoptad an April 1, 2015 using the mod fied
eroagecti ve method. Refer 10 Note 1 10 the financ lal stoements for the fiscal year endad Maxch
31,2015 for a desenption of the Company's revense moogaition pal iy paiar 10 April 1,2015. The
core principle of ASC 606 & © recognize revenne upon the traafer of services or pradacts ©o
cxstomes in an amount that wflacts the com idaration the Company expects 1o be entitled 10 in
exchange for Shose services or prodects. The Company applies the fullowing framework
ECOFRIZE revense:

The Comgnuy's ma) or = vensss consist of initi al franc hise o and wyal ties fiom franc hised stoes
operged by conventianal fanchisess, wholsa ke and il sales foom manufictured prodocts and
sarvice revespe from comguuyownad franchises. ASC 606 provides that mwenoss we 0 be

eoognzed when contml of promised goods or sarvices & traafarred 10 a castamer in an amount
that reflects the considerat iom expactad 10 be recatved for those goods or services.

Fromhise Foaes

Initial faschie fees comsist of sonrefindable paymests recaived by the Company from
franc hisees for the rights o dewlopa specified fanchise location. This mvense & moognzed after
e Comguey and faschisee enter indo a fanchise agmement and after significant obligations

egaied of the Campny under the franchise agmement ax sdatuatally pefomned sach as the
delivmble of materiaks and mining services. Any fanchise fos moeived prior 1o the Company

sati sfying it obligations are deferred.
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AIRE-MASTER OF AMERICA, INC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

Reven ve Recognition - Continued

Framhise Foes (Contbewd)

The Campany bas detenmired thewe axe two disti nct perfomn ance obligations related 1o the fanchise
e 1)the dstridation of mansals and similay material concerning operations, administration
and record keeping which usmlly ocours at the signing of franchise agreement and training
of the frmchisee's personnel at the franchisar's boation, 2) Onsite training of the
franchisee's personnd.

The Company adopied the pract il expadient that peamits frane hisos Shat are not public basiness
enti ties 10 account or pee-opening services providad 10 a franchisee a5 distint from the fanchise
license ifhe sarvices are consistent with those inc hadad in a predefined list within the ASU. Unail
the parfrmance obligat ions are met, the remainder of the franchise fee & in defared revenne on
the balance sheet. The Company akeo receives tmasfer fees and additional teariory #es which ax
camed as the parfamance obligations we parfrmad. For a5 with o perfomance obligations,
the income & camed over the life of he agmeament. The Company had careat defarred fanchise
sale revennes of $4% 000 and $6,000, wspecti vely, and long-torm defared franchise sale revenses
of $192,000 and $24 000 wsgect ively, a5 of March 31, 202 and 2021,

Royaltics

The Company gmats a fraschise losse which gives the fanchisee the right ©0 access the
Company's imtel lactaal property. The trade mme and logo have limited standal one fane tiomality,
the util ity of the products dewelopad by the entity & derived lasgel y fram the pondacts’ assoc ation
with the fanchise brand. Subatantially all of the utilty inherent in She tade name, logo, and podact
nghts granted under the license stems from the et ity's past and ongal ng acti vities of establishing,
bailding, and maintainng the fanchise band The utility of the lcanse & s assocation with the
franchise brand and the e loed demand for its poodacts. The Company's perfommance obligation 1o
traafer e lccnse & satified over time boause the customer simalaneowmly receives and
conmames the besefits of the franc hisor's license. The vanable considention |5 in the fom of sales-
based royalt iss that speci ficall y rel me 10 the fmachise | ceme.

Moot uring and Resall Sales

The Company gensrates whal csale and retail mvennss (shown a8 mex handise, manufictaring and
distribotor salss on the statements of carnings) pamarnily from the sale of prodacts 10 mtailars,
dstrdbuton and consamers i e Uniiad States. Revenue & recognzed upon shipment 10 the
castomer as that & wihen the costomer obfains contiol of the promised goods. Cradit temns ax
eviendad 10 wholesale costome s basad on ther cradimwont b ness and the Company gensnally does
ot receive advance payments. As sach, accounts recefvable & moordad at the time of shipment,
when their right 1o the consl dmtion bacomss unconditional. The Company offers a 30-day retarn
policy with a 15% restocking £ The Company doss not expect sign ficant retums based on
historical experience and thearefore has not acoread a resenve for poodact mtama. In the same way,

the Company doss nothave a formal warnaty poli cy but stands behind thel r pondacts . Historically,
warnmyclums have not resalied in matena] costs and wre expensad when incared

Service Rewensa
Service revene & gererged fiom campuay-owned franchises for cleaning and ofher sanmation
pactices. This revenne s caamed over time 25 the parformance obligations ax sgified
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AIRE-MASTER OF AMERICA, INC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

Reven ve Recognition - Continu od
The Company had nocontnct assets or labil ities as of March 31, 2002 or 2021 with the exception

of fanchise e revenues detailed alove and consignment amangements detaled below.

Bill and Held and Consignment Arrangements

Cetain wholsale poodocts are held @t the Comguay's waxhome becume the cusiome ragacsts
that t be held Shew and lacks Bhe physical space 1o stoee the goods. These pondoacts are held
scpantely as belonging 10 the castomer and are not wsed 10 satisfy ordes for other customerns. The
castomer regassts shipment of the paodacts as they nead tham. Revenue & moognied on these
amagements & the point in time when the customer caders the gpods and they are avallable tobe
shippad 10 the castomey.

The Company alio exgpges i a minimal amous of consignment ammgements. In this
amagement, prodacts ax shippad 10 a dealer, bt revenue & not recognzed until the produoct &
50l 102 customers of the daaler. Thew was $0and $0 of defarred consignment wvense asof Maxch
31, 0022 and 2021, magectively.

For the years endad Maxch 31, 202 and 201, SL185533 and $914251, mspactively, was
moordad a5 bill and hald and consignment incame and included in masufictaring sales on the
sttement of camings.

locome Taxes

The Tax Cuts and Joba Act of 2017 wias signad into aw on Decamber 22, 017, The law inc hades
signifiant changes 1o the US. corporate income tax system, inchading a Federal coporge mie
mdoction fiom 35% 10 21%, Limita oes on the dductibil ity of intewest expeme and executive
compemation, and the tam ton of U S, intersat oma | tiation fiom a word daide tax system toa
terrion al fax system. The legislation ako allowed the Company %o gual ify for the cash method of
acoounting, 50 the Company filed 2 change in accounting method from the aconaal method 10 the
cash method £ Income tx pagaes beginning in the 2018 tax year

The Comguay accaunts for income taxes maccardance with FASB ASC 740, Income Taxes, which
mgaies the recognition of defared income taxes for diffences between the basis of awsmets and
labilities for financ lal statement and inoome 14X pugoass. Since income tes e pad on the cash
basis of accounting mther than the acornual basis this oreatss timing di ffarences. Thew are ako
timing diffrences In mpating depreciation and amortcation for financial stitement and fax

Defemad tax assets and labilities represent the futae tix comseguence for those
diffesaces, which will & ther be daductible or tawable whenthe asets and labilities are recovessd
orsettled A valaationallvwance & establishad when nacessary 10 mduce defemad taxaseets 10 the
amount expecied 10 be malped

The Company follows the provisions of FASB ASC 740.10-25, which peescribes a recognition
Sreshold and mensyemant atnbate for the mcognition and mensaement of 120 pos itloss taken or
expecied 10 be tlken in income fax mtama. FASB ASC 740-10.25 alo grovides gudance on de-
mcogaition of mcome tx assets and labilities, clasi fication of careat and defared Incame tax
asets and labilities, and accounting for intemst and pesaltiss awsoc ited with tax positions. The
Company doss not have any aconsals for uncemain fix positi aes as of March 31, 2022
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AIRE-MASTER OF AMERICA, INC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

Income T axes - Continved
The fadem] and stage income tax wtams of the Company for 2021, 2020, and 2019 we subject ©
examination by the |RS and state trcing authorities, geaanally for ree yows after they wer filed.

Estimates

The prepamtion of finan: lal stements i conformity with genaral ly accepiad accounting principles
Egaies management 10 make estimates and assamptions that affect the wponted amount s of asets
and labilities and dischure of comtingent assets and lahilities at the date of the fiancial
sttementsand mwenos and cxpem o dunng the reporting penod. Actaal resd s could 4 ffer from
thoGe estimates.

Jodgmens
The Company considered several factos in detenmining how revenue shod dbe recognized These
Jodgments and estimates | nc hade identifyl ng perfommance obl igations, det ermining if pefomm ance
obligati cns ax dstinct, det ermining the standa lone sell ing price and timing of revense recogn tion
for each distinet perfomuance obligation, and estimating vanable considention 10 be inchadad in
the tmnsaction price. The Company dtemnined that the initial fanchise foss wer related 1o two
distinet and separae parfrmance obligations. The Canpany weed the best estimate of the salling
poce for the standalone perfomance obligat ions by estimating the price 4 customss in a similar
market would be willing 10 pay for the goods and services the Company provides. The Company
then allocated the initial fanchise £es 00 cach separate and disti nct parfommance obligation based
on the relative stand-alone 5ol ling price basis.

The Company alo dtormined Shatthe vanable comi deraion (the salss-based royalty) be allocaed
entizly 10 the franchise liceme because the vamable considemtion relates entirely 1 the eatity's
promise 10 gant the fanchise lcease

Several fictors were considesed in dtemnining that control tmmfers 10 the customess upon shipment
of retail and whalssale poodocts. These factars include that legal title tranafers 10 the castomer, the
Company bas a peesent right 0 payment, and the castomer has assamod the nsks and rewards of

owneship at the time of shipment.

The prodocts held under bill and hold amangements are demed 1 have transfearned contral of the
Food tothe castomer at the point in time the goods ax manufactaed and sioeed scpaniely in the
warhouse bocasse the customss has acceptad the goodi, directs and detemnines how the good ax
wsed and can otharwi se bene fit from the goods.

Resewch and deve coats ax charged © operatioas whes mcured Ressaxch and
development costs wer $12.777 and $2.233 for the yous endad March 31, 202 and 2021,
mapectively.

Cash Held in Financial Institutions
During e year endad March 31, 2027, these were stances when the Company's cash hald
fi nancia | mstitations exceededtle dpoanon’ msance provided by the Federal Depoant lnsarance

Corporat son.
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AIRE-MASTER OF AMERICA, INC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

Sales Taxes
Sales (and similar) taxes that are imposad on our sakss and collectad fiom customer s are exc hadad
from mvenoss.

Shipping and Hand ling Caosts
Coats for shipping and landling activities, inclading those activities Shat ocour subsagasnt
transfer of comtrol 10 the customes, are recoadad as coat of sales and ax expansedas incured. The

Company aconess costs for shipping and handling activities that oocur after control of the poomised
Food has mesaed 10 the castomer.

Date of Management's Review
Management has evalaged subseguent events through June 25, 2027 the date on which the
fimncal statements wer aval lible 10 be reoad.

NOTE 2: INTANGIBLE ASSETS

At March 31,2022 the Company had the fol lowing intang bl e assets:

Gross Carping Accamalated Net Amorteation
Asoant Amartization Vabse Penod
Amartzed mtang bie asets:
Castomer lists $ 266159 6303 § 105% 15 yeaus
Covenants not 10 compete __Ss314 _ ssa4 - 15 years
Sl sl
Usamonti 20d | tangible assets:
Goodwill 7,54
Franchise rights —_— 313
Tatal mtangble aseets Sl
Tatal amonti 2 on expense for the yeas ended March 31, 2022 and 2021 was $X33 and $X33
mapectively.
Patare amartzati on expesse & as Billows:
Year Ended
Maxhil Asnoant
2023 s m
2024 m
2028 t <)
2026 m
2027+

¢
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AIRE-MASTER OF AMERICA, INC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 3: NOTES PAYABLE

Tie Company s a $790,000 line of oredit with OakStwr Bask As of Maxch 31, 2002 the
Company had no bomowings against this line of oredit laving $750000 availlable for futee
bomowing.

Cashpayments fr interest expense during the years endad March 31, 202 and 2021, amounted 10
$595and £ 553 wapactively.

NOTE 4: PAYCHECK PRO TECT ION PROCEAM

In maposseto the coromavings (OOV1D-19) cotwenk in 2000, the ULS. Federal Government esacted
the Coronavines Asd, Relief and Ecomomic Secunty Act that, among ofher eoomomie 5t imakes
masaes, estabi shad the Paychec k Prodection Progmm (PPP) toprovd small business bass. On
April 14, 2020, the Company obtainad a PPP loan for $662100. The Company incured sufficen
qaalifying expesses daring 2000 %o gualify for 100% loan frgivencss. On November 5, 2000, the
SBA fommally fargave the PPP loan proceeds. The income fagivencss has been reportad as ofher
Income onthe statement of oparat lons, and based upon woent tix kegilation, will nat be tied for
fderal incomes fX parpoGes.

NOTES: INCOME TAXES
202 221
Earnings before provision for imoome txes $ 3 1,791 857
Non-dedactible expenaes 6,536 11,253
Allvwances for douba fal ac coants L0 (55,700
Deprecution TS5.&55 Q@rn2s
Amont catos - (£33
Gain on sale of assets - (1,950
loventory allowance - (30,0003
Acceaal 0 cashadyastment @34,732) s
PPP loan forg wass - 662,100
Taxable mcome $ 1280 31,533
Foderal and ste income tes 4t statutory raes $ 4200 23,100
Defered mcome txes basad on timing diffeences 37300 77,400
Poviion for mcome txes § T 300,500

During the fiscal yearsendd Maxch31, 202 and 2021, the Company pald $276745 and $120,667
toward i ncome tax labil mes, respectively.
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AIRE-MASTER OF AMERICA, INC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 AND 2021

NOTES: INCOME TAXES - CONTINUED

Defared tixes wsalt fiom diffesences in the moognition of expenses for income tax and financial
sttement purpoaes. The souxes of these di flarences and the tax offect of cach axe a5 fol lows:

202 2021

Deprec it ion s 274,500 293,500
Bad deén (X,600) (6,400
Aconed vasation (33050) (30,300
Accnal 1 cash adjastme st 196,180 134800
Amorteaton 19.970 19,200
s 449 400 411,600

Begiming in Janaary 2020, the Company adopiad a Safe Habor 401k plan Employeesaw eligble
0 partici pate afler 60 days of service and avtomaticall y ensolled ance eligible with 1% of carnings
being contibated. The company matches up 10 4% o the first 4% e cmployes contributes into
the plan. Bmployer's contribet ons ase subject 10 westing as follows: 2006 in yewr 2, 0% in yeuwr 3,
0% In year 4, 20% in year S and 100% after year 6. The Company's contributicns 10 the plans
duning yeas endad March 31, 202 and 2021 sotaled $54.17% and $86. 591, respectively.

NOTE 7: LONG TERM LEASES

The Company | exses office and warchowse fact Iities fram a limnad laky lity company ownad in part
by e Company's majority shaehalder. The minimam monthly lease payment 5 $32.374. The
lase ageement expires on December 31, 2022

Tie Company lkeasss wachouse ficilitiss from a lmited lability company owmed by the
Company's majonty shawholder. The luse agecment expired July 31,2017, and 2 rew lease
agrecment that was entered i o on Augast 19, 2019 goss into offect Augest 1, 2000, The mininvam

monthly kase payment &5 $5.29. The lease agresment expires om July 31,2023,

The Campany leases waxhouse facilities from an uneeloed third pasty. A new lease ageement
that was entered into oo October 4, 21 gpes into effact November 1, 2021, The muinimvam monthly

lase payment &5 $625. The lmse agrecment expies on September 31, 2022,

The Company leases building space from an unrelated thind party. The minimam monthly lease
payment & $550 The lmse ageement expied March 1, 2020, and a new lease agrecment has not
beensigred. The Company & careatly lasing the warchouse on 2 month-10-month basis.

The Comguuy leases 7 copies from an unrelated third party. The mininvam monthly kase payment
551957, The lease ageement expires Febasary 6, 2025
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AIRE-MASTER OF AMERICA, INC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED MARCH 31,2022 AND 2021

NOTE 7: LONG TERM LEASES - CONTINUED

Patare mininvam lese payments for non-cancellible operating leases with initial or remaining
periods of one year or mose ot Maxch 31, 2022, are as follows:

Year Endad
March 31 Aot
2023 $ 3 e
2024 44 4%
2028 19571
2026+ -
S-S5

Tatal rent expense under lases for the years ended March 31, 2022 and 2021 was $458.636 and
$459315, mapectively.

NOTE 8: RELATED PARTY TRANSACT IONS

The Comguuy pasd Diectors' fees in the amount of $4,200 and $4.200 dan ng the fiscalyears ended
March 31, 202 and 2021, mapectively.

Tie Comgany owed sharloldes $150,796 as of March 31, 2022, The hoass ax wnsecued

s andax doe upondemand. The interest mie flactaates yearly basad on the inderest rae
of the 0-year Treasary bond &t March 31, For the yew endad Maxch 31, 2022 the inderest rae
was 14836

See Note 7: Long Temn Leases for information regasding the reatal of the Comguay's office
fici Iities, main warhouse, and sacondiry warbasse fiom a limisd labil ity campany owned by
e Company’'s majonty shashalder

NOTE9: REVENUE FROM MAJOR CUSTOMERS

The Company tas five major castomens which combine 1o account for agprocimaely 65% of the
¥ ‘s total sales for the year ended Maxch 31, 222 The lagest single costomer accaunted
for apprond mage ly 73% of lotal sales for year endad March 31, 202,

NOTE 10: FRANCHISE REVENUE

Ale-Master of America, Inc. isa franchiser of deadori ng and sanitet lon service outlets. Whena
franchise & sold, e Company agees 10 provide cotain sarvices © the fanchisee, inchading

traming pemonne | dssign of promotional magenals and advertiing progama, and continaing
separvision. Continaing franc hise service fees wre charged 1o franchises at 5% of the franchised's

Froas sales
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AIRE-MASTER OF AMERICA, INC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 10: FRANCHISE REVENUE - CONTINLED

Managrment &5 uncertan if initial franchise foe revene will dacline in the futee or mot. The
Bllowing anal wis detalls fanchise ownership danng e fiscal year ended Maxch 31, 2022 and

2021
282 221
Franc i se operating at beginning of year 1% m
Newly estabi shad fmnc hises & 1
Franchises trasfered s -
Franc b sss eaninated e xpied (4) 3)
e X

In addition 10 the above mferaced franchises, Alre-Master of America, Inc. opemted fiveof its
oW separage franchises as of March 31, 022

NOTE 11: EXTRAORDINARY CIRCUMSTANCES

On March 22, 2020 the World Haalth Omgascation (“WHO™) recogaeed COVID-B a5 aglodal
pandemic, prompting many mtional  regional | and local govennm ents 10§ mgl cme ot preventative or
prodective measares, sach o tavel and business =sin chions, tempomyry stoee closares, and wide-
swecping guans ins and stry-a-home ordars. As aresalt, OOVID-19 and the rel med matrictive
masaes have ud a signficant adverse Impact on many sectors of the ecomomy, inchading

mdestn es o which fhe Company opentes.

The negative impacts of COVID-19did not negatively impact the Company's revesue for 2021 or
2022, however, doe 10 the mpidly ¢ hanging basine 55 cavironment, ungrecadentad market volanil ity,
and ofher clxunstances, the extent of COVID-19's impact on fatare revenue a5 the pandamic
continges canmotl easomably be dtemmized. Puotare penads wall be heavily mflasnced by the
timing, legth and mdesqity of e ccomomic recovencs in the Uniied Stes. Masagement
continges 0 monior evaving cconomie and gensral business conditions and the actaal and

potential impact on the financ lal position, resalts of operations, and cash flows.
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Exhibit D

Registered Agents
ARKANSAS: CALIFORNIA:
The Corporation Company Commissioner of the California

417 Spring Street
Little Rock, AR 72201

HAWAII:

Commissioner of Securities
335 Merchant Street, Room 203
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813

INDIANA:

Indiana Secretary of State

Securities Division, Franchise Section
302 West Washington, St., Room E-111
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204

KANSAS:

The Corporation Company, Inc.
515 S. Kansas Ave.
Topeka, Kansas 66603

MISSISSIPPI:

CT Corporation System
645 Lakeland East Dr. Ste 101
Flowood, Mississippi 39232

NEW JERSEY:

The Corporation Trust Company
820 Bear Tavern Road
West Trenton, New Jersey 08628

Department of Financial Protection and Innovation

(DFPI)

320 West 4th Street, Suite 750

Los Angeles, California 90013
or

C T Corporation System
818 W. 7th Street
Los Angeles, California 90017

ILLINOIS:

Illinois Attorney General
500 South Second Avenue
Springfield, Illinois 62706

or

C T Corporation System
208 S. La Salle
Chicago, Illinois 60604

IOWA:

C T Corporation System
2222 Grand Ave.
Des Moines, Iowa 50312

MARYLAND:

Maryland Securities Commissioner
200 St. Paul Place

Baltimore, Maryland 21202-2020
(410) 576-6360

MISSOURI:
John M. Carnahan I11

Carnahan, Evans, Cantwell & Brown P.C. 2805 S.

Ingram Mill
Springfield, Missouri 65804

NEW YORK:

New York Department of State
99 Washington Avenue, 6th Floor
New York, New York 12231
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NORTH DAKOTA:

Securities Commissioner

North Dakota Securities Department
600 East Boulevard Avenue

State Capitol Fifth Floor Dept 414
Bismarck, North Dakota 58505-0510

OREGON:

C T Corporation System
520 SW Yambhill, Suite 800
Portland, Oregon 97204

SOUTH DAKOTA
Director of the Division of Insurance

Securities Regulation
124 South Euclid Suite 104
Pierre, South Dakota 57501

OKLAHOMA:

The Corporation Company
735 First National Building
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73102

RHODE ISLAND

Rhode Island Director of Department of Business
Regulations

1511 Pontiac

John O. Pastore Complex, Building 69-1
Cranston, Rhode Island 02920

VIRGINIA:

Clerk of the State Corporation Commission
1300 E. Main Street, 1st Floor
Richmond, Virginia 23219

If a state is not listed, Aire-Master has not appointed an agent for service of process in that state in connection
with the requirements of Franchise laws. There may be states in addition to those listed above in which Aire-
Master has appointed an agent for service of process.

There may also be additional agents appointed in some of the states listed.
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Exhibit E
List of Administrators

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION (FTC):
Federal Trade Commission
Washington, D.C. 20580
(202) 326-3128

HAWAII
Department of Commerce & Consumer Affairs
Division of Business Regulation
335 Merchant Street, Room 203
Honolulu, HI 96813
(808) 586-2744

INDIANA:
Indiana Secretary of State
Securities Division, Franchise Section
302 West Washington, St., Room E-111
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204
(317) 232-6681

MICHIGAN
Michigan Department of Attorney General
Consumer Protection Division
P.O. Box 30213
Lansing, MI 48909
(517) 373-1140
Toll Free (877) 765-8388

NORTH DAKOTA:
North Dakota Securities Department
600 East Boulevard Avenue
State Capitol Fifth Floor Dept 414
Bismarck, North Dakota 58505-0510
(701)-328-4712

SOUTH DAKOTA
Division of Insurance
Securities Regulation
124 South Euclid Suite 104
Pierre, South Dakota 57501
(605) 773-3563

CALIFORNIA:
Commissioner of the California
Department of Financial Protection and Innovation
(DFPI)
320 West 4th Street, Suite 750
Los Angeles, California 90013
(213) 576-7500
Toll Free: (866) 275-2677

(or at any of its locations)

ILLINOIS:
Office of the Illinois Attorney General
500 South Second Avenue
Springfield, Illinois 62706
(217) 782-44065

MARYLAND:
Office of the Maryland Attorney General
Division of Securities
200 St. Paul Place
Baltimore, Maryland 21202-2020
(410) 576-6360

NEW YORK:
NYS Department of Law
Investor Protection Bureau
28 Liberty Street, 21st Floor
New York, New York 10005
(212) 2416-8222

RHODE ISLAND
Rhode Island Division of Securities
1511 Pontiac
John O. Pastore Complex, Building 69-1
Cranston, Rhode Island 02920
(401) 462-9527

TEXAS:
Secretary of State
P.O. Box 12697
Austin, Texas 78701
(512) 463-5701
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VIRGINIA:
Virginia State Corporation Commission
Division of Securities and Retail Franchising
1300 E. Main Street, Ninth Floor
Richmond, VA 23219
(804) 371-9051
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Exhibit F
Aire-Master Training Courses
The Operations Manual was discontinued, and content was incorporated into the following online written
training courses with exams. Some courses include video content.

These training courses must be completed prior to attending Aire-Master’s corporate training.

Each course takes approximately 1 hour to complete.

Introduction to Aire-Master

The Aire-Master Brand

Setting Up Your Business

Growing Your Business

Selling Core Services

Selling Additional Services

Scent Marketing & Odor Control Services
Scent Marketing & Odor Control Products
Hand Care Services

Hand Care Products

. Cleaning Services

Cleaning Products

. Paper Services

. Paper Products

. Preventive Maintenance Products

S T A o

_ e e e e e = O
SV A LN O

. Insect Control Products
. Safety

. Human Resoutces

. Route-Master Softwatre

—_
O o0
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Exhibit F

TABLE OF CONTENTS

CHAPTER ONE: INTRODUCTION
WHAT IS FRANCHISING?
WHAT IS AIRE-MASTER? vt nanne
VISION....ormrreivencnrenacrennn .
ORGANIZATION N
THE AIRE-MASTER SYSTEM ..o

CHAPTER TWO: FRANCHISE SUPPORT
INITIAL AND ONGOING SUPPORT
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AND SUPPORT
TRAINING...................

FRANCHISE ADVISORY COUNCIL (FAC).....
REGIONAL MEETINGS.....................

TELECONFERENCES. .... .
CORPORATE CONTACTS . 2-
NATIONAL FRANCHISE CONFERENCE...... . 2-
CONFERENCE FEES ST 2-

0O ~NOOOO AN

CHAPTER THREE: FRANCHISEE RESPONSIBILITIES
PROTECTING THE AIRE-MASTER SYSTEM 3
PROVIDING DOCUMENTATION TO AMA. .......covmeeirneenes . 3-
FRANCHISE ACCOUNTS ...ttt 3
MEETING ATTENDANCE
TRANSFERRING THE SYSTEM ....
RENEWALS......
INCORPORATING.............
FIRST RIGHT OF REFUSAL

'
N OO A W -

CHAPTER FOUR: GETTING STARTED
GROWTH PLAN ...
TAX IDENTIFICATION NUMBERS .
OPENING BANK ACCOUNTS ... saebene e
ESTABLISHING AN OFFICE .....
COMPUTER SYSTEM. rretertn e e
INITIAL PRODUCT ORDER
INSURANCE ...ttt e es s s b s s s
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CHAPTER SIX: EMPLOYEES
JOB DESCRIPTIONS & QUALIFICATIONS ..................
RECRUITING — EXAMPLES OF NEWSPAPER ADS
SCREENING AND INTERVIEWING .......cccoeererreeeeieeennne
FORMS. ...
POSTERS ............. .
WAGES AND COMMISSIONS...............
NON-COMPETE AGREEMENT
POLICIES
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CHAPTER SEVEN: FINANCIAL OPERATIONS
PLANNING AND BUDGETING ...........
RECORD KEEPING AND REPORTING
BUSINESS PLAN

9
'
w
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CHAPTER EIGHT: INVENTORY
INVENTORY CONTROL
ORDERING AND SHIPPING PROCEDURES ..
RECEIVING ORDERS.........cccetmiiinieeeennne
RETURNS AND CREDITS

]
1
w
_

DEODORIZING — ALTERNATE PRESENTATION
BUYER OBUJECTIONS ...ttt teae s s s s eene s s s
MAKING ADDITIONAL SALES
OTHER SALES STRATEGIES
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CHAPTER TEN: SERVICE AND OPERATIONS
CREATING VALUE
CUSTOMER SERVICE TIPS ..

Num.
Pages

DEODORIZER INSTALLATION ..................

SERVICING THE DEODORIZER
AIRE-O-MATIC SERVICE
FIXTURE CLEANING PROCEDURES
FIRST TIME CLEANING PROCEDURES

HANDLING INVOICES ON THE ROUTE
ROUTE EXPENSE POLICIES...................

PREPARING INVOICES FOR ROUTE PROCESSING

PROCESSING INVOICES

APPENDICES
APPENDIX A: ADDITIONAL MANUALS AVAILABLE
APPENDIX B: TRANSFERRING A FRANCHISE
APPENDIX C: RENEWING A FRANCHISE
APPENDIX D: AVERAGE ACCOUNT PROFITABILITY
APPENDIX E: INITIAL PRODUCT ORDER EXAMPLE
APPENDIX F: SALES BLITZ PLAN EXAMPLE
APPENDIX G: PRIMARY & SECONDARY MARKETS
APPENDIX H: REGIONAL PRICING SCHEDULES
APPENDIX I: EXAMPLES OF CUSTOMER LETTERS
APPENDIX J: SAFETY FORMS
APPENDIX K: NON-COMPETE AGREEMENT

Exhibit F
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Exhibit G
STATE SPECIFIC APPENDIX

All States - Notice Required by NASAA Statement of Policy Regarding The Use of Franchise Questionnaires
and Acknowledgments

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection
with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims
under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance
on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the
franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with
the franchise.

CALIFORNIA:

The California Franchise Investment Law requires a copy of all proposed agreements relating to the
sale of the franchise be delivered together with the franchise disclosure document.

The franchisor, any person or franchise broker in Item 2 of the FDD is not subject to any currently
effective order of any national securities association or national securities exchange, as defined in the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, 15 U.S.C.A. 78a et seq., suspending or expelling such persons from
membership in such association or exchange.

OUR WEBSITE HAS NOT BEEN REVIEWED OR APPROVED BY THE CALIFRONIA
DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL PROTECTION AND INNOVATION. ANY COMPLAINTS
CONCERNING THE CONTENT OF THIS WEBSITE MAY BE DIRECTED TO THE
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL PROTECTION AND INNOVATION at
www.dfpi.ca.gov.

Aire-Mastet’s website address (URL) is http://www.airemaster.com

a. California Business and Professions Code 20000 through 20043 provide rights to the franchisee
concerning transfer, termination or non-renewal of a franchise. If the franchise agreement contains a
provision that is inconsistent with the law, the law will control. (Note: This is required to be disclosed
in all filings.)

b. The franchise agreement provides for termination upon bankruptcy. This provision may not be
enforceable under federal bankruptcy law. (11 U.S.C.A. Sec. 101 et seq.).

c. The franchise agreement contains a covenant not to compete, which extends beyond the termination
of the franchise. This provision may not be enforceable under California law.

d. The franchise agreement contains a liquidated damages clause. Under California Civil Code Section
1671, certain liquidated damages clauses are unenforceable.

e. The franchise agreement requires binding arbitration. The arbitration will occur at (indicate site) with
the costs being borne by (explanation). Prospective franchisees are encouraged to consult private legal
counsel to determine the applicability of California and federal laws (such as Business and Professions
Code Section 20040.5, Code of Civil Procedure Section 1281, and the Federal Arbitration Act) to any
provisions of a franchise agreement restricting venue to a forum outside the State of California.

f. The franchise agreement requires application of the laws of Missouri. This provision may not be
enforceable under California law.

Aire-Master will comply with all appropriate laws governing any direct financing offered by Aire-
Master to you, including, if applicable, the California Finance Lenders Law.
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The highest interest rate allowed by law in California is 10% annually.

The franchise agreement requires you to execute a general release of claims on renewal or transfer of
the franchise agreement. California Corporation Code 31512 provides that any condition, stipulation
or provision purporting to bind any person acquiring any franchise to waive compliance with any
provision of that law or any rule or order is void. section 31512 voids a waiver of your rights under the
Franchise Investment Law (California Corporation Code section 31000-31516). Business and
Professions Code section 20010 voids a waiver of your rights under the Franchise Relations Act
(Business and Professions Code sections 20000-20043).

California Corporation Code, section 31125 requires Aire-Master to give you a disclosure document,
in a form containing the information the commissioner may by rule or order require, before a
solicitation of a proposed material modification of an existing franchise.

The California Franchise Investment Law requires a copy of all proposed agreements relating to the
franchise be delivered together with the FDD (this document).

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection
with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims
under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (i) disclaiming reliance
on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the
franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with
the franchise.

NOTICE FOR PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEES WHO RESIDE IN, OR WHO INTEND
TO OPERATE THE FRANCHISED BUSINESS IN THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA: DO
NOT COMPLETE THIS QUESTIONNAIRE OR TO RESPOND TO ANY OF THE
QUESTIONS CONTAINED IN THIS QUESTIONNAIRE.

California Rul Rule 310.114.1(c)(6) (Item 19)

The earnings claims figure(s) does (do) not reflect the costs of sales, operating expenses, or
other costs or expenses that must be deducted from the gross revenue or gross sales figures to
obtain your net income or profit. You should conduct an independent investigation of the costs
and expenses you will incur in operating your (franchised business). Franchisees or former
franchisees, listed in the offering circular, may be one source of this information.

FLORIDA: Fla. stat., 1985, ch. 817, sec. 559.811 (Item 17)
ILLINOIS (Item 17):

The conditions under which your franchise can be terminated and your rights upon non-renewal may
be affected by Illinois law, 815 ILCS 705/19 AND 705/20.

Illinois Administrative Code, Title 14, Subtitle A, Chapter II, Part 200.608 provides that a franchise
agreement shall not provide for a choice of law provision for any state other than Illinois.

Illinois law governs the agreement between the parties to this franchise.
Section 4 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act dictates that:

“any provision in the franchise agreement which designates jurisdiction or venue in a forum
outside of [Illinois] is void with respect to any cause of action which otherwise is enforceable in
[1llinois], provided that a franchise agreement may provide for arbitration in a forum outside
[Illinois].”
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Section 41 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act states that any condition, stipulation, or provision
purporting to bind any person acquiring any franchise to waive compliance with any provision of the
Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act or any other law of Illinois is void.

MARYLAND (Item 17):

PURSUANT TO COMAR 02.02.08.16L, THE GENERAL RELEASE REQUIRED AS A
CONDITION OF RENEWAL, SALE, AND OR ASSIGNMENT/TRANSFER SHALL NOT
APPLY TO ANY LIABILITY UNDER THE MARYLAND FRANCHISE REGISTRATION AND
DISCLOSURE LAW.

Any claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law must be brought
within 3 years after the grant of the franchise.

Pursuant to the Maryland franchise registration and disclosure law, the franchise agreement provision
that franchisee may be sued in the Circuit Court of the Judicial Circuit of the State of Missouri, and of
the Federal Court for the Western District of Missouri shall not prohibit franchisee from bringing a
lawsuit in Maryland for claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection
with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims
under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (i) disclaiming reliance
on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the
franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with
the franchise.

NEW YORK:

Item 3

INFORMATION COMPARING FRANCHISORS IS AVAILABLE. CALL THE STATE
ADMINISTRATORS LISTED IN EXHIBIT A OR YOUR PUBLIC LIBRARY FOR
SERVICES OR INFORMATION. REGISTRATION OF THIS FRANCHISE BY NEW
YORK STATE DOES NOT MEAN THAT NEW YORK STATE RECOMMENDS IT OR
HAS VERIFIED THE INFORMATION IN THIS FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE
DOCUMENT. IF YOU LEARN THAT ANYTHING IN THIS FRANCHISE
DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT IS UNTRUE, CONTACT THE FEDERAL TRADE
COMMISSION AND APPROPRIATE STATE OR PROVINCIAL AUTHORITY. THE
FRANCHISOR MAY, IF IT CHOOSES, NEGOTIATE WITH YOU ABOUT ITEMS
COVERED IN THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT. HOWEVER, THE
FRANCHISOR CANNOT USE THE NEGOTIATING PROCESS TO PREVAIL UPON A
PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEE TO ACCEPT TERMS WHICH ARE LESS FAVORABLE
THAN THOSE SET FORTH IN THIS FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT.

NEW YORK:

Except as provided above, with regard to the franchisor, its predecessor, a person identified in Item 2,
or an affiliate offering franchises under the franchisor’s principal trademark:

A. No such party has an administrative, criminal or civil action pending against that person alleging: a
felony, a violation of a franchise, antitrust, or securities law, fraud, embezzlement, fraudulent
conversion, misappropriation of property, unfair or deceptive practices, or comparable civil or
misdemeanor allegations.
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B. No such party has pending actions, other than routine litigation incidental to the business, which
are significant in the context of the number of franchisees and the size, nature or financial condition
of the franchise system or its business operations.

C. No such party has been convicted of a felony or pleaded nolo contendere to a felony charge oz,
within the 10 year period immediately preceding the application for registration, has been convicted of
or pleaded nolo contendere to a misdemeanor charge or has been the subject of a civil action alleging:
violation of a franchise, antifraud, or securities law; fraud; embezzlement; fraudulent conversion or
misappropriation of property; or unfair or deceptive practices or comparable allegations.

D. No such party is subject to a currently effective injunctive or restrictive order or decree relating to
the franchise, or under a Federal, State, or Canadian franchise, securities, antitrust, trade regulation or
trade practice law, resulting from a concluded or pending action or proceeding brought by a public
agency; or is subject to any currently effective order of any national securities association or national
securities exchange, as defined in the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, suspending or expelling
such person from membership in such association or exchange; or is subject to a currently effective
injunctive or restrictive order relating to any other business activity as a result of an action brought by
a public agency or department, including, without limitation, actions affecting a license as a real estate
broker or sales agent.

Item 5
NEW YORK:

The initial franchise fee constitutes part of our general operating funds and will be used as such in our
discretion.

Item 17

NEW YORK: The following is added to the end of the “Summary” sections of Item 17(c), titled
“Requirements for franchisee to renew or extend,” and Item 17(m), entitled “Conditions for
franchisor approval of transfer’:

However, to the extent required by applicable law, all rights you enjoy and any causes of action arising
in your favor from the provisions of Article 33 of the General Business Law of the State of New York
and the regulations issued thereunder shall remain in force; it being the intent of this proviso that the
non-waiver provisions of General Business Law Sections 687.4 and 687.5 be satisfied.

NEW YORK: The following language replaces the “Summary” section of Item 17(d), titled “T'ermination
by franchisee™:

You may terminate the agreement on any grounds available by law.

NEW YORK: he following is added to the end of the “Summary” section of Item 17(j), titled “Assignment
of contract by franchisor™:

However, no assignment will be made except to an assignee who in good faith and judgment of the
franchisor, is willing and financially able to assume the franchisor’s obligations under the Franchise
Agreement.

NEW YORK: The following is added to the end of the “Summary” sections of Item 17(v), titled “Choice
of forum”, and Item 17(w), titled “Choice of law’

The foregoing choice of law should not be considered a waiver of any right conferred upon the
franchisor or upon the franchisee by Article 33 of the General Business Law of the State of New York.
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NORTH CAROLINA:
Gen. Stat. North Carolina, Ch. 66, Art. 19, § 66-95

“If the seller (Aire-Master) fails to deliver the product(s), equipment, or supplies necessary to begin
substantial operation of the business within 45 days of the delivery date stated in your contract (the
Franchise Agreement), you may notify the seller in writing and demand that the contract be canceled.”

NORTH DAKOTA

COVENANTS NOT TO COMPETE MAY BE SUBJECT TO NORTH DAKOTA CENT. CODE
9-08-06. Covenants not to compete are generally considered unenforceable in the State of North
Dakota.

The following provisions are subject to applicable North Dakota law, which the Commissioner has
held to be unfair, unjust and inequitable within the intent of Section 51-19-09:

covenants restricting competition contrary to Section 9-08-06, N.D.C.C.;

franchisee consent to the jurisdiction of courts outside of North Dakota;

franchisee consent to liquidated damages or termination penalties;

provision that the Franchise Agreement is governed by the laws of a state other than North
Dakota;

waiver of trial by jury;

requirement that franchisee waive exemplary and punitive damages;

requirement that franchisee sign a general release on renewal of the Franchise Agreement;
requirement that franchisee consent to a limitation of claims;

designation of jurisdiction or venue in a forum outside of North Dakota; and

requirement that franchisee pay all Franchisor's costs and expenses incurred in enforcing the
agreement.

SOUTH DAKOTA:

Covenants not to compete upon termination or expiration of the franchise agreement are generally
unenforceable in the State of South Dakota, except in certain instances provided by law. SDCL 53-9-
8.

TEXAS:  Tex.Rev.Civ.Stat., 1925, Title 79, ch. 16, art. 16.09(9)

“If the seller (Aire-Master) fails to deliver the product, equipment, or supplies necessary to begin
substantial operation of the business within 45 days of the delivery date stated in your contract (the
Franchise Agreement), you may notify the seller in writing and cancel your contract.”
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FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE QUESTIONNAIRE

As you know, Paris Banh Mi Franchising LLC (“we” or “us”), and you are preparing to enter into
a Franchise Agreement for the operation of Paris Banh Mi’s Business (as defined in this Franchise
Disclosure Document). The purpose of this Questionnaire is to determine whether any statements
or promises were made to you that we have not authorized or that may be untrue, inaccurate or
misleading, to be certain that you have been properly represented in this transaction, and to be
certain that you understand the limitations on claims you may make by reason of the purchase and
operation of your franchise. You cannot sign or date this Questionnaire the same day as the
Receipt for the Franchise Disclosure Document but you must sign and date it the same day
you sign the Franchise Agreement and pay your Initial Franchise Fee. Please review each of
the following questions carefully and provide honest responses to each question. If you answer
“No” to any of the questions below, please explain your answer in the table provided below.

I. Yes No Have you received and personally reviewed the Franchise
Agreement and each attachment or schedule attached to it?

2. Yes No Have you received and personally reviewed the Franchise
Disclosure Document we provided?

3. Yes No Did you sign a receipt for the Franchise Disclosure Document
indicating the date you received it?

4.  Yes No Do you understand all the information contained in the
Franchise Disclosure Document and Franchise Agreement?

5. Yes No Have you reviewed the Franchise Disclosure Document and
Franchise Agreement with a lawyer, accountant or other
professional advisor or have you had the opportunity for such
review and chosen not to engage such professionals?

6. Yes No Have you discussed the benefits and risks of developing and
operating a Paris Banh Mi Business with an existing Paris Banh
Mi franchisee?

7.  Yes No Do you understand the risks of developing and operating a
Paris Banh Mi Business?

8.  Yes No Do you understand the success or failure of your franchise will
depend in large part upon your skills, abilities and efforts and
those of the persons you employ as well as many factors beyond
your control such as competition, interest rates, the economy,
inflation, labor and supply costs and other relevant factors?
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9. Yes No

10. Yes No

11. Yes No

12. Yes No

13.  Yes No

14. Yes No

15. Yes No

Do you understand all disputes or claims you may have arising
out of or relating to the Franchise Agreement must be litigated,
mediated, and/or arbitrated in Florida, if not resolved
informally or by mediation?

Do you understand that you must satisfactorily complete the
initial training course before we will allow your Business to
open or consent to a transfer?

Do you agree that no employee or other person speaking on our
behalf made any statement or promise regarding the costs
involved in operating a Paris Banh Mi Business, that is not
contained in the Franchise Disclosure Document or that is
contrary to, or different from, the information contained in the
Franchise Disclosure Document?

Do you agree that no employee or other person speaking on our
behalf made any statement or promise or agreement, other than
those matters addressed in your Franchise Agreement
concerning advertising, marketing, media support, marketing
penetration, training, support service or assistance that is
contrary to, or different from, the information contained in the
Franchise Disclosure Document?

Do you agree that no employee or other person speaking on our
behalf made any statement or promise regarding the actual,
average or projected profits or earnings, the likelihood of
success, the amount of money you may earn, or the total amount
of revenue a Paris Banh Mi Business will generate, that is not
contained in the Franchise Disclosure Document or that is
contrary to, or different from, the information contained in the
Franchise Disclosure Document?

Do you understand that the Franchise Agreement and
attachments to the Franchise Agreement contain the entire
agreement between us and you concerning the franchise for the
Paris Banh Mi Business, meaning any prior oral or written
statements not set out in the Franchise Agreement or the
attachments to the Franchise Agreement will not be binding?

Do you understand that we are relying on your answers to this
questionnaire to ensure that the franchise sale was made in
compliance of state and federal laws?

YOU UNDERSTAND THAT YOUR ANSWERS ARE IMPORTANT TO US AND THAT WE

WILL RELY ON

THEM. BY SIGNING THIS QUESTIONNAIRE, YOU ARE
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REPRESENTING THAT YOU HAVE CONSIDERED EACH QUESTION CAREFULLY AND
RESPONDED TRUTHFULLY TO THE ABOVE QUESTIONS.

EXPLANATION OF ANY NEGATIVE RESPONSE
(REFER TO QUESTION NUMBER)

Questionnaire Number Explanation of Negative Response
Signature of Franchise Applicant Signature of Franchise Applicant
Name (please print) Name (please print)

Date: Date:
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MARYLAND ADDENDUM TO
ATRE-MASTER OF AMERICA, INC. FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

DATED ,
WHEREAS, Aire-Master of America, Inc. ("Franchisor"), and and
, doing business as Aire-Master of ("Franchisee"), entered into

a Franchise Agreement dated (the “Franchise Agreement”).

>

AND WHEREAS, pursuant to the Maryland Franchise Disclosure Act, COMAR .02.02.0816L, a
general release required as a condition of renewal, sale, and or assignment/transfer shall not apply to
any liability under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

AND, WHEREAS, the parties desire to amend the Franchise Agreement to comply with said
statutory requirements.

In consideration of the original Franchise Agreement and this First Addendum thereto, Franchisor
and Franchisee do agree as follows:

Any provision in the franchise agreement requiring Franchisee to assent to a release, estopple, or
walver of liability is not intended to, nor shall it act as a release, estopple, or waiver of any
liability under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

The franchise agreement provision that franchisee may be sued in the Circuit Court of the Judicial
Circuit of the State of Missouri, and of the Federal Court for the Western District of Missouri,
shall not prohibit franchisee from bringing a lawsuit in Maryland for claims arising under the
Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

Any claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law must be brought
within 3 years after the grant of the franchise.

Except as expressly provided herein, all other terms of the Agreement shall remain in full force and
effect.

IN WITNESS HEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands and seals effective
202

FRANCHISOR: AIRE-MASTER OF AMERICA, INC.

BY:

Walter R. Heinle, President/Chief Operating Officer

FRANCHISEE:
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State Effective Dates
The following states have franchise laws that require that the Franchise Disclosure Document

be registered or filed with the states, or be exempt from registration: California, Hawaii, Illinois,
Indiana, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, New York, North Dakota, Rhode Island, South
Dakota, Virginia, Washington, and Wisconsin.

This document is effective and may be used in the following states, where the document is

filed, registered, or exempt from registration, as of the Effective Date stated below:

California October 23, 2023
Florida July 18, 2023
Hawaii July 26, 2023
Illinois July 11, 2023
Indiana July 20, 2023
Maryland November 13, 2023
Michigan August 17, 2023
New York July 11, 2023
North Dakota July 26, 2023
Rhode Island July 12, 2023
South Dakota June 30, 2023
Virginia

The effective date of this Franchise Disclosure Document in all the other states is the June 30,

2023 issuance date.
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RECEIPT

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of the franchise agreement and other information in
plain language. Read this disclosure document and all agreements carefully.

If Aire-Master offers you a franchise, it must provide this disclosure document to you 14 calendar-days before
you sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the
proposed franchise sale.

New York and Rhode Island require that Aire-Master give you this disclosure document at the eatlier of the
first personal meeting or 10 business days before the execution of the franchise or other agreement or the
payment of any consideration that relates to the franchise relationship. Michigan, Oregon, and Wisconsin
require that Aire-Master to give you this disclosure document at least 10 business days before the execution of
any binding franchise or other agreement or the Payment of any consideration, whichever occurs first.

If Aire-Master does not deliver this disclosure document on time or if it contains a false or misleading statement,
or a material omission, a violation of federal law and state law may have occurred and should be reported to
the Federal Trade Commission, Washington, D.C. 20580 and the state agency listed in Exhibit E.

Franchisor is Aire-Master of America, Inc., and its employees involved in the franchise sale process include
Peter Rathke, located at 1821 N. Hwy CC, with mailing address of P.O. Box 2310, Nixa, Missouri 65714, and
its telephone number is (651) 587-9829.

Issuance date: June 30, 2023.
Aire-Master authorizes those persons listed in Exhibit D to receive service of process for Aire-Master.
I received a disclosure document dated June 30, 2023, that included the following Exhibits:

A1 Aire-Master of America Franchise Agreement A.12 Franchise Agreement Amendment —

A.2  Promissory Note Miscellaneous (add/remove franchisee /

A3 Security Agreement revise Territory)

A4  UCC Financing Statement B.1  List of Franchisees

A5 Guaranty B.2  List of Former Franchisees who left during

A.6  Deed of Trust ptior franchisot's fiscal year

A.7  Release and Consent to Transfer Agreement B.3  List of Franchisees who have transferred

A.8  Designated Persons/ Patriot Act Affidavit C.1  "Independent Auditor's Report "as of

A.9  Franchisee Fee Deposit Agreement March 31, 2023, and March 31, 2022

A.10 Franchise Agreement Amendment for C.2  "Independent Auditor's Report "as of
Qualifying Existing Franchises Developing March 31, 2022, and March 31, 2021
Additional Territory — Deferred Franchisee D List of registered agent for service of
Fee Payment process in various states

A.11 Franchise Agreement Amendment for E List of Administrators
Qualifying Existing Franchises Developing F Online Training Courses Table of Contents
Additional Territory — Option to Continue G State Specific Appendix
after Initial Two Year Term

Prospective Franchisee:
By: By:
(Do not leave blank) _ -
Date Date

You must sign, date, and mail this receipt to Aire-Master at P.O. Box 2310, Nixa, Missouri 65714, or email a
copy of the signed and dated receipt to Peter Rathke, Aire-Master at mkelly@airemastet.com.

(COPY TO BE RETAINED BY YOU)
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RECEIPT

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of the franchise agreement and other information in
plain language. Read this disclosure document and all agreements carefully.

If Aire-Master offers you a franchise, it must provide this disclosure document to you 14 calendar-days before
you sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the
proposed franchise sale.

New York and Rhode Island require that Aire-Master give you this disclosure document at the eatlier of the
first personal meeting or 10 business days before the execution of the franchise or other agreement or the
payment of any consideration that relates to the franchise relationship. Michigan, Oregon, and Wisconsin
require that Aire-Master to give you this disclosure document at least 10 business days before the execution of
any binding franchise or other agreement or the Payment of any consideration, whichever occurs first.

If Aire-Master does not deliver this disclosure document on time or if it contains a false or misleading statement,
or a material omission, a violation of federal law and state law may have occurred and should be reported to
the Federal Trade Commission, Washington, D.C. 20580 and the state agency listed in Exhibit E.

Franchisor is Aire-Master of America, Inc., and its employees involved in the franchise sale process include
Peter Rathke, located at 1821 N. Hwy CC, with mailing address of P.O. Box 2310, Nixa, Missouri 65714, and
its telephone number is (651) 587-9829.

Issuance date: June 30, 2023.
Aire-Master authorizes those persons listed in Exhibit D to receive service of process for Aire-Master.
I received a disclosure document dated June 30, 2023, that included the following Exhibits:

A1 Aire-Master of America Franchise Agreement A.12 Franchise Agreement Amendment —

A.2  Promissory Note Miscellaneous (add/remove franchisee /

A3 Security Agreement revise Territory)

A4  UCC Financing Statement B.1  List of Franchisees

A5 Guaranty B.2  List of Former Franchisees who left during

A.6  Deed of Trust ptior franchisot's fiscal year

A.7  Release and Consent to Transfer Agreement B.3  List of Franchisees who have transferred

A.8  Designated Persons/ Patriot Act Affidavit C.1  "Independent Auditor's Report "as of

A.9  Franchisee Fee Deposit Agreement March 31, 2023, and March 31, 2022

A.10 Franchise Agreement Amendment for C.2  "Independent Auditor's Report "as of
Qualifying Existing Franchises Developing March 31, 2022, and March 31, 2021
Additional Territory — Deferred Franchisee D List of registered agent for service of
Fee Payment process in various states

A.11 Franchise Agreement Amendment for E List of Administrators
Qualifying Existing Franchises Developing F Online Training Courses Table of Contents
Additional Territory — Option to Continue G State Specific Appendix
after Initial Two Year Term

Prospective Franchisee:
By: By:
(Do not leave blank) _ -
Date Date

You must sign, date, and mail this receipt to Aire-Master at P.O. Box 2310, Nixa, Missouri 65714, or email a
copy of the signed and dated receipt to Peter Rathke, Aire-Master at mkelly@airemastet.com.

(COPY TO BE SIGNED AND RETURNED TO AIRE-MASTER)
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